b
CABINET
Date: Monday 9 February 2015
Time: 7.00 pm
Venue:

Room 8, Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton Hill, SW2 1RW

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov
Members of the Committee
Leader of the Council, Councillor Lib Peck
Deputy Leader (Policy), Cllr Imogen Walker
Deputy Leader (Finance & Investment), Councillor Paul McGlone
Cabinet Member for Children & Adult Services, Councillor Jackie Meldrum
Cabinet Member for Environment & Sustainability, Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite
Cabinet Member for Early Years, Youth & Families, Councillor Rachel Heywood
Cabinet Member for Health & Wellbeing, Councillor Jim Dickson
Cabinet Member for Housing, Councillor Matthew Bennett
Cabinet Member for Jobs & Growth, Councillor Jack Hopkins
Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, Councillor Jane Edbrooke
Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Dave Burn, Telephone: 020 7926 2186 ; Email: dburn@lambeth.gov.uk
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting and the Town Hall is fully accessible. If you
have any specific needs please contact Facilities Management (020 7926 1010) in advance.
Queries on reports:
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author is shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.
Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.
Representation:
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the website
www.lambeth.gov.uk)
Speaking rights at Cabinet meetings
 Cabinet normally has a large amount of business to consider at each meeting.
 Accordingly, the order of the agenda and time allowed for each item is decided by the Leader of
the Council beforehand.
 Cabinet expects there to have been prior consultation with the public and other interested parties
on proposals and a summary of the results to be included in the report. Therefore, oral
contributions from members of the public at the meeting should not normally be necessary.
 The time available may allow contribution(s) to be heard on reports on the agenda but this is
entirely at the discretion of the Leader of the Council. Anyone wishing to speak must advise the
Secretary to Cabinet before the day of the meeting, advising what aspect not covered in the report
they wish to cover.
 Any such contributions are required to be brief; a maximum of three minutes is likely to be
available.
 Speakers should ideally be on behalf of a number of people or a specific group.
 Speakers will be advised at the meeting whether and when they will be heard.
 Councillors may speak at the discretion of the Chair on agenda items, and are entitled to speak on
matters that specifically concern their ward.
Public Involvement at Council, Committee etc meetings - public notice questions, petitions,
deputations and speaking rights (Standing Order 10):
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 or the number on the front
page.

AGENDA

Page
Nos.

1.

Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
Under Cabinet Rule 1.5.2, where any Cabinet Member has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para. 4))
in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a committee,
sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from the meeting
room during the whole of the consideration of that matter and must not
participate in any vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been
obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

2.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

1-8

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 12 January be agreed
and signed as a correct record of proceedings.

3.

Revenue & Capital Budget 2015/16 - Provisional Budget Strategy
2016/17 - 2017/18

9 - 194

(Report 151/14-15 and appendices)
All Wards
Key Decision
Deputy Leader of the Council - Finance and Investment
Strategic Director, Enabling
Contact: Frank Higgins, Head of Financial Strategy
Fhiggins@lambeth.gov.uk Tel: 020 7926 9316
Reason for Exemption from Disclosure
Appendix 7b is exempt from publication by virtue of the following paragraph
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972:
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of a particular
person. (Including the authority holding that information).

4.

Revenue and Capital Budget 2015/16 - 2017/18: Views of Overview
and Scrutiny Committee
(Report 149/14-15)
All Wards
Non-Key Decision
Contact for enquiries: Elaine Carter, Lead Scrutiny Officer, 020 7926 0027,
ecarter@lambeth.gov.uk

195 - 204

5.

Transforming Adult Mental Health Rehabilitation services

205 - 250

(Report 152/14-15 and appendices)
Key Decision
All Wards
Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing
Strategic Director, Commissioning
Contact: Denis O'Rourke, Assistant Director Integrated Commissioning –
Adult Mental Health denisorourke@nhs.net

6.

Lambeth Draft Revised Statement of Community Involvement
(Report 150/14-15 and appendices)
All Wards
Non-Key Decision
Contact for enquiries: Alan Vinall, Delivery Lead, Planning Strategy and
Policy, 020 7926 1212, avinall@lambeth.gov.uk

251 - 306

Page 1

Ca

Agenda Item 2

b
CABINET

Monday 12 January 2015 at 7.00 pm
MINUTES
PRESENT:
Cabinet Members:

Portfolio:

Councillor Jennifer
Brathwaite
Councillor Jim Dickson
Councillor Jane Edbrooke
Councillor Jack Hopkins
Councillor Paul McGlone
Councillor Jackie Meldrum
Councillor Lib Peck
Councillor Imogen Walker

Cabinet Member for Environment & Sustainability

Apologies for absence

Councillor Matthew Bennett and Councillor Rachel Heywood

Also present:

Councillor Scott Ainslie, Councillor Tim Briggs and Councillor
Diana Morris

Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing
Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods
Cabinet Member for Jobs & Growth
Deputy Leader (Finance and Investment)
Cabinet Member for Children & Adult Social Care
Leader of the Council
Deputy Leader (Policy)

Action
required by
1.

DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST

There were none.
2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 8
December 2014 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct
record of the proceedings.

Page 2
3.

PARKS AND OPEN SPACES CAPITAL INVESTMENT PLAN 2014/15 –
2018/19

(Report 129/14-15) (Key Decision – call-in ends Friday 23 January
2015)
The Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods introduced the report.
Cabinet received the following representations:


Jean Kerrigan, Chair of Friends of Windmill Gardens,
addressed Cabinet, noting that although Windmill Gardens
was a small park in a busy ward, it was home to some
heritage gems and had been restored with the help of council
and lottery funding. She welcomed the paper and noted that
the increased transparency around parks and open spaces
had been requested by the green spaces forum and the
consultation on this paper went a long way to achieve that.
She also noted that the proposals were very much driven by
cuts to Lambeth funding and thanked Members for not selling
parks and open spaces to generate income. She believed
that the dedicated support officer would be crucial to the
future work with parks groups and this would need to be
actioned as soon as possible. She finally suggested that a
proper heritage officer be employed in the borough for the
future.



Adam Watt, Friends of Stockwell Skate Park, addressed
Cabinet and noted that improvements were required to the
skateboard park which had achieved international status in
recent years, including resurfacing every five years, treating
damp problems and installing public toilets to avoid people
urinating in the street.



David Payne, Streatham Common Cooperative (ScCoop),
stated that he was pleased with the recent investment made
to Streatham Common and commended officers for
developing a coherent plan which would benefit a large group
of residents in the longer term.



The Deputy Leader, Finance and Investment, noted that he
had been involved in securing funding for the skateboard
park, which now had international status. He would be keen
for the Council to work with the park in the future to develop
clear plans and strategies for the future of the park.



The Cabinet Member for Environment and Sustainability
added that a recent Metal Theft Scrutiny Commission had

Page 3
recommended that Lambeth become a heritage champion
and that should now be revisited and actioned.


The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing welcomed the
investment plan and noted the positive impact of parks and
open spaces on people’s health and wellbeing and
emphasised that this would also be critical in the future.



The Deputy Leader, Policy, thanked all of those involved in
developing the proposals and paid a special thanks to the
friends groups across the borough.



The Cabinet Member for Jobs and Growth urged officers to
have a separate conversation with representatives from the
skate park and further noted the positive work being done by
Business Improvement Districts (BIDs) and the way in which
BIDs could assist in bringing together assets within a
community.

The Commissioning Director stated that the issue of heritage was
being looked into currently and that an offer in respect of heritage
across the borough would be available in a few weeks. He also
noted that the parks forum had played an active role in ensuring that
the voices of the smaller parks in the borough had also been heard
and considered in developing proposals for future parks and open
spaces, although more could be done to ensure that that the needs
of smaller parks in the borough were heard. He finally noted that he
would welcome a discussion with the Stockwell Skateboard Park in
the near future.
The Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods paid a special thanks to
the parks forums and all of the friends groups in the different parks,
as well as officers, who had been involved in developing these
proposals.
The Leader of the Council thanked everyone for their valuable
comments and for the hard work put into developing these
proposals and noted that a further meeting would assist in
addressing the issues raised.
RESOLVED:
(1) To agree that the attached parks and open spaces capital
investment plan 2014/15 – 2018/19 is the strategic
commissioning framework for all future investment in
parks and open spaces, as set out within this report.
(2) To approve the release of up to £9million as a match-funding

Page 4
contribution on the basis of detailed business cases to be
developed for specified projects to help deliver the parks
capital investment plan and provide project delivery
support for local communities.

(3) To agree that a proportion of the net income generated from
capital improvements in parks (after additional revenue
costs are covered, and to be determined by the business
cases) is ring fenced for reinvestment back into the park
operations, and that these income streams will be used to
support communities taking on increased responsibilities
in parks.

4.

NEW ALTERATIONS AND EXTENSIONS SUPPLEMENTARY
PLANNING DOCUMENT

(Report 128/14-15) (Non-Key Decision)
The Cabinet Member for Jobs and Growth introduced the report.
Cabinet received the following representations


Councillor Diana Morris, Chair of Planning Applications
Committee, noted she had been involved in the development
of the document as part of the work undertaken by the
Planning and Development Cabinet Advisory Panel. She had
dealt with a large number of residents in her role as a ward
councillor and was well aware of the large number of families
struggling to deal with growing families and lack of provision
for extending their existing homes. She therefore welcomed
the proposals which also included options for such residents
to extend existing homes in the future.



Mark Buttery, local resident in Ferndale ward, made
reference to a previously submitted petition on this issue and
noted that he was pleased to see that the proposals had
taken into account the concerns raised by residents in
respect of providing options for extending mansard roofs in
the future. Many houses in the borough would allow for this
new provision, which would allow residents to extend their
properties into the roof space. He finally suggested that
mansard extensions should be allowed for both heritage and
non-heritage buildings and therefore suggested a slight
amendment to paragraph 4.2.3 in the report.

Page 5

The Assistant Director, Planning and Development, noted that the
document had been developed with the aim of building in greater
flexibility into the framework and the policy had very much achieved
that by providing a good balance for the future. He thanked Mark
Buttery for his contribution and acknowledged the inconsistency in
the report highlighted and provided assurance that this would be
addressed. He also thanked Councillor Diana Morris for her
comments which were very valuable and would be considered.
The Deputy Leader, Finance and Investment, stated that the policy
addressed many of the concerns raised by residents and noted the
need to continue to be fair and consistent around these policies in
the future.
The Leader of the Council thanked officers and residents groups for
their proactive approach in developing this document.
RESOLVED:
(1) To note and agree the content of the draft Alterations and
Extensions SPD (2014) in Appendix 1.
(2) To note and agree the proposals for public consultation.
5.

FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

(Report 126/14-15) (Key Decision – call-in deadline ends Friday 23
January 2015)
The Cabinet Member for Environment and Sustainability introduced
the report.
The following comments were made:


The Cabinet Member for Children and Adult Services asked
for further clarification on the Council policies around
drainage and ensuring that drains across the borough were
cleared and able to cope with heavy rain, avoiding any risk of
over flooding.



The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing noted that his
ward had experienced serious flooding in the past 11 years
on two occasions and he therefore welcomed the strategy.
He also noted the good work in the coordinating different
agencies to manage the future flood risk issue across the
borough, although this may need further clarification and
assurance going forward.

Page 6


The Cabinet Member for Jobs and Growth noted that the
Planning and Development Cabinet Advisory Panel had also
discussed the issue and much work was being carried out to
manage the flood risk across the borough.

The Commercial Services Development Officer addressed Cabinet,
stating that a recent change in regulations had meant that
sustainable drainage was now required for many properties and the
Council was working to try to introduce sustainable drainage.
RESOLVED:
(1) To approve and recognise the Local Flood Risk
Management Strategy as the Local Flood Risk Management
Strategy for Lambeth.

6.

COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME

(Report 127/14-15) (Key Decision – call in ends Friday 23 January
2015)
The Deputy Leader of the Council, Finance and Investment,
introduced the report, noting that this was the annual review of the
Council Tax Support Scheme and the intention was to continue to
protect those most vulnerable residents in the borough.
Cabinet received the following representation:


Councillor Scott Ainslie, Green Party, addressed Cabinet,
encouraging Cabinet Members to continue to protect
vulnerable residents and noted that the scheme did not
actively and adequately protect those residents falling into
arrears with their council tax payments. He mentioned a
report published the previous year nationally, which
suggested that Lambeth could take further steps to protect
the most vulnerable residents in the borough. Council tax
was increasingly significantly for the most vulnerable in the
borough and this was now causing those people to fall into
debt. Court summons to local people, actioned by the Council
as a way of recovering outstanding council tax payments,
had further negative impacts on these vulnerable residents.
He urged Cabinet to ensure that bailiffs were not actively
used to recover council tax debt from local residents and that
officers instead were more actively involved in the recovery of
such debt, to alleviate the adverse impact on the most
vulnerable residents in the borough. He finally referred to a
Freedom of Information request which had disclosed that

Page 7
bailiffs were still being utilised much too often to assist in the
recovery of debts.
The Director, Business and Customer Services and the Head of
Benefits and Customer Centres responded, noting that council tax
support and recovery of debt continued to be a challenge in todays
financial climate, challenges which would be further exacerbated by
the forthcoming changes to the wider welfare system, expected that
year. The local council tax support scheme had been developed in
consultation with residents and many responses had been received
and officers had listened carefully to the needs and views of
residents. It was also further confirmed that Lambeth had some of
the highest court fees arising from the recovery of council tax debt,
however, much proactive work had also recently been undertaken to
ensure residents were fully aware of the options available to them in
respect of payment options, making it easier for residents to pay
their council tax. Finally it was noted that a revised income and debt
strategy would be brought to Cabinet in March 2015, which would
also address some of the issues raised by Councillor Ainslie.
The Leader of the Council thanked Councillor Ainslie and officers for
their comments and noted that the council tax support scheme at
Lambeth was different to that of many other boroughs, offering
further support for those most vulnerable residents. She also noted
that there were some discrepancies across London in respect of the
statistics referred to and it would be necessary to get these right. It
was crucial that the Council continued to review the Council Tax
Support Scheme to ensure it was fit for purpose and she urged
officers to look into the issue of using bailiffs to recover debt but also
emphasised that it was important to continue to ensure that Council
collected all of its council tax also in the future.
The Cabinet Member for Children and Adult Services noted the
need to continue extended support for the elderly and careers in the
borough and asked for an update on the universal credit scheme, in
particular whether the DLA and Carers allowance would be
subsumed in to universal credit
The Head of Benefits and Customer Centres responded that it was
expected that council tax support would also become part of the
universal credit scheme that year and it would be necessary to
ensure that the most vulnerable residents in the borough continued
to be protected also under this scheme. Work was currently
underway with job centres in the borough to assess how to address
the issue of universal credit as this was anticipated to have a major
impact on many residents across the borough. He finally noted that
the DLA and Careers allowance would not become part of Universal
Credit, although DLA was slowly being replaced by Personal
Independence Payments. That meant that it would be possible to
identify vulnerable groups in future.

Page 8

RESOLVED:
(1) To recommend to Council that an unamended Council Tax
Support scheme for 2015/16 be adopted, subject to annual
uprating and adjustments for inflation, which are already
catered for in the existing 2014/15 scheme
(2) To note the requirement to change the scheme for 2016/17
to accommodate universal credit and other changes which
align with the financial resilience strategy and income and
debt policy.

The meeting ended at 8.08 pm
CHAIR
CABINET
Monday 9 February 2015
Date of Despatch: Friday 16 January 2015
Call-in Date: Friday 23 January 2015
Contact for Enquiries: Anne Rasmussen
Tel: 020 7926 0028
Fax: (020) 7926 2361
E-mail: arasmussen@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 9

Agenda Item 3

Cabinet

9 February 2015

Council

25 February 2015

Revenue & Capital Budget 2015/16 – Provisional Budget Strategy 2016/17 – 2017/18
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director Enabling: Guy Ware
Portfolio: Deputy Leader (Finance & Investment): Councillor Paul McGlone:
Contact for enquiries:
fhiggins@lambeth.gov.uk
Frank Higgins, Head of Financial Strategy, Strategic Finance, 020 7926 9316
Report summary

1.1

The Government plans to maintain their programme of austerity in order to achieve a balanced
national budget by 2019. This places an on-going burden on the Council whereby savings
achieved and estimated between 2011/12 and 2017/18 total some £200m. The council faces a
combination of 50% reductions from core Government funding, additional burdens and
demand led pressures.

1.2

Despite the unprecedented size of the cuts and the most difficult thing we have ever dealt with
in local government we have developed an innovative approach to the budget setting process
starting with Outcomes Based Budgeting in 2014/15 and evolving to the Resource Allocation
Framework in 2015/16. The focus has moved from how we reduce existing budgets to how we
prioritise the resource we have available, in a way which meets the three priority outcomes in
the Community Plan.

1.3

Lambeth, like many other local authorities in deprived areas, faces a stark challenge. Over the
next three years we have to cut a further £90million from the services that our residents value
and depend on. At the same time, by 2018, we anticipate demand for these services to be
higher and more complex than ever before. This report confirms the £291.1m net general fund
cash limit allocated to the council’s three main outcomes. It recommends a 1.99% increase in
the Lambeth element of the council tax, and sets out a three year capital investment
programme for the council

1.4

A strategic approach to our investment in existing assets and new developments over a 3 to 4
year time horizon is critical in enabling the Council to deliver its day to day services in the most
cost effective manner. Some schemes, such as Your New Town Hall, will result in a return on
our investment, in this case, £4.5m net revenue savings to the General Fund. However,
expanding our schools estate and the provision of social housing are essential in meeting
demand in a growing Borough. Over the next twelve months we will develop the decision
making process which balances ‘invest to save’ capital investment principles with the need to
maintain and build assets that are there to provide a service.

Page 10
1.5

Economic growth is important to the borough. New development attracts planning S106 and
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) payments that boost resources available for capital
investment. From a revenue perspective, the building of new houses attracts New Homes
Bonus to the council as well as growing the council tax base. New business development also
means an increase in our share of the business rates as well as the opportunity for jobs for
Lambeth residents. All of this means additional income to the council and goes some way to
improving the overall financial position.

1.6

Our partnerships with health, schools, and the third sector are important to us in being able to
deliver these savings. Many of the proposals rely on closer working with our partners in order
to deliver the outcomes within our reduced financial envelope. We are developing a new model
of integrated health and social care with our health partners in order to achieve shared
outcomes and savings in both health and the council.

1.7

This report presents:






Financial Management Strategy and Reserves and Balances Strategy
Details of the current financial context and position of the council, including a financial
overview of the General Fund in the context of Medium Term Financial Planning
The General Fund budget for 2015/16 and planning totals for the following two years
A summary of the draft capital investment proposals for 2015/16 to 2017/18
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget is set in a separate HRA Rent and
Budget Setting Report 2015/16 which was agreed by Cabinet on 8 December 2014.

Finance summary
This report concerns the Council’s overall financial position with a particular focus on 2015/16.
It commits the Council to a new revenue budget for 2015/16 – with a 1.99% increase in the
Lambeth element of the Council Tax (resulting in the Lambeth element of Band D increasing to
£943.70 from £925.29) – and a revised Capital Programme of £276.1m for the years 2015/16
to 2017/18.

Recommendations
Cabinet
(1)

To recommend Council to note or adopt the recommendations listed below.

(2)

To approve the disposal of the properties identified as ‘new disposals’ in Appendix 7a and
Appendix 7b – (exempt from disclosure).

Council
(1)

To adopt the General Fund (GF) revenue budget for 2015/16 as set out in this report, which,
for the avoidance of doubt, includes:





The deficit reduction proposals as approved in the December Financial Planning
Report;
Minor changes as set out in this report and Appendix 3
The Council Tax model set out in Appendix 2; and
The cash limits arising from the above, as set out in paragraphs 7.1 to 7.5, a total cash
limit of £291.068m.

Page 11
(2)

To adopt a 1.99% increase in the Lambeth element of the Council Tax for 2015/16

(3)

To adopt the updated Financial Management Strategy attached at Appendix 1

(4)

To adopt the Reserves and Balances Strategy detailed in paragraphs 5.2 – 5.15 of this report

(5)

To not the Fees and Charges schedule set out in Appendix 10

(6)

To note the current General Fund budget forecasts for 2014/15 in Section 6

(7)

To note the capital investment forecast of £206m against the 2014/15 budget of £210m as
detailed in paragraphs 8.3 to 8.5

(8)

To note the changes to the Capital Investment Programme for 2014/15 as set out in section 8

(9)

To note the proposed three year Capital Investment Programme for the period 2015/16 to
2017/18 of £276.1m as described in section 8 and summarised in Appendix 5

(10)

To adopt the level of Total Capital Allowances (TCA) for 2015/16 as set out in paragraphs 8.33
and 8.34 of this report

(11)

To adopt the statement of Minimum Revenue Provision policy as detailed in Appendix 8

(12)

To adopt the Treasury Management Strategy (incorporating the debt and investment
strategies) proposed for 2015/16 to 2017/18, as set out in Appendix 9

(13)

To adopt the prudential indicators and limits, and the investment thresholds and limits for
2015/16 – 2017/18 set out in Appendix 9

(14)

To note the formal advice of the Strategic Director of Enabling, as the Council’s statutory officer
for the purposes of s151 of the Local Government Act 1972, pursuant to s25 of the Local
Government Act 2003, as set out in section 9 of this report.

(15)

To note the financial risks set out throughout this report.

(16)

To note that, at its meeting of 22 January 2015, Corporate Committee agreed the amount of
97,780 as the Council Tax Base for the year 2015/16 in accordance with the Local Authorities
(Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012, Article 3 of the Localism Act
2011 (Commencement No 1 and Transitional Provisions) Order 2011 and the Local Authorities
(Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012.

(17)

That the following amounts be now calculated for 2015/16 in accordance with sections 31A and
31B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as inserted by the Localism Act 2011:
(a)

Aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for the items set out in Section
31A(2) thereof:
£922,775,488

(b)

Aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for the items set out in Section
31A(3) thereof:
£830,500,502

(c)

The Council’s Council Tax Requirement under Section 31A(4), being the amount by
which the aggregate at 17(a) above exceeds the aggregate at 17(b) above:
£92,274,986

(d)

The amount at 17(c) above divided by the Council’s tax base in 16 above, in
accordance with Section 31B(1) of the Act, as the basic Band D amount of its Council
tax for the year:
£943.70

Page 12
(e)

(18)

(19)

The amounts given by multiplying the amount at 17(d) above by the number which, in
the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a
particular valuation band divided by the number which in that proportion is applicable to
dwellings listed in valuation band D, calculated by the Council, in accordance with
Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for the year in respect
of dwellings listed in different valuation bands.
Band A

Band B

Band C

Band D

£629.13

£733.99

£838.84

£943.70

Band E

Band F

Band G

Band H

£1,153.41

£1,363.12

£1,572.83

£1,887.40

To note that for the year 2015/16 the Greater London Authority and its functional and
predecessor bodies have provisional precepts (i.e. still to be formally adopted as at dispatch of
this report), in accordance with Sections 88 and 89 of the Greater London Authority Act (1999)
as amended by section 77 of the Localism Act 2011, for each of the categories of dwellings
shown below:
Band A

Band B

Band C

Band D

£196.67

£229.44

£262.22

£295.00

Band E

Band F

Band G

Band H

£360.56

£426.11

£491.67

£590.00

That having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 17(e) and 18 above, the
Council approves the amounts of Council Tax for the year 2015/16 for each of the categories of
dwellings as shown below:
Band A

Band B

Band C

Band D

£825.80

£963.43

£1,101.06

£1,238.70

Band E

Band F

Band G

Band H

£1,513.97

£1,789.23

£2,064.50

£2,477.40

(20)

To delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Enabling in consultation with the Deputy
Leader (Finance & Investment) to change the Council Tax amounts set out in recommendation
(19) if necessitated by changes to the precept amounts as set out in recommendation (18).

(21)

To note that, at its meeting of 22 January 2015, Corporate Committee agreed the amount of
£120,888,814 as the National Non-Domestic Rates Base (the business rates tax base) in
accordance with Section 59A of The Local Government Finance Act 1988, as amended by The
Local Government Finance Act 2012.

Page 13
2.

RESOURCE ALLOCATION
Introduction - The 2015/16 Resource Allocation Process

2.1

The Council’s vision of ‘ambition and fairness for all’ places equalities, early intervention,
prevention and resilience at the heart of the council’s work. This means preventing problems
happening in the first place rather than having to react to them. It means working with our
communities so that they can help themselves, focusing resources on the people who need it
most and it means building resilience in our communities. We are taking this approach so that
everyone in the borough has the best chance to succeed when it comes to things like jobs,
housing and education.

2.2

The Chancellor’s Autumn Statement, delivered on 18 December 2014, confirmed that the
Government plans to maintain its programme of austerity through to at least 2019-20.
Independent observers, including the Institute of Fiscal Studies, conclude that, while the cuts to
date have been severe, we are only about a third of the way through the programme; and we
will see cuts at least as heavy as those already experienced over the next few years. With
continuing relative protection of some budgets such as Health, Schools, and Pension-age
welfare, there is no reason to suppose that Local Government will not continue to be amongst
the hardest hit. However we are determined to focus on what we are able to achieve with the
resources we have. We will spend the 50% remaining in our budget well and we will not be
solely driven by the 50% reduction we need to make.

2.3

We believe by working together, cooperatively, that we can build more resilient communities,
implement pathways that enable early intervention and take more preventative approaches.
But we know that this takes time and the Council is required to deliver a balanced budget in the
short-term alongside delivering its medium-long term financial strategy and political vision.

2.4

To enable this to happen in 2014/15 we introduced a new process of “Resource Allocation” to
support the council’s cooperative commissioning approach and address the huge reduction in
available resources. Three Outcome Panels were established to shape the approach to
commissioning around each of our thirteen community outcomes. The 13 outcomes were
grouped into three areas - Community Wellbeing (CW), Neighbourhoods, Environment &
Sustainability (NES) and Housing, Jobs & Investment (HJI).

2.5

The Financial Planning Report – Allocating Resources to Outcomes presented to cabinet in
July 2014 allocated financial envelopes to the three overarching outcome areas and also
identified a funding deficit of £90.4m, of which a gap of £52.8m remained after taking into
account already agreed savings. Between July and December 2014 the Outcome Panels
addressed these budgetary challenges from an outcome basis rather than through a
departmental or service focus. The substantive outputs of that work were the proposals
presented in the Financial Planning Report considered by cabinet in December 2014.
The Council’s Financial Position and Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement
– 2015/16

2.6

The Council’s financial position as outlined in the December Financial Planning Report showed
a total funding deficit over the period 2015/16 – 2017/18 of £90.4m . Since those figures were
calculated, there have been a number of further announcements, primarily the Provisional
Local Government Finance Settlement 2015/16 shown in the table below on 18 December
2014 and the provisional allocation of New Homes Bonus. Alongside this we have also
calculated our final Council Tax and Business Rates baseline figures which have been agreed
by Corporate Committee on 22 January 2015.

Page 14
2.7

Taking all of the revised information into account, there have been a number of minor changes
to our original assumptions, both positive and negative; in the main the overall changes net
each other out and therefore the overall three year funding deficit remains at the previously
identified £90.4m.

2.8

The table below shows the cash limit for 2015/16 based on the key output from the provisional
finance settlement and the Council tax base set by Corporate Committee on 22 January 2015.
Funding Source
Notional Revenue Support Grant
Top-up Payment
Retained NDR
Settlement Funding Assessment
New Homes Bonus
s31 Grant
Net gains / losses on NDR
Council Tax
Total Cash Limit

2015/16
£’m
86.436
65.368
35.857
187.661
7.933
3.492
(0.293)
92.275
291.068

Deficit Reduction Proposals
The December FPR outlined a number of new savings proposals that have been approved to
address the funding deficit in addition to the previously agreed 2015/16 and 2016/17 savings
proposals highlighted in previous reports. This report sets out some minor changes as further
information is now available in respect of proposals affecting Street Cleansing, which has
resulted in a delay in the delivery of savings totalling £100k. This has been reflecting in reprofiling savings achieved between 2015/16 and 2016/17. Details of the change are set out in
the Appendix 3.
Business Rates Retention Scheme

2.9

The introduction of the Business Rates Retention Scheme provided an incentive for authorities
to grow their business base by virtue of retaining a proportion of business rates growth
achieved, in Lambeth’s case 30%. It also means that councils must manage the down side of
changes to the business rate base. There is an anticipated reduction in retained business rates
of £850k in 2015/16, due to the Shell Centre redevelopment planned to commence as early as
April this year which means that a portion of the Centre’s £12.5m rateable value will be taken
out rating. This position will be reversed in future years when redevelopment is complete. This
is offset by an improvement in the level of rating appeals forecast for 2015/16.. Due to the level
of unpredictability that the Business Rates Retention Scheme brings it is proposed that the
£850k be met from General Fund balances in 2015/16. Future levels of growth of retained
business rates will be confirmed in future budget reports.
Council Tax

2.10

The council has frozen the council tax for the last six years which has meant an erosion of the
tax base. We now want to build the base back up because the challenge of the deficit is so
great. To put this into perspective, if the Council had increased Council tax to just below the
threshold for referendum since 2008/09 the base budget would be £18.5m higher in 2015/16

Page 15
alone. This takes no account of the significant resources foregone over that period. This
compares to Council Tax Freeze Grant of approximately £7.9m receivable since 2011/12,
generally only covering the impact of a 1% rise, £2.5m of which was a one-off with the
remainder being rolled into formula grant and subject to reductions imposed by the
Government.

2.11

As part of addressing the funding deficit, it is proposed to increase the Lambeth element of the
Council Tax by 1.99% as suggested in the December FPR. This would reduce the base budget
deficit by £1.8m in 2015/16.

2.12

This proposal is purely for 2015/16, but we have modelled a further 1.99% increase per
annum, below the level required for a referendum, for the next three years, resulting in a
reduction of the base budget deficit of £5.7m. Whilst this assumption is included in the figures,
the recommendation to increase council tax in 2016/17 and 2017/18 is subject to decision by
cabinet and council and will be addressed in future years budget reports.

2.13

There has been a small movement from the reported December position in terms of remaining
deficit. The below table reconciles the changes since the December report.
Original Funding Deficit (December)
Business Rates Changes
Council Tax Base Adjustments
Street Cleansing – Revised Saving
Remaining Funding Deficit

(1.3)
(0.9)
(0.1)
(0.1)
(2.4)

6.9
0.9
0.0
0.1
7.8

(23.6)
0.0
0.0
0.0
(23.6)

(18.0)
0.0
(0.1)
0.0
(18.2)

2.14

It is important that Building on the momentum achieved in balancing the first two years of the
budget is maintained. The outstanding funding deficit of £18.2m will continue to be reviewed by
Outcome Panels and further options to address this 2017/18 gap will be explored in the coming
financial year. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has offered to support this process by
analysing the measures put forward to balance the deficit gap, whilst seeking to improve the
Resource Allocation process.

2.15

As shown in the table above, it can be seen that there is an outstanding deficit in 2015/16 of
£2.4m but a surplus delivery in 2016/17. It is proposed that t this would be managed by using
General Fund balances in 2015/16 before restoring the position in 2016/17.

3.

USE OF RESOURCES – HOW THE OUTCOMES WILL BE ACHIEVED
Community Wellbeing

3.1

The development of end to end and integrated care is intended to offer clearer and more
consistent routes through services, and improved working with health services. The
development of these services for older people will offer real advantages, with refurbished and
modernised sheltered housing, and newly built and fully accessible extra care provision
enabling people to maintain their independence. Reducing the use of residential care will help
older people to live as independently as possible in their own homes for as long as possible
without the need for institutional care. The expansion of personalisation also offers the
opportunity for people to have greater control over the services they receive. Personalised
budgets will help older people to have more control.

Page 16
3.2

The early intervention model in children’s services will provide targeted early help, improving
outcomes for children and preventing an escalation of need and the plans over the coming
year to grow Lambeth’s pool of local foster carers will mean more Lambeth children live in or
close to the borough.

3.3

Our ‘universal’ services will continue to provide easy access to the appropriate support, advice
and information for children and their families and while some children’s centres will be
converted there will still be a breadth of children’s centre provision across the borough.

3.4

We want to ensure that people are healthier for longer. The commissioning process will focus
both on prevention; as a long term view to tackle causes rather than symptoms; and targeted
interventions that focus on addressing and improving health conditions in the early stages. This
will be vital to ensuring that we reduce the cost of physical inactivity, improve the health of our
citizens, and give people the best opportunities to achieve their ambitions.
Neighbourhoods, Environment and Sustainability

3.5

We will continue to work with our communities to design sustainability into everyday life. We
will ask citizens to minimise their waste and litter, giving them the resources they need to do so
and enforcing where necessary. Residents will have the opportunity to develop and expand
community initiatives and become more involved in their immediate environment Where we do
intervene or provide a service, whether that’s collecting waste or cleaning streets, it will be
targeted at the areas citizens tell us are most important and in the most efficient and
sustainable way.

3.6

We will continue to work to improve the local infrastructure in recognition that this in turn
supports a vibrant local economy. In particular, we will aim to use our resources more
effectively to improve highways, and minimise disruptions to business and consumers by
requiring utility companies and others to coordinate their activity when they are working in
Lambeth.

3.7

We will focus our work on crime and disorder issues affecting Lambeth: anti-social behaviour,
safe and responsible business practice, reducing re-offending and preventing violence and
supporting the victims of violence. These services are merged under a single Community
Safeguarding function and we are developing geographic teams within community
safeguarding to make reporting easier and prevention work more effective. Overall we will
focus on the high risk incidents that have the most impact on our residents and communities
and cause the greatest potential harm.
Housing Jobs and Investment

3.8

We aim to make sure that all residents live in properties that meet their housing needs and that
they can afford, regardless of who their landlord is. We are working with landlords to increase
the supply of good quality rented housing in Lambeth. The commitment to the upkeep and
improvement of our council housing, and the drive to meet the ‘Lambeth Housing Standard’ will
be the focus over the next four years as Lambeth Living, the ALMO which delivers much of
Lambeth’s social housing is brought back in-house.

3.9

The council will use the proceeds of growth to fund interventions in learning, skills and
employment and in growing our business base. We hope to add as much value as possible,
using our leverage and connections with voluntary / community organisations, schools /
colleges and businesses.

Page 17
3.10

As we support more people into work, we will improve outcomes for targeted priority individuals
and families as well as reducing demand for services/costs to the Council and public sector.

3.11

We are investing to support people to develop greater financial resilience so they can better
cope with changes in their financial circumstances. We are putting in place a range of activity
to support people who need it, including help to find work, getting the benefits they are entitled
to, and advice on budgeting.

3.12

The key risks identified in the December FPR are still relevant and outstanding and are
summarised below, including any changes from the previously detailed information.
Total Lambeth Resource Envelope

3.13

The bubble chart on the next page shows the total resources available to spend in Lambeth
across various functions for 2015/16. The spend for the Lambeth General Fund is further
broken down across the Outcome Panels. Broadly speaking, the other areas of spend map to
the priorities as follows; NHS Lambeth and CCG to Community Wellbeing, Police and Fire to
Neighbourhoods, Environment & Sustainability and Benefits, Schools and HRA to Housing,
Jobs & Investment.

Page 18

Page 19
4.

CONTEXT & ECONOMIC OUTLOOK – KEY RISKS

4.1

The key risks identified in the December FPR are still relevant and outstanding and are
summarised below, including any changes from the previously detailed information.
Welfare Reform

4.2

As highlighted in previous Finance Reviews the changes to welfare policy introduced by
Government in 2012 continue to have a real impact on residents and create cost pressures
and risks for the council. There are contingent sums set aside to mitigate some of those
pressures, but these cannot substitute for the full impact of reductions in household income
due to welfare benefit reductions. The following paragraph provides an update on the
previously reported position.

4.3

The early introduction of Universal Credit (UC) has the potential to impact severely as 40,000
working age benefit and credit claimants in Lambeth will be affected. DWP are rolling out UC in
tranches and we have been told informally that we will be in the final tranche of local
authorities who see UC introduced during the last quarter of the 15/16 financial year but this is
obviously subject to change. Pilots have shown that for those receiving benefit direct payments
and having to manage a single monthly payment in arrears, household budgeting difficulties
follow and arrears and debt will increase. The council is working with Department of Work and
Pensions (DWP) and LB Lewisham and LB Southwark to pilot “Universal Services Delivered
Locally” for new UC claimants which seeks to test the support needs of those claiming (and
seek to meet those needs). It was hoped that the results of the pilot (it concludes in September
2015) would inform a new funding settlement for LAs ahead of the introduction of UC so that
they can take steps to mitigate the budgeting difficulties and arrears but the earlier than
planned introduction of UC now calls into question whether the pilot will be used by DWP in
any meaningful way to determine need and funding.
Public Health

4.4

The December Finance Planning Report (FPR)provided an update on the Public Health
transfer to the Council in April 2013 and how the first two years of the Public Health ring-fenced
grant provided for growth of around 4% which equated to approximately £1m per year.
Better Care Fund

4.5

The December FPR set out how April 2015 marks the beginning of the Better Care Fund which
pools £3.8bn of resources between the NHS and Councils nationally and how Lambeth’s
Better Care Fund plan has been submitted and is one of only six local authority areas across
the country to be fully approved. The total allocation for Lambeth for 2015/16 is £26.4m. In
considering the December Financial Planning report the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
observed that NHS England had downgraded the forecast level of savings that may be
achieved through the Better Care Fund and recommended that the savings anticipated through
the model of integrated health and social care in Lambeth be reassessed in the light of this
statement. Officers will ensure that as the business case for the integrated model of social
care and health is developed with health partners that there is a full financial assessment of the
impact .
Care Act

4.6

Parts of the Care Act will be implemented in April 2015 and represent a major change
to the statutory basis of Adult Social Care. One of the most significant and well

Page 20
publicised areas of the Care Act which caps the contribution of individuals towards the
costs of their care to £72k will not be implemented until April 2016. The financial impact
of many aspects of the Care Act cannot be estimated with certainty as they depend on
people presenting to the Council to request a service. The most significant area of risk
identified for 2015/16 relates to carers where there is an increased emphasis to assess
carers for need and carers have been put on an equal footing with Adult Social Care
clients in terms of a right to receive a service to meet their need. The cost impact for
Lambeth is uncertain as although 20,000 people confirmed they were a carer in the
last census, the government provided funding for any increased cost is based on a
fraction of that number coming forward and being eligible for a very low direct payment.
The actual financial impact will only be known as carers present to the Council during
2015/16 and there is no way to confirm or deny that the government’s funding
assumptions are correct with any certainty. With regards to the care cap in 2016/17
onwards, modelling carried out on the number of self-funders in borough suggests that
there is unlikely to be a cost pressure to the Council when compared to the
government’s assessment of the number of self-funders in the borough. Another area
of financial risk is the requirement to provide independent advocates to people that
may have significant difficulty in being able to take part in their eligibility assessment
and for those involved in a safeguarding investigation.
Lambeth Living 2015/16

4.7

The December FPR set out how the Council has considered the options regarding the service
provided by Lambeth Living and believes there are strategic, financial and service advantages
to reintegrating housing management back into council services.
Temporary Accommodation

4.8

Temporary Accommodation is an existing high risk area. In spite of specific budget virements
from contingent budgets to support the service during 2014/15, demand remains high with
expenditure exceeding budget during the year and no signs that this will abate in 2015/16.

4.9

The main risks come from the impact of Welfare Reform, exacerbated by the fact that, in
London and other similar areas, this is becoming a sellers’ market, with landlords increasing
prices or even reclassifying their accommodation, knowing that councils have a statutory duty
to provide such accommodation.

4.10

Specific reserves set aside in both the HRA and General Fund have been utilised to assist in
transforming the service to meet the pressures referred to above or meet short term
requirements. The Council has statutory duties with regard to Temporary Accommodation and
the only way in which to deal with this issue in the long term is to ensure that citizens benefit
from a vibrant local economy whereby fewer are reliant on the provision of such
accommodation.
CCTV for Parking Enforcement

4.11

On 27 September 2013 the Government announced its intention to amend significant elements
of local authority parking policy, including the proposal to stop the use of CCTV for parking
enforcement.

Page 21
4.12

This risk was discussed in the July Financial Planning Report and estimated that a potential
£1.3m of income was at risk from the potential changes, but that final decision hadn’t yet been
made around possible exemptions that had been called for by the LGA.

4.13

The main issue concerning the banning of CCTV for parking was covered by Clause 38 of the
Deregulation Bill and was debated in Parliament on 4 November 2014, which has lead to an
amendment (Clause 39), which will allow for postal PCNs to be sent under the current
circumstances. However no changes have been made to the advised list of exemptions.

4.14

London Councils together with the British Parking Association and the GLA are continuing to
lobby the DCLG to try and get the original Clause removed or obtain more exemptions than are
currently available.

5.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

5.1

The Financial Management Strategy (FMS) for the period 2015/16 – 2017/18 is recommended
for adoption and included in Appendix 1. It sets out an overview of our approach to make the
best use of our financial resources to help achieve the Council’s vision and ambitions for the
Borough and maximise sustainable benefits for the people of Lambeth. The strategy focuses
on three key areas:





Building financial resilience within both the Council and its communities Developing cooperative strategies for resource allocation and funding strategies to
minimise our dependency on Central Government funding as well as driving local
economic growth and development.
Managing our assets – Developing strategies to maximise the strategic benefit of our
capital programme and explore alternative, innovative funding solutions.
Providing high quality financial management across the organisation – As part of
the Enabling Cluster the Finance Planning and Management group supports the
development and improvement of financial and budget management skills in service
managers within the Delivery and Commissioning Clusters and is ensuring the effective
implementation of Oracle R12.

Reserves and Balances: Background

5.2

The Reserves Strategy sets out the Council’s current approach to ensuring that the level,
purpose and planned use of its reserves are appropriate in the current financial climate. Our
overall approach is to use the financial strength of our balance sheet to help the Council
through a period of high risk caused by severe funding reductions and economic stagnation.

5.3

The graph below shows the relationship between the level of balances and reserves as a
percentage of net revenue for Lambeth and the other inner London Boroughs.

% of Net Revenue Expenditure

Page 22

120%

Inner London Boroughs - Total Reserves as a Percentage of Net Revenue
Expenditure 2013/14

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%

Total Reserves
Net Revenue
Expenditure

0%

r en
s
y rth on ich ea
et
am e
am eth ark ton te
s
sh mb thw ling ins amd aml ulh ackn swo ond enw hel
i
F
a
L
C
m
w
s
C
e
u
H nd of
L
I est
rH &
Le
Gr n &
a ty
So
we ith
o
W
W
i
o
C
gt
T rsm
in
s
e
n
m
Ke
m
Ha
Inner London Boroughs

5.4

Variations among levels of reserve in the Inner London Boroughs are partly a reflection of
different spending plans, priorities and local circumstances, but crucially are also a function of
differing perceptions of internal and external financial risks. As of 31 March 2014 Lambeth had
the second lowest level of reserves in comparison to 2013/14 net revenue expenditure of all
Inner London Boroughs.

5.5

Balances: The council held General Fund balances of £24.9m as of 31 March 2014. The
proposed 2015/16 budget includes a transfer from reserves of £2.4m, but this will be topped up
from the over-achievement of savings in 2016/17. The current General Fund monitor (see
paragraph 6.2) indicates a potential overspend of £4.6m, which, with the above-mentioned
transfer would reduce the balances to £17.9m, which is close to the recommended minimum
of 5% of net revenue budget. However, it is anticipated that the overall year-end position will
be brought back within budget by year-end.

5.6

The Strategic Director of Enabling (the Council’s s151 officer) has stated that ‘I have
consistently advised members that in my professional opinion the minimum level of balances
(i.e. unallocated reserves) that the Council needs to maintain to ensure financial stability, and
so provide a strong environment within which outcomes can be continuously improved, is 5%
and that the Council should plan to hold balances of approximately 10% of net revenue
expenditure.’ The current general fund balance of £24.9m represents 7.8% of net expenditure.
This allows the council to absorb unexpected reductions in resources and increases in
expenditure without increasing the burden on council tax payers. This also encourages longerterm financial planning to secure the council's future, rather than the short-termism of offering
one-off council tax reductions by depleting the General Fund.

5.7

Earmarked reserves: The total earmarked reserves balance at 31 March 2014 was £67.8m.
The council's strategy on earmarked reserves is to use them only to fund the specific service
pressures for which they were created. An annual review of all earmarked reserves is carried
out at year-end by the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Deputy Leader (Finance &

Page 23
Investment) to determine the appropriate level of each balance based on the best information
available at the time.

5.8

Many reserves are used to control the risk arising from factors at least in part outside the
Council’s control. For example, the Insurance Fund (£7.5m) is a cost effective way of
managing the unpredictable cost of damage to property; it also currently insulates the Council’s
revenue budgets against the on-going claims for asbestos-related illness going back decades
and often relating to property which the Council does not own. The Welfare Reform Risk
Reserve (£3.79m) has been set-aside to support one-off activity to help prepare people to cope
with the changes and to mitigate the potential service and financial pressures on the Council
that might arise.

5.9

Other reserves are designed to support the Council through a period of severe funding
shortages and high risk. For example, the Co-operative Investment Fund is used to assist in
the changing approach to how we deliver our services. This is fundamental if we and our
partner organisations are going to be able to ensure key outcomes are delivered in the future.
Current anticipated calls on the fund are summarised in the table below:-

Opening Position
Existing agreed calls on fund
Existing agreed repayments to fund
Existing agreed OBB calls on fund
Carried Forward Balance

2014/15
£000
8,857
-2,507
103
-3,749
2,704

2015/16
£000
2,704
-39
177
-3,276
-434

2016/17
£000
-434
-17
220
-700
-931

2017/18
£000
-931
260
-671

5.10

The current figures show that the CIF appears to run out during 2015/16. This reserve will be
reviewed at year end 2014/15 in line with final calls made upon it and if there is still a projected
shortfall this will be addressed as part of a wider review of reserves held.

5.11

Examples of using this funding to support the Council’s change include developing the
Community Hubs network and supporting the development of independent management
models, the development of cooperative parks and the Heritage and Arts programme to
support the feasibility of the borough archives.

5.12

In addition to the s151 Officer’s statutory assessment, the Deputy Leader (Finance &
Investment) actively reviews the reserves and balances held on the Council’s Balance Sheet
and presents them to both Corporate Committee and Cabinet members. The level of reserves
and balances will be reported to Corporate Committee in the draft and final statement of
accounts in June and September, and will be assessed as part of the Financial Planning
Reports reported to Cabinet and Council.

5.13

Provisions: In accounting terms, liabilities occur because of past decisions made by an
organisation which will then result in an obligation for the organisation to settle this in the future
with an outflow of money or provision of a service.

5.14

A provision is a specific type of liability but the exact amount of money or timing of settlement
is not known. Provisions are required to be recognised in the Council’s accounts in accordance
with proper accounting practice when the criteria for recognition are met. There is no discretion
in this recognition, or on the level of provisions held.

5.15

The Council held provisions totalling £12.9m as of 31 March 2014.

Page 24
Council Tax and NNDR Collection

5.16

Council Tax collection is anticipated to be slightly above last year’s collection rate of 94.5%
and nearer 94.7%. Cash Collection totalled £102.4m as at 31 December 2014 compared to
£123.7m due to date (final 2013/14 figures were £113.5m compared to £120.1m collectible).
This improvement in collection rate is taking place despite the localisation of Council Tax
Support (CTS).

5.17

The collection rate at the end of December 2014 for those residents in receipt of CTS and
paying some Council Tax is 66.8% and is a slightly ahead of the position at the same time last
year of 65.9%
Council Tax Collection - 2014-15 (YTD) - Target 95.0%

100.00%
90.00%
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

2013-14

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Profile 2014-15

5.18

For National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR), the collection rate for 2014/15 is expected to be
slightly above last year, at about 98.4% compared to 98.2%. Cash Collection totalled £110.1m
as at 31 December 14 compared to £129.7m due to date (final 2013/14 figures were £125.3m
compared to £127.6m collectable).

5.19

So there is some stability in collection rates of these two significant areas of business. More
generally, the council continues to seek improvement in its processes for collecting debt, such
as seeking pre-payment of services, and assuming macro-economic stability continues, we
might expect rates of collection to improve in 2015/16 to some extent across the board. We
also, through our Financial Resilience Strategy and Income and Debt Strategy, work across
the council to ensure we identify and intervene quickly where debt problems indicate actual or
emerging vulnerability.

6.

CURRENT POSITION

6.1

This section provides an update on the current financial position of the council, including
General Fund, the Housing Revenue Account and in relation to capital expenditure.
General Fund Position as of 31 December 2014

Page 25
6.2

The December 2014 Finance Monitor reported a potential forecast service overspend of
£8.5m. This is partially offset by an expected corporate items underspend of £3.9m leaving a
remaining shortfall of £4.6m. This position is following a number of virements from contingent
sums for Temporary Accommodation and No Recourse to Public Funds and the distribution of
the CIF balances for 2014/15.

6.3

The main areas of concern are in Adult Social Care – Mental Health (£800k over budget),
Physical Disabilities & Occupational Therapy (£860k over); Children’s Social Care - Children
Looked After (£2.6m over), Contracts & legal (£1.5m over); Communities, Housing and
Environment – Temporary Accommodation (£2m over). The Overview and Scrutiny Committee
recommended that a focus is placed on the expenditure on agency staff across the council.

6.4

The table below summarises the Council’s forecast position by cluster.

£000's

£000's

December
Forecast
Variance
£000's

20,768

20,893

126

0.6

Delivery

196,617

204,970

8,353

4.2

Enabling

53,245

52,845

(400)

(0.8)

Co-operative Business Development

9,390

9,807

417

4.4

No Recourse to Public Funds

4,323

4,876

552

12.8

552

-

(552)

-

29,936

26,036

(3,900)

(12.8)

314,830

319,427

4,596

1.5

Cluster

Commissioning

Corporate contingency (NRPF)
Corporate Items
Total

Annual
Budget

December
Forecast

%'age
Variance

2014/15 Housing Revenue Account Forecast as of 31 December 2014

6.5

The Housing Revenue Account budget, for 2014/15 is set to achieve a surplus of £0.3m as
well as a budgeted £2m contribution to reserves. This is to enable the HRA to continue to build
up a prudent level of reserves. The HRA balance as per audited accounts, as of 31 March
2013 was £8m.

6.6

The forecast surplus of £0.3m is mainly due to the impact of accounting for rental income

from tenants for week 53 of 2013/14 in 2014/15 as per audit advice.
6.7

The table below summarises the HRA forecast position.

Page 26

HRA
Cluster
Commissioning

Group
Better Quality Homes

Service
Central HRA Budgets
Partnerships and Commissioning
PFI
TMO's
Lambeth Living - Management Fee
Lambeth Living - Delegated Budgets
URH Residual Costs

Accommodation and Property
Business Growth and Regeneration

Hostels
Estate Regeneration

Total Commissioning
Delivery
Total Delivery
TOTAL HRA

7.

FY
FY
FY
Budget Forecast Variance
£000
£000
£000
(85,856) (86,127)
(271)
1,378
1,228
(150)
2,750
2,750
0
8,902
8,747
(155)
23,684 23,684
0
49,132 49,287
155
552
560
8
542
129
(413)
(2,187)
1,645
(542)

(2,244)
1,833
(410)

(57)
188
132

0

(281)

(281)

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16
Setting the 2015/16 Cash Limit

7.1

The cash limit for 2015/16 has been calculated by rolling forward the 2014/15 budget position,
(after removing any temporary in-year adjustments) and adjusting for previously agreed
savings brought forward, the newly agreed savings outlined in Appendix 3 and Corporate items
for the changes in identified cost pressures.

7.2

The below table shows the cash limits at panel level:

Panel
Community Wellbeing
Neighbourhoods, Environment &
Sustainability
Housing , Jobs & Investment
Enabling
Corporate Items
Total

7.3

Cost
Base
Pressures &
Proposed
Savings
Indicative Savings
Budget
b/fwd
Budget
(£'000)
(£'000)
(£'000) adjustments
(£'000)
(£’000)
2014/15
2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
166,926
- (14,781)
152,145 (20,452)
(1,000)
46,097
(7,675)
38,422
(7,200)
(127)
13,740
(1,165)
12,575
(1,020)
(185)
53,338
(3,000)
50,338
(3,000)
34,729
11,614
(8,755)
37,588
(1,900)
(2,000)
314,830
11,614 (35,376)
291,068 (33,572)
(3,312)

The below table shows the cash limits at cluster level:

Page 27

Base
Budget
(£'000)
Panel
Commissioning
Delivery
Enabling
Co-op Business Development
Corporate Items
Total

2014/15
19,584
196,767
53,206
9,362
35,912
314,830

Cost
Pressures &
Proposed
Savings
Indicative Savings
Budget
b/fwd
(£'000)
(£'000)
adjustments
(£'000)
(£’000)
2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
19,584
(800)
- (23,621)
173,146 (27,872)
(1,312)
(3,000)
50,206
(3,000)
9,362
11,614
(8,755)
38,771
(1,900)
(2,000)
11,614 (35,376)
291,068 (33,572)
(3,312)

7.4

It is important to note that the enabling cluster and Corporate Items in the above table are
different to the enabling figure in the previous table as the mapping used for the resource
envelopes for Outcome Panels use a different methodology to that used for the calculation of
the cluster budgets.

7.5

Further detail of activities contributing to the above savings and indicative figures for future
years can be found in the December FPR and Appendix3.

8.

CAPITAL
Capital Spend & Forecast

8.1

A Capital Investment Programme (“CIP”) totalling £423m for the financial years 2014/15 –
2016/17 was set by the Council in February 2014 reflecting the resources that were known to
be available at the time. The CIP is an amalgamation of both General Fund and Housing
Revenue Account capital schemes and is analysed to show how capital investment is spread
across the 3 areas of focus of the Outcome Panels as well as by Community Outcome. It also
shows where investment is supporting the entire organisation through Enabling projects.

8.2

Since the Financial Planning Report in December 2014, new information has resulted in
amendments to the programme including the addition of new projects and finalisation
adjustments for others. A small number of virements have also been necessary as
summarised at Appendix 4.

8.3

These amendments have resulted in a revised Capital Investment Programme for the current
year 2014/15 as at 31 December 2014 of £210m which includes HRA investment of £113m.

8.4

In the nine months to 31 December 2014 capital expenditure has totalled £126m against a
budget of £113m, which is £13m or 10% ahead of the year to date target.

8.5

Forecast spend by the end of the year currently stands at £206m against the full year budget of
£210m (1% under budget).
Maximising the impact of our capital investment

Page 28
8.6

The council is entering a new phase of capital investment. We are coming to the end of the
initial rationalisation of our property estate and while additional assets will continue to be
released through service transformation programmes, planned disposals over the next four
years will largely exhaust the pool of assets originally identified as suitable for disposal.

8.7

However, as our available capital receipts from asset disposal diminishes, we are instead
seeing a significant rise in income directly attributable to the substantial and exciting new build
private developments underway across the borough and particularly in the north. These
development income streams of s106 and Community Infrastructure Levy (“CIL”) will allow us
to secure key infrastructure improvements across the borough to support our community
outcomes.

8.8

The Council is currently preparing its strategic infrastructure plan to set out the infrastructure
that will be needed if the population of the borough continues to increase as predicted by the
GLA. The plan will cover all the different categories of infrastructure in the Regulation 123 list
such as Education, Transport, Health, Parks and open spaces, Sports and Leisure, Libraries
and community hubs and Public Realm as well as Employment training and Cultural facilities.

8.9

It will seek to confirm the infrastructure projects that will drive capital investment for the next 10
years and then look forward to the forecast requirements for the period up to 2032. It will
include an estimate of the potential cost of the infrastructure as well as an estimate of potential
funding including the likely income generated through development via the Community
Infrastructure Levy The plan will be an essential tool to support decisions around the allocation
of available CIL.

8.10

The development of the methodology for Cooperative Local Investment Plans (“CLIPS”) is also
underway. Whilst the strategic infrastructure work focuses on 75% of income from CIL, the
CLIPs will shape the priorities for the 25% of CIL that will be collected and retained locally.

8.11

Our challenge will be how to optimise these investment opportunities, enlarging and revitalising
our estate whilst at the same time ensuring that the council is not left facing an ever increasing
cost burden of maintenance and lifecycle replacement of these new assets. Our ever shrinking
revenue resource will not be able to accommodate this additional burden unaided

8.12

Through the Resource Allocation process this year, the Outcome Panels have specifically
sought to identify opportunities to reduce or even eradicate revenue costs wherever possible
rather than increasing them. A number of capital initiatives are now planned to maximise
returns from particular assets and underpin revenue savings proposals. These comprise:






Cemeteries and crematoria: an investment of £5.015m is planned to create new
burial spaces over the next 5 years across Lambeth, Streatham and West Norwood
cemeteries in order to meet future demand. This will generate additional annual income
across the service of £918k per year.
Waste contract vehicles: an investment of £6.4m (at 2014/15 prices) is planned in
order to capitalise the asset renewal charges which are currently included in the Veolia
revenue contract. This would save at least £920k per year of revenue cost for the 7
remaining years of the current contract, starting in 2014/15 and indexed from 2015/16.
It is then expected that significant revenue savings will be made on re-tendering in
2020/21.
Street lighting energy reduction measures: an investment of £6.4m is planned to
implement energy saving changes to street lighting in Lambeth. The installation of a
Centrally Controlled Management system (“CMS”) will allow the council to remotely
control the brightness (dimming) as well as the hours of operation (trimming) of the

Page 29



8.13

lights. In addition, the replacement of existing bulbs with LED technology will save on
energy costs and reduce carbon output. These changes will mean revenue savings of
£800k per year.
Shared ownership for people with disabilities in Lambeth: an investment of £250k
is planned in a pilot scheme to support younger people with disabilities to part purchase
their own property through shared ownership. The investment is expected to help
secure up to 10 units. Future revenue savings will come from either moving people onto
less intensive forms of support or else avoiding their admission into more intensive
support than they actually need. It is expected a cumulative saving of £130k can be
realised by Year 3.

Two Investments of revenue funding from the capital reserve are also planned as follows:




Review of Controlled Parking Zones: an investment of £600k is planned in studies to
support the Review of Controlled Parking Zones in order to determine whether changes
or additional zones are required. This will start to address concerns raised by residents
over local issues such as disturbance from the night-time economy or parking stress in
areas surrounding existing zones. The analysis will also determine the cost of
implementing changes and the levels of associated income and hence the potential for
future revenue savings in the parking service.
Libraries and Lifelong Learning endowment: this innovative investment of £10m in
an endowment will generate a revenue stream of £400k per year to support community
libraries in the borough. This in turn will allow savings of £800k to be made in the
council’s library service by 2017/18.

Asset Management Strategy

8.14

The council is currently refreshing its approach to asset management in order to ensure that
we optimise the value of our existing resources.

8.15

We are now developing our asset management strategies to ensure:








8.16

that we maximise the benefits from our Investment and Opportunity Strategy,
generating optimal public value from our assets;
That we secure ongoing capital investment in the borough in a world of rising property
values but shrinking public sector resources;
that we capitalise on the opportunities provided by the wider public sector asset base of
the borough through further integration with key partners such as the NHS and the
Metropolitan Police, sharing assets, reducing revenue costs and improving community
access to services;
that we maximise the impact of the new Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) income to
further our critical infrastructure needs;
that we facilitate direct community input into capital investment decisions at
neighbourhood level including through the introduction of the Co-operative Local
Investment Plans (CLIPs), and
that we continue to support and refine mechanisms to facilitate community asset
transfers or cooperative models of asset management.

In reviewing the December Financial Planning report the Overview and scrutiny Committee
recommended that benchmark criteria should be developed against which returns on capital
investment can be evaluated; and should consider both commercial and community benefits.
This will be considered by the Asset Investment Management Group and recommendations
made to the Asset Management Cabinet Advisory Panel.

Page 30
Forecast Disposals for the 4 years 2014/15 to 2017/18

8.17

The forecast for non RTB asset disposals for the 4 year period of 2014/15 to 2017/18 has been
revised to a total of £74.9m. The detail of this forecast can be found in Appendix 7 and is
summarised in the table below:
Revised Forecast of Non-RTB Asset Disposals 2014/15 – 2017/18
2014/15
£m

2015/16
£m

2016/17
£m

2017/18
£m

Total
£m

Other assets

13.6

17.6

11.0

6.4

48.6

Short life assets

7.8

18.5

0

0

26.3

Forecast

21.4

36.1

11.0

6.4

74.9

2014/15 Disposals update

8.18

Non RTB asset disposals for the 2014/15 year to 31st December 2014 have raised £9.7m
capital receipts as summarised in the table below:
Non RTB Asset Disposals to date 2014/15
Disposals
Shortlife Assets
Other Assets
Total Receipts YTD

£m
6.7
3.0
9.7

8.19

With substantial additional sales planned before the end of the year, the total 2014/15 target of
£21.4m is expected to be met.

8.20

In addition, council housing stock properties to the value of £17.7m have been sold under
Right to Buy legislation over the period 1st April 2014 to 31st December 2014. Of this total
receipt, the council is permitted to retain £1.0m as a contribution to the council’s single capital
pot and a further £13.5m as Recycled RTB receipts for reinvestment in replacement housing,
subject to stringent criteria.

8.21

Key non-residential disposals made so far this year include:




6-10 Wynne Road (£1.3m) ring-fenced to Your New Town Hall programme;
96 Riggindale Road (£1.2m) ring-fenced to the co-operative Libraries and Community
hubs programme; and
Shortlife (various properties) (£6.7m).

Overview of the 4 year Capital Investment Programme (“CIP”) 2014/15 to 2017/18

8.22

The Capital Investment Programme as at 31 December 2014 stood at £484.6m for the 3 years
2014/15 – 2016/17. Since that date, further amendments have been made to the programme
including the addition of new projects. In addition, at their meeting on 15 January, AMCAP
recommended the funding of a further 2 additional capital projects as follows:

Page 31




Waste contract vehicles: Funding has been earmarked through the Resource
Allocation process for capital investment in order to capitalise the asset renewal
charges which are currently included in the Veolia revenue contract. AMCAP
recommended the drawdown of the first year’s charge of £920k for 2014/15 into the
CIP.
ICT drawdown: £600k has been allocated to fund the drawdown on the first tranche of
projects for 2015/16 from the pipeline. This Enabling investment will fund the refresh of
ICT systems and equipment which is necessary every few years for operational stability
and to remain PSN compliant.

8.23

AMCAP also recommended revenue investment from the capital reserve of £350k in feasibility
and option development work for the Brixton Central regeneration programme as well as coordination of the wider Future Brixton portfolio.

8.24

The capital sums have now been included and the CIP rolled forward to incorporate the
planned investment for 2017/18. Appendix 5 shows the analysis of the working CIP for the next
3 years 2015/16 to 2017/18 which totals £276m while Appendix 6 demonstrates how this 3
year CIP will be financed. This planned investment includes £196m in relation to the HRA.

8.25

The total planned capital investment over the 4 years 2014/15 to 2017/18 comprises those
projects formally incorporated into the CIP together with planned investments totalling £77m
held in the capital pipeline. The total for those 4 years is now planned to be £564m. This target
includes £324m in relation to the HRA.
Looking forward: future Capital investment

8.26

The major areas of planned spend over the next 3 years include:


Future Brixton The Future Brixton programme is a major Council-led regeneration
programme, including Brixton Central, Your New Town Hall and Somerleyton Road.
The overall programme should see over £250m of investment in the town centre and
delivery of 750 new homes (40% of which will be affordable) and will also bring about a
step-change in the level of employment in Brixton. Excluding the new Council offices,
the plans would bring about 23,000sqm of new commercial space (including retail,
workspace and hotel), and with it around 1,000 additional jobs to Brixton. An
employment and skills plan is being developed to make sure as many local people as
possible benefit. An economic vision is also being commissioned to help shape the
nature of the employment space on offer.



Brixton Central The draft Brixton Central masterplan is now in its final stages of
completion and work has begun in earnest on the delivery strategy to bring
development forward so that a procurement process can start before the end of the
year.
A project manager has been appointed to lead the implementation of works with
landowners to buildings in Electric Avenue and Atlantic Road funded by the £1.95m
Heritage Lottery Fund Townscape Heritage Initiative grant together with £650k match
funding from the Council. A further bid has been submitted to the GLA to implement
public realm improvements to Atlantic Avenue and Electric Avenue and prepare a
strategy for the Market. A decision from the GLA is expected in February.

Page 32
The council is currently implementing its “meanwhile use” proposals on the site
previously occupied by the Pope’s Road Car Park, with the temporary car park
constructed and opened just before Christmas. The first tranche of shipping containers
have arrived on the balance of the site and these are now being fitted out with the help
of 12 apprentices from Lambeth college. They should be up and running in the next 4 to
6 weeks offering a series of creative employment spaces, events and pop up retail and
restaurant activity. There is also a proposal to relocate the Impact Hub there when the
refurbishment of the Town Hall commences.


Somerleyton Road This is a £115m housing-led mixed-use scheme which includes
the proposed relocation of the Ovalhouse Theatre. A planning application will be
submitted in June 2015 for 265 general needs homes (40% of which are at target rent
level) and 66 extra care homes (all at target rent). The scheme is being delivered in
partnership with Brixton Green and Ovalhouse Theatre. It will include a new home for
Ovalhouse, a new children’s centre and nursery, along with a chef’s training school and
a convenience store. The latest masterplan includes two floors above Ovalhouse
theatre which could provide a permanent Brixton base for the branding agency Livity.
The project is a Council-led development and will be funded through Council borrowing
against the revenue income generated from the 331 new homes. External funding has
already been secured from the GLA (£7.8m) as well as £2.8m towards the Extra Care
provision from the Mayor’s Covenant 2011/15 programme. Further funding applications
have been submitted to the Arts Council and the Heritage Lottery Fund. Ovalhouse will
be contributing the value of their existing site in Kennington. The Somerleyton Road
CPO 2014 was agreed at Cabinet in November 2014 with land assembly costs
including the buyback of 16-22 Somerleyton Road and the relocation of the Angela
Davies depot.



Your New Town Hall is the major development of a 2.5 acre site in the heart of Brixton.
It will see the current town hall carefully restored and improved with better spaces for
the whole community including an area to support local businesses. It will deliver 194
new homes, 720 construction jobs and apprenticeships for local people and up to
14,000 sqm of new, fit for purpose customer facilities and offices.
The project is self-financing using the value of the surplus office sites as the Council
reduces from fourteen to a far more efficient two - one of which will be a new energy
efficient office and customer access centre. These reductions will save at least £4.5m
a year just in running costs, but will also improve efficiency in the way the Council
operates. This rationalisation of office space is already being supported by moving all
office staff to more flexible and efficient working in early 2015.



Regeneration of Waterloo The Council is in discussion with a number of land owners
and developers across the Waterloo area to shape and bring forward regeneration. The
council is still waiting for the decisions in relation to the redevelopment of Shell and
Elizabeth House. The council has resolved to grant planning permission for these
developments but they have been subject to legal challenge in the case of Shell, while
in the case of Elizabeth House, the Secretary of State is considering whether or not the
application should be called in for determination. It is hoped these will be resolved
shortly but there is no confirmation of the timescale as yet.
The development of detailed designs continues for the public realm improvements to
Westminster Bridge Road which will be funded with £3m of section 106 funding.
Discussions are ongoing with TFL regarding the move of part of the IMAX roundabout

Page 33
and the creation of a new public space and the planning application for major
improvements to Archbishops Park will be submitted by the end of January.


Regeneration of the Vauxhall and Nine Elms areas The Council continues to grant
planning permission for major development in this area, although detailed issues of
delivery, especially in relation to rights of light mean that further negotiations are
required by developers to bring forward their developments. Work continues on
redevelopment of the Albert Embankment with Damien Hirst scheduled to open his
gallery in the early summer. Network Rail are working through a strategy of
improvements throughout the arches that will increase the variety of uses and improve
connectivity throughout the area.
Working with Tfl, the Council recently completed the consultation in relation to the
removal of the gyratory at Vauxhall and the remodelling of the bus station.. Early
indications are that there is strong support for the proposals, paving the way for TfL to
agree a business case for the next stage of the design of the project. In the meantime,
the main site,(“ the island site”) has been marketed and it is understood that a new
development partner will be announced shortly.
The Transport Works Act for the Northern Line Extension was approved on the 13th
October 2014 but is now the subject of a legal challenge. This will delay the start of the
project, even if ultimately the challenge is quashed.



New Homes Bonus £2.9m of funding was secured through the New Homes Bonus. A
programme of small scale capital projects was agreed for the borough’s 6 town centres
including Waterloo which will be implemented in partnership with the Business
Improvement Districts (“BiDS”). Agreements will be signed shortly enabling delivery to
commence from April.



Myatt’s Field North estate regeneration This PFI scheme commenced in 2013 and is
part-way through a 5 year construction and refurbishment programme. A close
partnership between the council, local residents and Regenter, the project has already
delivered 172 refurbished homes and is close to completing half of the planned 808
new build homes. To date, 130 council properties have already been reprovided
together with 150 (for sale) and 100 (shared ownership) new properties handed over.
The new build phase is on target to be complete in 2017 together with new streets, park
and play areas. Following construction and refurbishment, Regenter will manage all the
council houses and community spaces for 25 years.



Regenter aims to employ local residents for 50% of the jobs on the project. They are
offering training opportunities with positions as management trainees, apprenticeships
and mentoring placements with consortium partners.



Primary and Secondary expansion – a total of £76m is included within the CIP for
the next 3 years 2015/16 – 2017/18 to fund the expansion of Primary and Secondary
schools to provide 2,415 new places (equivalent to 11.5 new forms of entry). This
includes £53m of Basic Needs Funding and Targeted Basic Needs Funding together
with £2.5m s106 monies.

Feasibility studies are currently underway for potential Secondary expansion
projects. Primary Expansion projects in progress include:

Page 34
o
o
o
o
o
o
o



Paxton Primary (Brixton): rebuild of the existing 1FE school into a new 3FE
school to provide 420 additional places
Sudbourne Primary (Brixton): expansion across a split site from 1.5 FE to
3FE to provide 315 additional places
St John’s (CofE) Primary (Norwood): rebuild of the existing 1FE school into a
new 3FE School to provide 420 additional places
St Leonard’s Primary (Streatham): expansion from 1FE to 2FE to provide 210
additional places
Woodmansterne Primary (Streatham): expansion from 2FE to 4FE to provide
420 additional places
Telferscot Primary incl. Teferscot road and New park road (Clapham):
expansion across a split site from 1FE to 4FE to provide 630 additional places
Glenbrook Primary (Clapham and Stockwell): expansion from 2FE to 3FE
providing a further 210 places. This project is being funded by the EFA under
the PSPB programme.

SEN expansion – a total of £13m is included within the CIP for the next 3 years
2015/16 – 2017/18 to fund SEN expansion and to bring places back into the Borough.
This includes £1.4m Targeted Basic Needs Funding. SEN expansion projects in
progress include:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Michael Tippett School (Coldharbour): refurbishment and expansion
providing 20 additional places
Kennington PRU and Wyvil ASD (Oval): refurbishment and expansion
providing 45 additional ASD places
Turney School (Thurlow): expansion to provide 15 post 16 ASD places
Bonneville, Crown Lane, Archbishop Sumner and Lark Hall: resource base
expansion to provide an additional 45 places overall
Landsdowne Special School(Ferndale): refurbishment and expansion
providing 10 additional places. This project is being partly funded by the EFA
under the PSPB programme.
Allen Edwards Primary School (Clapham and Stockwell): expansion to
include a 15 pupil SEN provision. This project is being partly funded by the EFA
under the PSPB programme.
NAS/Vanguard: the Borough is actively supporting the provision of a new
special needs school for NAS / Vanguard with the sourcing of a site. The school
will be EFA funded and provide a further 78 SEN places in the Borough.

Further planned projects include an Early Years Assessment Centre and Sensory
Resource space (HIVI).


Highways – Over the next 3 years capital investment in highways will include:
o
o
o
o
o

150 Carriageway renewals and 225 Footway renewals;
Removal of mounds in Vauxhall Pleasure Gardens by April 2015;
Introduction of a 24hr CPZ in the Bonnington area in Vauxhall by April 2015;
Full review through a feasibility study of the Controlled Parking Zones in the
Borough over next two years, with the introduction of any new parking zones
and operations this review determines to follow in 2017/18;
Implementation of 20MPH restrictions across the borough (signs and lines only)
in 2015/16;

Page 35
o
o

Implementation of physical measures required to reduce speed to 20MPH in
2016/17; and
Implementation of Neighbourhood Enhancement Programme from 2015/16 to
2016/17.



Coburg Crescent Day centre Work is underway to build a new, fit-for-purpose
Resource Centre building in Coburg Crescent which will release two other existing Day
Centre sites. This will allow the council to deliver a higher quality and more joined up
standard of care and a more personalised approach to meet the complex needs of an
increased number of service users. The centre will be able to offer a wider range of
activities and also enable the development of 8 one bed council flats dedicated for
adults with learning difficulties. The flats will be for permanent accommodation as well
as offering short term respite. The anticipated completion date is October 2016.



Housing investment within the HRA – The Housing capital programme is primarily
managed by Lambeth Living with the exception of Private Sector Housing and disabled
facilities grant funded schemes. The investment for 2015/16 is budgeted at £148m with
the primary object being to complete the programme to bring the Borough’s dwellings
up to the Lambeth Housing Standard (LHS) which is above the Decent Homes
Standard. Within the £148m budget, approximately £90m is targeted directly at the
Lambeth Housing Standard (LHS), with other amounts covering Long Cycle Voids
(£760k), Technical Services (£40m), Health & Safety (£2m) and Other Improvements
(£2m). The capital programme has also embarked on a major initiative to improve
sheltered housing schemes which will see over £12m spent over the next two financial
years.



Affordable Housing investment. The Council is exploring a number of different
strategies to maximise the delivery of new affordable homes within the borough. On
Lollard Street the Council has negotiated via a s106 agreement to deliver 70 homes at
Council rent levels, 19 private sale and a new nursery. The new homes and the new
nursery will be constructed by the private sector partner, significantly reducing the risk
profile to the Council and increasing the speed at which the new homes and facility can
be built. The profit from the 19 private sale homes will be reinvested by the Council in
delivering more affordable homes.
This model is being explored on a number of different sites, including those where the
new homes could provide an essential catalyst to the wider regeneration of the
neighbourhood. A further opportunity is to allocate Right to Buy receipts to such
agreements, therefore enabling 30% more homes to be built as a result.

Further medium-term Housing investment within the HRA 2018/19 to 2021/22

8.27

Over the next 3 years (2015/16 to 2017/18), the council will be investing in improving its
existing housing stock as well as facilitating the construction of 1,000 new homes at council
rent. £196m of HRA investment is already captured within the CIP whilst an additional annual
£15m is earmarked for investment in affordable housing. In addition, the Council has recently
received confirmation of new funding for Decent Homes of £23m which is expected to be
available during 2015/16. This additional sum will bring the total planned investment in HRA
housing stock over the next 3 years to £234m.

8.28

Affordable Housing investment. The Council is exploring a number of different strategies to
maximise the delivery of new affordable homes within the borough including new build
developments on small sites and subsidised rent levels of Registered Providers.

Page 36
8.29

On Lollard Street the Council has negotiated via a s106 agreement to deliver 70 homes at
Council rent levels, 19 private sale and a new nursery. The new homes and the new nursery
will be constructed by the private sector partner, significantly reducing the risk profile to the
Council and increasing the speed at which the new homes and facility can be built. The profit
from the 19 private sale homes will be reinvested by the Council in delivering more affordable
homes.

8.30

This model is being explored on a number of different sites, including those where the new
homes could provide an essential catalyst to the wider regeneration of the neighbourhood. A
further opportunity is to allocate Right to Buy receipts to such agreements, therefore enabling
30% more homes to be built as a result.

8.31

Housing Investment 2018/19 – 2021/22. In the medium term, the council is proposing to bring
forward the regeneration of 6 estates alongside the investment of £34m annually in lifecycle
maintenance of other housing stock. To facilitate this, some site assembly is already underway.
In addition, rationalisation of the Sheltered Housing schemes in accordance with the Older
People’s Housing Strategy will see schemes brought up to the high standard needed to ensure
a range of care and living choices for our older residents. The implementation of longer term
strategies around the type and use of temporary accommodation will also b a key feature.
Treasury Management

8.32

Treasury Management is inextricably linked to the Council’s finances in general and the capital
programme in particular. Appendix 9 sets out the proposed Treasury Management Strategy,
which has been updated by reference to the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury
Management and Prudential Borrowing.

8.33

The Local Government Act 2003 and its subordinate legislation require the Council to pay over
to the DCLG a proportion of capital receipts from the sale of properties. This legislation is often
referred to as “pooling”. However the guidance does permit the Council to avoid this
requirement for any housing receipts arising from disposals other than right to buy sales if it
reinvests these receipts in either affordable housing or regeneration projects. The mechanism
for doing this is to identify a pool of such schemes, known as the Total Capital Allowance
(TCA), and then set any eligible capital receipts against this pot. As this is done at the highest
level, there is no direct link between any individual receipt and specific schemes. To implement
this requirement, schemes have been identified in the proposed capital programme as either
affordable housing or regeneration projects.

8.34

The TCA for 2015/16 arising from this calculation is £294.7m. It is recommended that Council
adopt this figure as the legislation requires the decision to be endorsed in order to avoid a
pooling liability.

8.35

The Council is also required to adopt the Minimum Revenue Provision policy as set out in
Appendix 8.

9.

STATEMENT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF ENABLING (THE COUNCIL’S S151
OFFICER) PURSUANT TO S25 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2003

9.1

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) to
report on the robustness of the budget estimates and adequacy of the planned reserves when

Page 37
Council Tax is being set. Members are well informed of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA),
as it appears elsewhere on the agenda for Cabinet in February.

9.2

I am satisfied that the budget calculations are robust and that the budget takes account of
liabilities and financial risks, and that, although the Council plans to draw down reserves to
support targeted investment in the changes and savings needed, it will not rely on withdrawals
from reserves to meet recurrent revenue commitments.

9.3

The proposals within this report form part of a 3-year strategy with a balanced position, with
some headroom, for the first two years. The strategy will need to be rolled forward for 2017/18
and beyond, in the context of forthcoming national elections and the Spending Review
anticipated later this year. Members have been advised of the Council’s financial position. In
forming my statement of the robustness of the budget estimates and adequacy of planned
reserves I have reviewed this in detail.

9.4

In consideration of this budget overall, I would also draw the attention of members to the fully
funded and financed capital programme discussed in section 8 above. The programme was
reviewed in 2014/15 in the July and December Financial Planning Reports to ensure its
affordability and continued alignment with organisational priorities. Members will therefore
have formal opportunities to consider the programme in the same way in 2015/16.

9.5

I consider that current levels of unallocated reserves remain strong and contribute to the
Council’s sound financial position. Further detail can be found in the Reserves and Balances
Strategy as set out in paragraphs 5.2 to 5.15 of this report.

9.6

In determining the target range of balances and by way of a high level initial policy on reserves
and balances the key factors that should be taken into account are:
An extensive cost reduction programme

9.7

The Council is moving into a period of uncertainty, effectively only being able to plan with any
certainty for 2015/16, as the provisional settlement figures for the following two years will be
published in December 2015 as part of the Spending Review. In the context of having to
deliver significant savings (an additional £36.9m in 2015/16 alone) and the forthcoming
national elections it is entirely appropriate and prudent to ensure there are sufficient resources
available to manage its services through this period of organisational change.
Risks Inherent in Budgeting

9.8

Whilst budgets are calculated on a most likely basis they are by definition estimates and are
subject to in year price and volume variances; a small percentage variance of only 1%
represents a variance of more than £3m on our general fund net revenue budget.
Local Government Benchmarking

9.9

The table in paragraph 5.3 to this report includes a graph which shows that, as of 31 March
2014, Lambeth had the second lowest level of reserves/balances in comparison to 2013/14 net
revenue expenditure of all Inner London Boroughs.
Overall Budgetary/Cost Control History

Page 38
9.10

The evidence of the last three completed financial years, and forecasts this year, suggests that
the authority is capable of containing expenditure within agreed budgets, notwithstanding the
significant risks set out by way of this report.
Unexpected Events

9.11

Recent economic events have highlighted the need to hold significant reserves to create the
financial cushion that enables changes to services to be implemented in a structured fashion.
To date sound financial management and planning have insulated the authority from such
unforeseen events, but with the current levels of economic uncertainty no complete
assurances could ever be provided that this will continue to be the case.

9.12

My professional view is that Council Tax increases should not normally be set significantly
below the level of inflation. The 2014 Autumn Statement shows forecast levels of CPI inflation
of 1.2% (2015), 1.7% (2016) and 2.0% (2017). Section 2 sets out the 3 year savings target for
2015/16 to 2017/18 totalling £90.4m. Whilst it is acknowledged that an increase in Council Tax
of 2% or above would trigger a referendum, failing to make any increase at all permanently
reduces the tax base and makes no contribution to the deficit. Should an increase of 1.99% be
applied in both 2015/16 and 2016/17 the funding shortfall would be reduced by £1.8m and
£1.9m respectively.

9.13

I will report further to members on the approach to setting a balanced 2016/17 budget by way
of the Financial Planning Report in 2015. We will be developing the cooperative commissioning
approach to improve our ability to target reducing resources to achieving the highest priority
outcomes, given the likelihood of continuing public sector austerity for the foreseeable future
The immediate challenge is to deliver significant savings of £36.9m in 2015/16 as detailed in
this report, and planning for a further £26.6m and £26.9m in the following two years.

10.

FINANCE

10.1

This report concerns the Council’s overall financial position with a particular focus 2015/16. It
commits the Council to a new revenue budget for 2015/16 – with a 1.99% increase in the
Lambeth element of the Council Tax – and a revised Capital Programme of £276.1m for the
years 2015/16 to 2017/18.

11.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

11.1

The Council has a duty to maintain a balanced budget throughout the year and, accordingly,
members are required to regularly monitor the Council’s financial position in accordance with
section 28 of the Local Government Act 2003. In considering the Council’s financial strategy for
2015/16, members will need to balance the proposed level of expenditure in discretionary
areas of service provision against that required to ensure that the Council complies with its
statutory duties.

11.2

By virtue of section 25, Local Government Act 2003, when the Council is making the
calculation of its budget requirement, it must have regard to the report of the Strategic Director
of Enabling (SDE) as to the robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of the
calculations and the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves. It is essential, as a matter of
prudence, that the financial position continues to be closely monitored. In particular, members

Page 39
must satisfy themselves that sufficient mechanisms are in place to ensure both that savings
are delivered and that new expenditure is contained within the available resources.
Accordingly, any proposals put forward must identify the realistic measures and mechanisms
to produce those savings.

11.3

In reaching decisions on these matters, members are bound by the general principles of
administrative law. Lawful discretions must not be abused or fettered and all relevant
considerations must be taken into account. No irrelevant considerations may be taken into
account, and any decision made must not be such that no reasonable authority, properly
directing itself, could have reached. Members must also balance the interests of service users
against those who contribute to the Council’s finances. Monies may not be expended
thriftlessly and the full resources available to the Council must be deployed to their best
advantage. Members must also act prudently and in a business-like manner at all times.

11.4

In considering the advice of officers, and the weight to be attached to that advice, members
should have regard to the personal duties placed upon the SDE as Chief Finance Officer. The
Chief Finance Officer is required by Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and by the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 to ensure that the Council’s budgeting, financial
management, and accounting practices meet relevant statutory and professional requirements.
In the event that the Council’s overall financial position worsens considerably during the course
of 2015/16, the SDE will need to have regard to the statutory obligations which are placed on
him personally when deciding on any particular actions to be recommended to members to
address his concerns.

11.5

Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies at any time to a Member of a
local authority or a Member of a committee or sub-committee of a local authority if, at that time,
a sum in respect of community charge, or a sum in respect of Council tax has become payable
by the member and has remained unpaid for at least two months.

11.6

If a Member to whom Section 106 applies is present at a meeting of the authority, the Cabinet,
or a committee or sub-committee of the authority or the Cabinet, at which any of the following
matters is the subject of consideration:




any calculation required by Chapters III, IV or IVA of the 1992 Act i.e. budget
requirement, tax base and tax, or
any recommendation, resolution or other decision which might affect the making of any
such calculation, or
the exercise of any functions in relation to the administration, collection and
enforcement of community charge or Council tax

The Member shall as soon as practicable after its commencement disclose the fact that this
section applies to her/him and shall not vote on any question with respect to that matter.

11.7

If or to the extent that any matter listed above is the responsibility of the Cabinet, no member of
the Cabinet to whom Section 106 applies shall take any action or discharge any function with
respect to that matter.

11.8

If a Member fails to comply with the requirement to disclose the fact that Section 106 applies
and accordingly not to vote then they shall be liable to prosecution by the Director of Public
Prosecutions which carries a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale.

11.9

In certain circumstances the chair of the meeting may be under an obligation to refuse to count
the vote of a Member who has declared that Section 106 applies to him/her, yet still voted.

Page 40
However, the chair would have to be fully satisfied that the declaration was beyond question. In
relation to the non-payment of community charge or Council tax the person most likely to have
the best information as to whether the section applies to them is the individual concerned. If a
Member declares an interest in terms of Section 106, as is their duty if the Section applies,
they will disqualify themselves from voting and any attempted vote cannot be counted.

11.10 In the event of a Member failing to disclose such an interest, and even though the Chair may
have good grounds for believing that the Member is disabled by interest, nevertheless the chair
should not refuse to accept a vote by that Member. However, the SDE will also be in a position
to verify whether any particular Member is under a Section 106 duty and if a situation arises
whereby the Member in question fails to declare an interest in terms of Section 106, the Chair
is under an obligation to take account of the information provided by the SDE.

11.11 Prior to any meeting at which any of the matters referred above are to be considered, the SDE,
or her/his representative, will contact all Members who are, in her/his opinion, in a position
where Section 106 applies. The SDE will carry out a further check on the position prior to the
meeting and will ensure that the Chair is informed at or before the commencement of the
meeting.

11.12 Once the Chair is in possession of that information the Chair should indicate to the meeting
that Section 106 applied to a Member or Members present, based on information provided by
the SDE. It will then be for the individual Members concerned to approach officers from the
Finance Department to clarify the position, if necessary. If the position as set out in the
information provided by the Finance Department remains unchanged, then the Chair is under
an obligation to refuse to count the vote of that Member. The fact that a Member who is
disabled by interest has taken part in the consideration of the report and voted on it does not
render unlawful the decision of the Committee or Council.

11.13 The Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules, as reproduced in Part 3 of the Council’s
Constitution, set out the involvement of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee in the budgetmaking process and provide, inter alia, that having considered the report of the Overview &
Scrutiny Committee, the Cabinet, if it considers it appropriate, may amend their proposals
before submitting them to the full Council for consideration. The Cabinet is also required to
report to Council on how it has taken into account any recommendations from the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee.

11.14 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 sets out the public sector equality duty, i.e. that all public
bodies are under an obligation to have ‘due regard’ to eliminating unlawful discrimination,
advancing equality and fostering good relations in the contexts of age, disability, gender
reassignment, pregnancy, and maternity, marriage and civil partnership, race, religion or belief,
sex and sexual orientation.

11.15 Section 149 (1)(b) of the Act states that: a public authority must, in the exercise of its functions,
have due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. Part of the duty to have “due
regard” where there is disproportionate impact will be to take steps to mitigate the impact and
the Council must demonstrate that this has been done, and/or justify the decision, on the basis
that it is a proportionate means of achieving a legitimate aim. Accordingly, there is an
expectation that a decision maker will explore other means which have less of a
disproportionate impact.

11.16 The Equality Duty must be complied with before and at the time that a particular policy is under
consideration or decision is taken – that is, in the development of policy options, and in making

Page 41
a final decision. A public body cannot satisfy the Equality Duty by justifying a decision after it
has been taken.

11.17 Paragraph 12

of this report details the consultation undertaken to date. The following
principles of consultation were set out in a recent High Court case. First, a consultation had to
be at a time when proposals were still at a formative stage. Second, the proposer had to give
sufficient reasons for any proposal to permit of intelligent consideration and response. Third,
adequate time had to be given for consideration and response, and finally, the product of
consultation had to be conscientiously taken into account in finalising any statutory proposals.
The process of consultation had to be effective and looked at as a whole it had to be fair.

11.18 Further guidance on meaningful consultation has been given in the recent decision of the
Supreme Court in the case of R (on the application of Moseley v London Borough of Haringey
[2014] UKSC 56. Where there is a duty to consult imposed by statute, then in addition to the
common law duty set out at 1.18 above, there is an additional duty to ensure proper public
participation in the local authority’s decision-making process. Meaningful participation in these
circumstances required that those consulted be provided with an outline of any realistic
alternatives. In the absence of a specific statutory provision, reference to alternative options
will be required where this is necessary in order for the consultees to express meaningful
views on the proposals. The recent decision in the case of R (Robson) v Salford City Council
[2015] EWCA Civ 6 clarifies that the requirements for a lawful consultation vary according to
the particular circumstances of the proposal under consideration but the general principals of
fairness must be applied.

11.19 Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 extends the Council with what is known as a general power
of competence, in short, a power to do anything that individuals generally may do, for the
benefit or otherwise of the authority, its area or persons resident or present in its area and
subject to restrictions/limitations imposed by other statutes. The general power of competence
includes a power to charge for services provided the requirements of section 3 of the Localism
Act are observed, namely: 1) that the service provided is discretionary; 2) that the user agrees
to the service being provided; and 3) that there is no other power to charge for the service in
question, including that contained at section 93 of the LGA 2003. The exercise of this power is
subject to a duty to secure that, taking one financial year with another, the income from
charges does not exceed the costs of the service provided.

12.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

12.1

Coproduction is as at the heart of our cooperative commissioning cycle. This means working
with our communities so that they can help themselves and it means building resilience in our
communities. Alongside our embedded coproduction activity the council has also worked
extensively to ensure that it understands the views of local people, gathering data via the
resident’s survey (May 2014) and through consultation activity throughout the year.

12.2

Since December Outcome Panels have continued to work to develop existing proposals. This
has included undertaking the consultation and coproduction work necessary for proposals
being brought forward in 2015/16. Many proposals relate to savings which are to be realised in
2016/17 and 2017/18. These proposals will be developed in collaboration with local people,
key partners, and delivery organisations throughout 2015/16 so that they can be implemented
in 2016/17 onwards.

Page 42
12.3

12.4

Overview and Scrutiny Committee met on 21January 2015 and discussed the budget
proposals presented to Cabinet on 8 December 2014 and made the following
recommendations:
(1)

that a benchmark criteria be established against which returns on capital investment
can be evaluated. The benchmark will support and inform decision making on whether
schemes under consideration should be adopted. The considerations should include
both commercial and community benefits that emphasise social value.

(2)

that there be a focus on agency and consultancy spend. Lambeth’s reported position as
an outlier in comparison to spend by other similar councils is an issue of concern to the
committee.

(3)

the savings anticipated through the new model of integrated health and social care
should be reassessed, and closely monitored, particularly in light of NHS England
downgrading the forecast of savings that may be achieved through the Better Care
Fund.

(4)

that there be further analysis of measures to fund the outstanding deficit gap and future
engagement with Overview and Scrutiny Committee on options put forward particularly
in relation to proposals for Year 3.

(5)

work needs to be done to strengthen the application of the equalities framework.
Identified impacts need to be responded to with appropriate positive actions at the
earliest stage rather than merely recorded in the EIA. For example this application
might manifest in involving service users, carers and people with protected
characteristics at pertinent times during a procurement process. In addition the
strengthened approach needs to include an aggregated assessment of the applications
of the framework.

(6)

that specifically in relation to the proposals for adult social care and health integration
there be robust monitoring of implementation and evaluation of impacts on communities
and a report back on impacts be brought to Overview and Scrutiny Committee for
review

(7)

the committee notes the continuing risk of an increase in the number of households in
temporary accommodation and the associated pressures on the budget. Temporary
accommodation spend and efforts to reduce it should be as part of a future scrutiny of
housing issues

(8)

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee (finance & budget scrutiny) should have the
minutes of the Asset Management Cabinet Advisory Panel for any capital projects it is
considering alongside the officers' report. The report should make clear why that
proposal has been chosen against other opportunities for investment across council
operations.

Where there is a statutory consultation required this will be undertaken prior to the
implementation of the relevant proposal. There are proposals being brought forward for
implementation on 1 April 2015 that have required a statutory consultation to take place
between the publication of them in the December 2014 Financial Planning Report and this
report.

Page 43
12.5

There is a statutory duty for the council to consult on significant changes to children’s centres
and this process is already underway. Activity so far has included meeting with all children’s
centre school heads and leads (from voluntary and community sector organisations), a
meeting with children’s centre managers, and developing a timetable for consulting with
children’s centre advisory boards (the statutory bodies overseeing a children’s centre) as well
as parents and carers. However, the implementation of that proposal is not scheduled until
October 2015.

12.6

An equalities relevance assessment has been undertaken and early discussion of the
proposals which are relevant to equalities has happened at the 3 December 2014 and 7
January 2015 Corporate EIA panel meetings. Emerging equality issues associated with the
budget have also been discussed at the January Overview and Scrutiny Meeting. Where an
impact is identified the justification and mitigation of it is set out in each individual proposal
included in The December FPR and Appendix 3. In some cases, due to the fact that proposals
are at an early stage of development, a full EIA cannot yet be undertaken. Key proposals
which are relevant to equalities, but where a full EIA is required ahead of the proposal being
implemented include proposals relating to Children’s Services, Adults Services and integration,
and LED lighting and centralised control (street lighting). An early cumulative impacts
assessment has been developed based on the information currently available. It is included at
Appendix 11.

12.7

Where proposals affect a contract with a third sector provider officers are engaging as early in
the process as possible to help providers plan how they will manage the impacts.

12.8

It is anticipated that as work on service transformation progresses across services delivered to
specific groups, it will identify areas where further specific consultation is required.

13.

RISK MANAGEMENT

13.1

The key risks covered in section 4 of the report and those arising from the proposals set out in
the plan will be monitored and reviewed corporately as well as at cluster and group level to
ensure that the proposals are achieved. Management of the key risks will allow for effective
decisions to be taken across the department. In summary the key risks can be categorised as:



Financial – failure to contain demand and costs within the overall resources available.
Control action includes monthly budget and activity monitoring; and
Performance Management – proposals may impact on the department’s ability to meet
key performance measures, which could affect the Council’s ability to achieve its
priorities and outcomes as set out in the corporate plan. Control action includes
monthly performance monitoring to enable the organisation to take prompt remedial
action.

14.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

14.1

Lambeth Council takes its equalities responsibilities very seriously. It is vitally important as the
council is forced to take difficult decisions about reducing resources that the impact of these
decisions is fully considered. Lambeth Council is committed to targeting its resources as far as
possible to those most in need and to improving equality of opportunity in our borough.
Therefore the council’s approach to delivering a balanced budget has equalities considerations

Page 44
at its core. The council’s commitment to equalities is detailed in full in our Community Plan
2013-16.

14.2

An equalities relevance assessment has been undertaken for each of the proposals which
brings forward new savings. Of the 12 proposals listed in the December Financial Planning
Report, 5 of these have some relevance to equalities. Each of these proposals has been
discussed in depth at the Corporate EIA panel in December 2014 and January 2015 and it is
anticipated that all of them (with the exception of the proposals relating to charges for recycling
containers) will be subject to further detailed Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) as the
proposals are more fully developed throughout the year. In line with our equalities processes,
the Corporate EIA panel will consider the equalities impacts of the proposals before they are
implemented. The council has also produced an early cumulative impact assessment which
looks at the budget proposals when taken together. This is included at Appendix 11.

14.1

The recommendations of Overview and Scrutiny which relate to equalities are:



That there continue to be discussions to strengthen the equalities framework reflecting
the committee’s concern that conversations with service users, carers and people with
protected characteristics do not always happen at pertinent times; and
that specifically in relation to the proposals for adult social care and health integration
there be robust monitoring of implementation and evaluation of impacts on communities
and a report back on impacts be brought to Overview and Scrutiny Committee for
review

14.2

The Corporate EIA panel will have consideration to the recommendations of Overview and
Scrutiny and 1. check that conversations with service users, carers and people with protected
characteristics are meaningful and happening early in the process in relation to the 4 proposals
highlighted in this assessment (children’s, adults, street lighting and community safeguarding);
and 2. Schedule conversations following implementation of the proposals to understand what
the impacts on communities may have been.

14.3

Given the scale of budget cuts being faced by the council it is inevitable that citizens will be
impacted. Understanding what the impact might be, and where possible putting in place
mitigation to negate or reduce any adverse impacts is important. Our cooperative approach
means that we will work closely with citizens to understand possible adverse impacts and put
in place mitigations. We will also look to work with communities to build on the strengths that
exist and enhance their resilience. By co-producing activities and building on what already is in
place within communities and neighbourhoods we feel better able to mitigate some of the
impacts of the changes outlined in this report.

15.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

15.1

None for the purpose of this report, although the impact of particular proposals on community
safety will be considered as part of the budget process.

16.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS
Environmental implications

Page 45
16.1

None for the purpose of this report, although the environmental impact of particular proposals
will be considered as part of the budget process.
Staffing and accommodation implications:

16.2

Saving proposals previously agreed include the cessation or reduction in services which would
necessitate restructuring and reorganising under new service delivery models. The council’s
policy and procedure on Reorganisation, Redundancy and Redeployment will be used by
managers to ensure that the changes are made fairly and consistently to enable the delivery of
savings targets. As regards the workforce, it is inevitable that the actual headcount reduction
may be higher as some posts are occupied by part-time or jobshare workers.

17.

TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

17.1

Subject to agreement at Cabinet on 9 February 2015 and Council on 25 February 2015 these
budget proposals will be implemented for the 2015/16 financial year onwards.
________________________

Page 46
Audit trail
Consultation
Name/Position
Guy Ware, Strategic Director
Christina Thompson,
Director, Integrated Support
Alison Mckane, Legal
Services
Anne Rasmussen,
Democratic Services
Operations Board
Councillor Paul McGlone
Councillor Lib Peck
Cabinet
External
For internal reports, list
internal meetings where
issue has been considered

Lambeth
cluster/division or
partner
Enabling
Enabling
Governance and
Democracy
Governance and
Democracy

Comments in
para:

16/01/15
16/01/15

27/01/15 throughout

27/01/15

30.01.15

23/01/15
23/01/15

30/01/15 throughout

30/01/15

30/01/15 throughout

19.12.14
30.01.15 (Cabinet)
30.01.15
151/14015
Yes (Appendix 7b)
Yes
03.10.14
1. Will amend Community Plan Outcomes
Framework or Budget and Policy Framework







Appendices

Date
Received

27.01.15

Deputy Leader
(Finance & Investment)
Leader of the Council

Report history
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Report no.
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information

Date Sent






July Financial Planning Report
December Financial Planning Report
November Budget Monitor
HM Treasury Autumn Statement
CLG Local Government Finance
Settlement
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Report
January 2015
Appendix 1 – Financial Management
Strategy
Appendix 2 – Simplified Council Tax Model
Appendix 3 – Resource Allocation –
Proposals and proposed savings
Appendix 4 – Virements to the CIP for
2014/15 – 20161/7

Page 47








Appendix 5 – Capital Investment
Programme – 2015/16 – 2017/18
Appendix 6 – Financing the CIP 2015/16 –
2017/18
Appendix 7a – Disposals Programme and
7b – Disposals Programme (Exempt)
(Cabinet only)
Appendix 8 – Minimum Revenue Provision
Policy Statement
Appendix 9 – Treasury Management
Strategy & Prudential Indicators 2015/16 –
2017/18
Appendix 10 – Fees & Charges Schedule
Appendix 11 – Cumulative EIA (see section
12)

Reason for Exemption from Disclosure
Appendix 7B is exempt from publication by
virtue of the following paragraph of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972:
3. Information relating to the financial or
business affairs of a particular person.
(Including the authority holding that
information).

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 49
Appendix 1
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2015 – 2018
1.

Context and summary

1.1

The council publishes an outline Financial Management Strategy as part of the
Budget report agreed by Council each February. This sets out an overview of our
approach to make the best use of our financial resources to help achieve the
Council’s vision and ambitions for the Borough and maximise sustainable
benefits for the people of Lambeth.

1.2

Over the last year, there have been signs of recovery as far statistics which
measure economic growth are concerned. The underlying rate of inflation is
falling which, whilst theoretically increasing spending power, must also reflect
little movement in terms of pay increases. Business is still reluctant to borrow and
banks are maintaining rigidity with regard to lending criteria. With regard to the
Council’s finances, the Autumn Statement has signposted a further period of
austerity for the public sector. The financial context within which the council is
operating continues to be extremely challenging and the green shoots of
recovery have yet to reach our local communities and businesses.

1.3

We are continuing to see increasing demand for some of our services from those
of our residents requiring additional support as well as needing to provide
additional discounts on council tax charges. It remains important for our focus to
remain on regeneration as any increase in business activity across the borough
impacts business rate income and the Council’s overall financial position due to
the introduction of the Business Rate Retention Scheme. Encouragingly, we are
seeing a significant level of new property development which will generate
income from New Homes Bonus and Community Infrastructure Levy and hence
support investment in essential infrastructure. While our investment income has
reduced due to the ongoing low interest rate regime, our asset values have
benefited from improved market conditions which is enhancing our flexibility to
make strategic capital investments in priority outcomes.

1.4

The Council is expecting to face overall cuts in core Government funding of 50%
over 6 years. As a result we will have had to reduce spending by an estimated
£200m between 2011/12 and 2017/18. At the same time, the Council
administration has maintained its commitment to residents to keep our council tax
as low as possible and, after freezing Council Tax for six years in a row,
Lambeth will implement an increase of 1.99% to assist in closing the funding gap
created by unfunded additional burdens and reduced Government support.

1.5

Within this context the Leader of the Council has set out a vision of ‘ambition and
fairness for all’ that builds on the work undertaken by the previous administration
and places early intervention, prevention and resilience at the heart of the
council’s work. The Leader has been clear that through its cooperative
commissioning approach the organisation should focus on how it will spend the
resources remaining in our budget rather than being driven by the 50% reduction
we need to make.

1

Page 50
1.6

The government’s austerity measures and the council’s shift to cooperative
commissioning (specifically the focus on outcomes this has entailed) have
necessitated a shift in the way that the council approaches its budget process.
Having introduced an outcome-based budgeting approach in 2013/14, the
council developed this further through ‘resource allocation’ - a process designed
to enable financial resources between outcomes - in 2014/15. Three Outcome
Panels were introduced to lead the work of commissioning and delivering our
thirteen community outcomes under three priority outcomes areas - Community
Wellbeing (CW), Neighbourhoods, Environment & Sustainability (NES) and
Housing, Jobs & Investment (HJI). Financial envelopes were allocated to those
panels and they led on identifying the resources that were needed to achieve the
community outcomes, rather than through a traditional departmental and service
focus. The substantive outputs of that work were considered by cabinet in
December 2014 and were subsequently included in the February 2015 budget
report.

1.7

This revision of our financial management strategy enables us to take a further
step forward in our resource allocation process. This will emphasise that
coproducing the kind of transformative and innovative approaches necessary to
meet the outcomes our communities have identified with 50% of the previous
resource available is (at least) a year-long process. It will also ensure that the
allocation of resources reflects priorities between outcomes and develops a
sense of the total resources (revenue, capital, non-financial community assets
and (in time) ‘whole system’ budgets) committed to particular outcomes. The first
few stages of the approach, identifying the level of resources available and
Cabinet prioritising between outcomes and allocating resources accordingly will
therefore need to be done as early as possible in 2015/16. That will provide
Outcome Panels with a clear 6-month window within which to coproduce the
plans and strategies for how to manage within such a drastically reduced
resource envelope. These will include the range of financial management
strategies set out within this document, developing our partnerships,
understanding the total resources delivering outcomes in the borough and
identifying further opportunities for integration.

1.8

Our new commissioning approach is bringing its own opportunities and
challenges but is allowing us to respond quickly to maximise benefits within the
borough rom the eventual upturn in national economic growth.

1.9

In summary, the key priorities for our financial management over the coming year
are:




The implementation of a resource allocation framework that maximises the
amount of time available to identify innovative, transformative and
cooperative approaches whilst maximising the use of all resources, (both
capital and revenue) to deliver outcomes, limiting spend on support and
corporate overheads, and ensuring probity and stewardship of funds is
maintained.
We will seek to minimise dependence on Central Government funding by
maximising income from other sources including regional and international
funding and will maximise opportunities afforded by recent national policy
and legislative changes (including local business rates retention, NHB, CIL
and new community rights as enshrined in the Localism Act 2011).

2

Page 51








We will maximise the potential income and expenditure opportunities from
a shared service approach with other local authorities, public sector
partners and social enterprises where they contribute to the council’s
priorities. Current examples being developed include the “One Oracle”
project with 5 other Boroughs. The Support Services Programme seeks to
aggregate services, simplify processes and streamline activity. Over the
next three years the Programme will enable the council to respond flexibly
to the changing needs of the organisation and release savings to help
meet challenging targets. We are also running replacement Local Welfare
Assistance schemes for Lewisham and the City of London and are
seeking to work with other Boroughs over the coming year.
We will explicitly and transparently manage the level, purpose and
planned use of our reserves to strike a balance between protecting
services from immediate financial risk and investing in transformation to
safeguard priorities in the longer term. The Cooperative Investment Fund
has been strengthened to support this transformation process. Our
Reserves and Balances Strategy is set out in section 2 of the main report.
Rationalisation of our asset portfolio continues but we cannot rely
indefinitely on disposal of surplus assets to fund future investment
requirements. However, as our available capital receipts from asset
disposal diminish, we are instead seeing a significant rise in income
directly attributable to the substantial and exiting new build private
developments underway across the borough and particularly in the north.
These development income streams of s106 and Community
Infrastructure Levy (“CIL”) will allow us to secure key infrastructure
improvements across the borough to support our community outcomes.
Further mechanisms for co-operative ownership of assets to enhance
community access are in development and we will continue to build
community capacity by supporting “Community Right to Bid” applications.
Where possible, we will continue to identify alternative funding solutions
for strategic developments to try an minimise the public sector financing
burden and seek to leverage more value from existing assets through
commercial/social enterprise arrangements. We are also using capital
investment to generate additional revenue resources, either through
increasing income streams or reducing associated revenue cost.
We will complete the restructuring of the finance function to achieve an
agile and innovative service which can actively facilitate the council’s cooperative ambitions. Together with the implementation of the accounting
system Oracle R12 in 2014/15, this will improve efficiency, reduce costs
and provide high quality financial management, standardised across the
organisation. It is planned that the finance function will support and enable
the development of not only the council’s in-house co-operative
commissioning and delivery functions but also eventually the boroughwide co-operative public service economy.

2.

Summary of the Financial Management strategy 2015 – 2018

2.1

In this document we have set out:

3

Page 52



Our Financial Management strategy (Section 3)
Outcome and risk frameworks (Section 4) including
o Corporate and Political priorities
o Financial Management values and principles
o Risks to our key financial strategies

3.

The Financial Management strategy 2015 – 2018

3.1

This section sets out our strategies in detail (the approaches or courses of action
we are undertaking to achieve our outcomes). The strategies are split into three
areas of focus:




building financial resilience within both the Council and its communities
managing our assets
providing high quality financial management across the organisation.

4

Comment [H]: Michelle B to update

Financial resilience strategies for the Council and its communities


Co-operative strategies:


Develop the resource allocation process to
o enable the allocation of resources according to priorities between outcomes
o develop a sense of the total resources (revenue, capital, non-financial community assets and (in time) ‘whole
system’ budgets) committed to particular outcomes
o enable the coproduction of plans and strategies allowing us to manage a further estimated reduction in spending
of over £90m between 2015/16 and 2017/18



Support the development of a new Financial Resilience Strategy to build resilience within our local communities
through targeted investment and hence reduce dependence on public services and support. An update on progress
was presented to Corporate Committee on 5 December 2013.



Invest in capacity building in the Third Sector to help bring additional funding from alternative sources into the Borough
and to work with the Council in co-operative service provision models



Work is underway to facilitate the joining up of financial assessment processes across children’s and adults social care
and revenues and benefits; it is envisaged that this initiative is likely to improve financial management as well as create
cashable savings.

Funding strategies:


Minimise dependence on Central Government funding by maximising income generation from other sources including
lobbying, accessing other funds (for example, European grants or Mayoral projects) and commercial/entrepreneurial
opportunities such as traded services



Increase income from our fees and charges, having due regard to our social and environmental responsibilities



Build our Council tax base and protect our income stream by maximising collection as well as through discretionary use
of discounts and premia

Drive local economic growth and development and hence capitalise on the opportunities afforded by recent national policy
and legislative changes (including local business rates retention, New Homes Bonus, Community Infrastructure Levy and

5

Page 53





new community rights as enshrined in the Localism Act 2011)


Exploit opportunities for sharing services with other local authorities, public sector partners or social enterprises if they
contribute to the council’s priorities



Explicitly manage reserves and balances to strike a balance between managing immediate financial risk and investing in
transformation to safeguard priorities in the longer term

Page 54

6

Asset management strategies




Map the borough-wide asset base to highlight deficiencies or opportunities such as potential duplication of provision
within the community.



Develop the resource allocation mechanism to target capital resources and investment to deliver co-produced priority
outcomes and away from lower priority services. Capital investment will now be transparently planned and targeted to
support community priorities alongside revenue funding through the commissioning strategies. The council’s new
resource allocation approach is also an opportunity to show more clearly how capital resources are directly supporting
the delivery of community outcomes.



Continue to support and refine mechanisms for co-operative ownership of assets to enhance and simplify community
access and benefits.



Facilitate direct community input into capital investment decisions at a neighbourhood level including through the
development of Co-operative Local Infrastructure Plans (“CLIPS”).

Rationalisation strategies:


Continue to rationalise our asset portfolio, basing all investment or disinvestment decisions on integrated information
on the value, efficiency and cost of assets (both capital and revenue) as well as their relevance to delivery of priority
outcomes



Capitalise on the opportunities provided by the wider public sector asset base of the borough through further
integration with key partners such as the NHS and the Metropolitan Police to share assets and hence costs and
improve community access to public services.



Explore innovative funding solutions for strategic developments to minimise the public sector capital financing burden
including leveraging additional value from existing assets, special purpose vehicles and commercial/social enterprise
developments to ensure we optimise value in a world of rising property values but shrinking public sector resources.



Explore alternative internal funding sources (including increased revenue contributions and internal borrowing) and external
funding sources (including regional and European funds)

7

Page 55



Co-operative strategies:

High quality financial management strategies
Financial management focus

Financial governance and control

Financial intelligence

Complete the transformational restructure of the finance function to allow
greater standardisation of approach through centralisation together with
improved efficiency and agility



Support development of improved financial and budget management skills
among service managers and potential co-operative partners



Actively seek to capture efficiency gains with our partners and other
neighbouring authorities through pooling resource capacity, economies of scale
and shared best practice in service provision



Capitalise on the opportunities afforded through the introduction of Oracle R12
to improve routine controls over financial transaction and balance sheet data



Develop extended financial governance across new co-operative arrangements
to support transparency, probity and propriety in the stewardship of all public
monies and help partners minimise the risk of errors, financial mis-management,
fraud or corruption arising



Agree a financial data quality approach with the community to produce
accessible and relevant council data to support co-operative commissioning
decisions and improve transparency and accountability



Work with co-operative partners to extend this approach to cover financial data
relating to all commissioned spend of public monies



Utilise the full reporting capability of the new Oracle R12 to align financial and
non-financial reporting and give greater insight into trends and exceptions in
business performance



Maintain a detailed, comparative understanding of unit, transaction, marginal
and total costs for key services to underpin co-operative resource allocation
decisions

8

Page 56

Data quality and transparency



Page 57
4.

Financial Management Values and Principles

4.1

There is a strong financial management culture at Lambeth which is built around
4 values:





4.2

Ownership: all Officers and Members demonstrate a strong commitment
to effective financial management, whatever their day to day level of
involvement with financial matters.
Responsibility: all Officers and Members take full responsibility for
financial management, each with a clear understanding of their respective
roles as set out in the Constitution, standing orders, financial policies and
procedures.
Early notice: financial plans, monitoring and reports give sufficient time to
respond effectively to new opportunities or potential problems.
No avoidable failure: honest identification and management of business
and financial risks underpins routine business-as-usual.

The following financial management principles are also integral to our work:







Value for money: Every pound must be spent with care and without
waste. Under the Code of Audit Practice 2010 the Council’s External
Auditor is required to include in their audit report a conclusion on whether
the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources - this conclusion is
known as “the VFM conclusion”. An evidence based submission is
produced for consideration by the Auditors each year and they have been
able to provide an unqualified conclusion for 2013/14.
Financial stability: We ensure the organisation can respond flexibly to
financial challenges by maintaining the level of general fund balances
within a range of value. The minimum level held is £15m (approximately
5% of net revenue expenditure) whilst the maximum held is £30m
(approximately 10% of net revenue expenditure).
Financial discipline: In order to continue to “live within our means” we
operate rigorous financial controls and accurately record, report and
forecast our financial position to allow meaningful and regular review.
Financial innovation: For the first time in a generation there is a
considerable shortfall in public sector resources to deliver public sector
services. We can only bridge that gap by thinking creatively about what
actually constitutes “public sector services” and whether they are best
provided with public, private or 3rd sector resources. We are moving to a
co-operative commissioning council to harness the resources and
expertise of our community to help us achieve this successfully.

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 59

Appendix 2 – Simplified Council Tax Model

Revenue Support Grant
Baseline Funding
Settlement Funding Assessment
New Homes Bonus Allocation
Net growth / loss on Business Rates
s31 Grant for Business Rates
Sub-Total External Resources
Council Tax Income
Sub-Total Local Resources

2015/16
£'m
86.436
101.225
187.661
7.933
-0.293
3.492
198.793
92.275
92.275

Total Resources

291.068

2014/15 Base Budget

314.830

Net Changes b/fwd

11.614

New growth
New savings
Net new savings

0
-35.376
-35.376

Total net savings

-23.672

2015/16 Base Budget

291.068

Taxbase (No. of Band D equivalents)
Band D Council Tax (£)
Yield (£'m)

97,780
943.70
92.275

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 61

Appendix 3: Deficit Reduction Proposals - New
Revenue & Capital Budget 2015/16 – Provisional Budget Strategy 2016/17 –
2017/18

Resource allocation proposal: Budget 2015/16-2017/18
1.
2.
3.
4.

Outcome panel area: Neighbourhood, Environment& Sustainability
Proposal title: Street Cleaning Services
Outcome:
Budget and savings: (finance will validate figures):
Activity:
Existing 2014/15 Budget (£’000):
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
£’000
£’000
£’000
Existing Agreed Savings
Proposed New Savings
1,500
100
0
Total Savings
1,500
100
0

5. Investment required to deliver savings:
 Capital investment:
Proposal Title:
2015/16
2016/17
£’000
£’000
Investment Required
0
0
How will this investment deliver the revenue saving?


2017/18
£’000

Total
£’000
1,600
2,020

Total
£’000
0

0

Cooperative investment fund:
2015/16
£’000

2016/17
£’000

CIF Required
0
How will this investment deliver the revenue saving?

2017/18
£’000
0

Total
£’000
0

0

6. Current activity:
Lambeth is facing an unprecedented financial challenge. Over six years to 2016/17 it is
anticipated our core funding will have been reduced by 50 per cent. That means over the next
three years we will make £90m in savings while continuing to deliver a cleaner, safer, and more
prosperous Lambeth that we know our residents value.
As set out in the July 2014 finance review, reductions of £9.3 million have already been
identified for the ‘People Lead Sustainable Lives’ outcome. This is taken from a total core
budget of £24 million and the savings identified are designed to change behaviour by
preventing anti social littering, fly tipping and dog fouling while making sure the services
provided continue to meet the needs of people in Lambeth.

1

Page 62

The Council currently spends approximately £7.2 million per year keeping Lambeth’s public
highway clean. We do this through a blanket approach, covering all areas equally regardless of
whether an area needs more or less cleaning.
While the current service has proved extremely successful, it’s almost a victim of that success
because the small section of the community that drop litter and abandon waste never see the
negative consequences of their actions on their own environment and their neighbours,
because ‘ someone else’ simply clears up after them.
7. The proposal:
Lambeth’s increasing population, the rapid growth of the night time and out of hours economy,
more free newspaper distribution, packaging and an increase in takeaway food have all been
significant factors in making our streets dirtier and putting pressure on street cleansing services.
This demand has grown nationally and locally since the late 1990’s with little sign of slowing.
The increase in local authority spending across the country on waste and street cleansing
reflects the importance of environmental quality and the aspirations of citizens. The traditional
approach of the majority of councils faced with this growing demand is to invest more, clearing
waste faster and sweeping the streets more often.
This approach has had three significant consequences; the first and most obvious is that
services are financially unsustainable. The second is the unintentional message that fly-tipping
and dropping litter are acceptable forms of behaviour. The third is that responding to the
symptoms of a growing problem has simply added to the perception of some citizens that this is
solely the council’s responsibility.
Lambeth’s approach is different and focuses on prevention rather than cure, so people are
encouraged and supported to take an active role in their community, and have a sense of
collective responsibility.
Through a series of efficiencies and changes to the service we provide we are able to save £2m,
(£400k of which has already been stripped from the budget in 2014/15) with the provider of
these services. The Council will continue to do what it does well and will continue to invest
heavily in street-cleansing services with over £5.7m spend each year. However, the way in
which we spend that money will be different in future. Resources will increasingly be targeted
at those parts of our Borough that need the greatest investment, and we will support
campaigns that help change the behaviour of the minority of people who do not yet take
responsibility for their own waste.
The Council is working with residents, Business Improvement Districts (BID’s) and other town
centre management groups to look again at the roles and responsibilities that we have
traditionally adopted. Challenging the existing relationship gives us an opportunity to create a
new, fairer settlement built on shared responsibility.

2

Page 63

Through the introduction of real incentives, targeted fees and charges, businesses will be able
to bring their skills, knowledge and resources together with those from the Council to decide
how street cleaning can be more efficient and cost effective.
Initiatives such as Community Freshview and the Snow Wardens Scheme have been in
operation for a number of years and have demonstrated the additional capacity, expertise and
desire of residents to contribute effectively to improving environmental quality.
The Council has recently launched a Street Champions scheme, which provides a supportive
framework for residents to tackle the local environmental issues that are important to them.
The scheme is currently being piloted in selected streets across the borough and from initial
canvassing of those streets; we’ve had over 400 expressions of interest from people, showing a
real desire to get involved.
We know that messages from the community to the community resonate louder and clearer
than messages from the Council alone. Already there are more than 80 active champions who
are producing their own posters, stickers and signs that highlight the impact of littering and fly
tipping within the community.
We know local people want tougher enforcement against inconsiderate citizens who continue
to demonstrate inappropriate environmental behaviour. We are looking at maximising the
impact of fixed penalty notices to reduce low level ASB, increased use of the criminal justice
system to act as a deterrent and show local people how seriously we regard this behaviour. We
will also take more action to let residents know when we have taken action. All of these
changes will be introduced as we redesign our enforcement services.
The Proposed Service Changes
Through the changes we make to the services that keep our streets clean, we will maintain:







Timed Collections in Town Centre areas
24 Hour Emergency Response Ability
Cleansing service from 6am to at least 8pm in town centres
Regular litter picking/sweeping in residential streets
Additional resources to tackle leaf fall.
Removal of fly-tipped waste on a regular basis

The current service is split into three shifts, 0600-1400, 1400-2200 and 2200-0600.
The proposed service will operate a more flexible approach between 6am and 8pm. and the
table below details the proposed activity across the borough on a weekly basis.

3

Page 64

Service Activity

Proposed Service
Service Description
Residential Roads - Manual Sweepers litter picking every residential

Residential Roads - Manual
Sweepers

6am -2pm

Mon-Fri

road twice per week with a full sweep every six weeks. Main roads that
link Town Centres will be swept daily but it is proposed that resources
will be allocated according to need so places that are busier will be
swept more frequently and quieter, residential roads less often.

Town Centre Sweepers
6am- to at least 8pm
Mon -Sun

Dumps/Cage vehicles 6am 10pm Mon-Sun

Mechanical Sweeper - Large
6am – to at least 8pm
Mon-Sun
Jet washing and pavement
cleaning -

Town Centre Sweepers - a continuous presence in our Town Centre
areas throughout the duration of the shift

Dumps/Cage vehicles -The service will continue to service Timed
Collection areas daily. The daily collection of fly tipped materials will
reduce to twice per week as part of the behaviour change campaign.
Mechanical Sweeper - Large the service will work primarily in Town
Centre and Main Road areas and will be based on need, not rotas. This
element of the service will be focused on Town Centres and main
roads.
Jet washing and pavement cleaning - washes and scrubs high
specification paving in new major schemes - with capacity to manage
ASB issues where funding is identified.

Vauxhall Subway

Vauxhall Subway - manual sweeping and washing Lambeth

6am - 2pm Mon-Fri

maintained tunnels in and around the Vauxhall transport interchange

Brixton Market

No change to service with operatives required to service the Market

Lower Marsh Market

No change to service with operative dedicated to Lower Marsh Market

Subway Washing/Gullies

Subway Washing/Gullies - washes bridges and other structures on a 12
week cycle also cleans road water gullies annually as a minimum.

4

Page 65

Small Mechanical Sweeper

Small Mechanical Sweeper - overlays sweeping across the Borough

6am - 2pm Mon - Fri

particularly where vehicle traffic makes cleansing dangerous

Leaf Clearance

Winter Gritting
Event Management
Weed Spraying

October for 10 weeks additional manual sweepers will collect the 100’s
of tonnes of leaves that fall during this period.
To provide seasonal resource required to discharge the Council Winter
Service Plan
To retain the ability to manage large scale community events in
partnership with event organisers
To spray the Boroughs roads twice per year

The night period from 8pm to 6am will see a resource on call to attend emergencies from the
police or the Council Civil Emergency response.
The proposal also provides a number of yet to be allocated resources, including a large
mechanical broom with driver and two manual sweepers. This resource will be allocated to
areas based on need and as part of work we undertake in partnership with local businesses and
other organisations.
The proposal identifies efficiencies in the existing waste collection service that have no
operational impact. The implementation of these efficiency measures have reduced the impacts
on street cleansing generally.






Influence/Buy/Make: This proposal is relevant to our principle around ‘Influencing’
in that we will work with our citizens to use their collective strength to influence and
change the behaviour of those having a negative impact on the environment.
Stoppages and reductions: This proposal will move away from the current fly-tip
removal schedule to one that supports education and enforcement and highlights
the activity of unscrupulous citizens. We will share the burden of low level ASB
caused during the night time economy with those that are responsible and
benefiting from the activity, and we will move away from the blanket approach to
cleansing and deploy resources on a need bases to get the best use of the resources
we have.
How change will be implemented: The changes to the cleansing service will take
place on the 1st April. This will coincide with the roll out of the Street champions
borough wide, and we will work with citizens and monitor the service changes on a
continuous basis to ensure the intelligent deployment continues to meet the needs
of the area.

5

Page 66



Prevention: Working with our Citizens we hope to educate those who’s behaviour is
having a negative impact on the environment through a series of peer pressure,
nudge behaviour and other influential activities to stop enviro-crime activity. Where
this approach fails we will adopt a polluter pays approach through council
enforcement activity to support the positive work our citizens are taking.
 Resilience: Working with our Citizens we want to build on the success we have
achieved in our Freshview and Snow Warden initiatives to provide communities with
the tools and support they need to set a new norm for their local environment.
 Interdependencies: This proposal is not dependent on another proposal being
accepted.
8. Coproduction: No Coproduction has been undertaken to design these proposals. The
proposals are based on safeguarding our statutory duty and supporting our citizens having
more influence to change behaviour in their local environment.
9. Statutory Consultation: No statutory consultation is required prior to implementing this
proposal.
10. Equalities Analysis:
Relevant and equality analysis has been undertaken
 Anticipated impact is (low)
 Justification (financial saving required)
 Mitigations (none)
Political Manifesto risk: There are no Manifesto risks associated with this proposal.

6

Page 67

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 69
Appendix 4: Virements to the 3 Year CIP for 2014/15 to 2016/17 since the Financial
Planning Report in December 2014

Outcome Panel

Community Outcome

Summary of Virement

Community
Wellbeing

All Young People have
opportunities to achieve
their ambitions

Reprofiling of budgets between school projects

Community
Wellbeing

Older, disabled and
Vulnerable People can live
independent lives and
have control over their
lives

Housing, Jobs and
Investment

Total
Debits
£000's

Net
Change
to CIP
£000's

Total
Credits
£000's

8,237

8,237

0

Private Sector Housing: Transfer fo funds for HIA
Initiatives to PSH – Targeted Assistance

69

0

69

Lambeth residents have
more opportunities for
better quality homes

Private Sector Housing: Transfer fo funds for HIA
Initiatives to PSH – Targeted Assistance

0

69

-69

Housing, Jobs and
Investment

All Lambeth Communities
feel they are valued and
part of their
neighbourhoods

Virement to transfer funds from Darley House to
Small Developments

514

514

0

Housing, Jobs and
Investment

People live, work and visit
our vibrant and creative
town centres

Realignment of budets for Regeneration projects

132

132

0

Realignment of budgets across all Lambeth Living
projects

12,137

12,137

0

Transfer of funds from Brockwell Park Community
Facility to Brockwell Park Regeneration HLF

150

150

0

Transfer of funds to the Brockwell Park Community
Facility scheme and Brockwell Park Mansion &
Streatham Library from the unused Brockwell
Internals budget and the unallocated Property
Services Capital Replacement Programme

209

209

0

Enabling

Realignment of budgets for Facilities Management
projects

1,831

1,831

0

All

Total Virements since December Finance Report

23,279

23,279

0

Lambeth residents have
more opportunities for
better quality homes
Housing, Jobs and
Investment

Neighbourhoods,
Environment and
Sustainability

Neighbourhoods,
Environment and
Sustainability

All Lambeth Communities
feel they are valued and
part of their
neighbourhoods
People are healthier, for
longer
All Lambeth Communities
feel they are valued and
part of their
neighbourhoods
People are healthier, for
longer

Enabling
All

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 71
Appendix 5: 3 Year Capital Investment Programme 2015/16 – 2017/18 as at 15 January
2015
2015_16
Revised
Budget
£000s

2016_17
Revised
Budget
£000s

2017_18
Revised
Budget
£000s

13,181
10,811
2,370

0
0
0

0
0
0

13,181
10,811
2,370

7,262

0

0

7,262

317
6,945

0
0

0
0

317
6,945

41,543

10,087

0

51,631

40,227
601
714

9,869
0
219

0
0
0

50,096
601
933

People take greater responsibility for their neighbourhood

102

0

0

102

Creation and Enhancement of Community-run Buildings
Waste Fleet Renewal
Life Cycle Replacement of Waste Receptacles
All Lambeth Communities feel they are valued and part of their
neighbourhoods
Investment in Libraries and Community Hubs
Enhancement of Crematoria & Cemeteries
Investment in Culture and Heritage

102
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

102
0
0

1,600

0

0

1,600

1,600
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

1,600
0
0

People live, work and visit our vibrant and creative town centres

3,057

2,059

0

5,116

850
2,207

0
2,059

0
0

850
4,266

2,376

10

0

2,386

Community Safety Projects

2,376
0
0
0

10
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

2,386
0
0
0

Lambeth residents have more opportunities for better quality homes

126,470

66,000

0

192,470

Investment in Decent Homes Boroughwide (HRA)
Refurbishment of Derelict Properties (HRA)
Housing Development Projects
Housing Development Projects (HRA)
Housing Communal Facilities (HRA)

114,970
762
3,088
7,450
200

60,000
0
0
6,000
0

0
0
0
0
0

174,970
762
3,088
13,450
200

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

People live, work and visit our vibrant and creative town centres

1,190

1,190

0

2,380

Lambeth Town Centres’ Regeneration
All Lambeth Communities feel they are valued and part of their
neighbourhoods
Housing Neighbourhood Regeneration Projects
Housing Neighbourhood Regeneration Projects (HRA)

1,190

1,190

0

2,380

0

0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

196,781

79,346

0

276,127

Enabling

Housing, Jobs and Investment

Neighbourhoods, Environment and Sustainability

Community Wellbeing

Outcome
Panel

Community Outcome
Vulnerable Children and Adults get the Support and Protection
Expansion and Enhancement of Special Educational Needs Facilities
Improvement of Social Care Provision
Older, disabled and Vulnerable People can live independent lives
and have control over their lives
Home Improvements for Vulnerable Residents
Home Improvements for Vulnerable Residents (HRA)
All Young People have opportunities to achieve their ambitions
Expansion and Enhancement of Primary Schools
Expansion and Enhancement of Secondary Schools
Investment in Education Projects

Resurfacing of Footways and Carriageways
Enhancement of Streetscapes and Pubilc Spaces
People are healthier, for longer
Investment in Parks, Open Spaces and Leisure Centres
Community Health Projects
Crime Reduces

People lead environmentally sustainable lives
Creation of Cycling Infrastructure

Enabling
Investment in Corporate Office Accommodation
Improvement of Council IT Infrastructure
Grand Total

Total
CIP
£000s

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 73
Appendix 6: Financing of the 3 Year Capital Investment Programme 2015/16–2017/18
as at 15 January 2015

Funding Source

Community
Wellbeing

£000's
Grants

%

Housing, Jobs
and Investment

Neighbourhoods,
Environment and
Sustainability

£000's

£000's

%

%

Total 3 Year
CIP

Enabling

£000's

%

£000's

%

(48,833)

75%

(10,510)

5%

(616)

7%

0

0%

(59,960)

(2,502)

4%

(11,950)

6%

(5,588)

61%

0

0%

(20,040)

7%

Borrowing

0

0%

(102,644)

51%

0

0%

0

0%

(102,644)

37%

MRR

0

0%

(59,453)

29%

0

0%

0

0%

(59,453)

22%

S106

S20 Receipts

22%

0

0%

(10,000)

5%

0

0%

0

0%

(10,000)

4%

(13,793)

21%

(5,238)

3%

(2,600)

28%

0

0%

(21,631)

8%

Recycled RTB Receipts

0

0%

0

0%

0

0%

0

0%

0

0%

Cap Res/Rev

0

0%

(2,000)

1%

(400)

4%

0

0%

(2,400)

1%

(65,128)

100%

(201,795)

100%

(9,204)

100%

0

0%

(276,127)

100%

Capital Receipts

Total

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 75
Appendix 7a: Forecast of Non RTB asset disposals for the 4 year period of

2014/15 to 2017/18
Address

Disposals approved in previous
budgets
Housing Voids
Housing Shortlife
Kennington Park Lodge
Annie McCall (Overage)
Old Lilian Bayliss (Overage)
Elliot Road 53, SW9 6RX
Former Livity School
Site at Juxon Street, SE11 6NH

Ward

Site at Sail Street
Cranfield Close 41, SE27 9JT
Wynne Road 6-10, SW9 0BB
Miscellaneous
Riggindale Road 96, SW16 1QJ
Myatts Field Lodge
Larkhall Lane 118-120, SW4
Leigham Court Road, 269, SW16
McCall Close 2-64, SW4
Westcott House
Lambeth Walk 109, SE11 6EE
Lollard Street 10, SE11 6UP
Union Grove 55a, SW8 2QJ

Boroughwide
Boroughwide
Oval
Princes
Princes
Vassall
Brixton Hill
Princes
Streatham
Wells
Princes
Gipsy Hill
Ferndale
Various
St Leonards
Vassall
Larkhall
Knights Hill
Larkhall
Gipsy Hill
Princes
Princes
Larkhall

New Disposals
Land adj Cantebury Grove 47
Voids
Shortlife
Community Assets

Knights Hill
Boroughwide
Boroughwide
Boroughwide

Site at Mountearl Gardens

Total

Actual

Forecast

2014-15

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Total
Disposals

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

9,756

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 77

Appendix 8
Statement of Policy on Minimum Revenue Provision
Executive Summary
For many years local authorities have been required by statute and associated statutory
instruments to charge to the revenue account an annual provision for the repayment of debt
related to expenditure incurred on capital assets. This charge to the revenue account is
referred to as the minimum revenue provision (MRP). In practice MRP represents the
financing of capital expenditure from the revenue account that was initially funded by
borrowing. This report seeks approval of the annual Statement of Policy on Minimum
Revenue Provision for debt repayment for financial year 2015/16.

Recommendations
That the annual MRP statement is endorsed and implemented from 1 April 2015 and that;


Option 2 (Capital Financing Method) be used to calculate MRP on existing borrowing



Option 3 (Asset Life Method) be used to calculate the MRP in relation to assets financed by
way of Finance Lease arrangements and on balance sheet PFI contracts



An MRP of 2% of the HRA Capital Financing Requirement is set aside annually as a
mechanism for building up sufficient cash balances to enable the repayment of HRA debt

Page 78

Context
For many years local authorities have been required by statute and associated statutory
instruments to charge to the revenue account an annual provision for the repayment of debt
associated with expenditure incurred on capital assets. This charge to the revenue account
is referred to as the minimum revenue provision (MRP). In practice MRP represents the
financing of capital expenditure from the revenue account that was initially funded by
borrowing.
The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment)
Regulations 2008 became effective from March 2008. They require a local authority to
determine each financial year an amount of MRP which it considers to be prudent by
reference to a calculated capital financing requirement (CFR). To support this, the
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) produced statutory guidance
which local authorities are required to follow, setting out what could constitute prudent
provision. The third edition of the statutory guidance on MRP was issued in February 2012.
The DCLG guidance recommends that before the start of the financial year, a statement of
MRP policy for the forthcoming financial year is approved by the full council. The broad aim
of the policy is to ensure that MRP is charged over a period that is reasonably
commensurate with the period over which the capital expenditure which gave rise to the
debt provides benefits.
MRP usually commences in the financial year following that in which the expenditure is
incurred, or in the year following that in which the relevant asset becomes operational. This
enables an MRP “holiday” to be taken in relation to assets which take more than one year
to be completed before they become operational and applies to each of the calculation
options set out below.
The move to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) means that private finance
initiative (PFI) schemes and qualifying leases have now been brought on balance sheet.
Where this is the case, such items are classed in accounting terms as a form of borrowing.
The DCLG has therefore amended the CFR to ensure that the impact on the revenue
account is neutral, with MRP for these items matching the principal repayment embedded
within the PFI or lease agreement.

Page 79

MRP options
Four options for prudent MRP provision are set out in the DCLG guidance. Details of each
are set out below;

Option 1: Regulatory Method
MRP under this option is equal to the amount determined in accordance with the former
ss27-29 of the 2003 Regulations as if they had not been revoked. In effect, this is 4% of the
debt principal outstanding, not including HRA debt. MRP is calculated as 4% of the CFR for
all borrowings excluding HRA borrowing and less Adjustment A.
(NB: Adjustment A is an accounting adjustment to ensure consistency with previous capital
regulations. Once calculated the figure remains as fixed. In Lambeth, Adjustment A is fixed
at £7,672,165).

Option 2: CFR Method
This method simplifies the calculation of MRP by basing the charge solely on the authority’s
CFR but excludes the technical adjustments included in option 1. The annual MRP charge is
set at 4% of the non-housing CFR at the end of the preceding financial year.

Option 3: Asset Life Method (Equal instalment or Annuity method)
Where capital expenditure on an asset is financed wholly or partly by borrowing or credit
arrangements, MRP is to be determined by reference to the life of the asset.


With the Equal Instalment approach, MRP is determined by reference to the life of the
asset and an equal amount charged in each year.



With the Annuity method, MRP is the principal element for the year of the annuity
required to repay over the asset’s life the amount of capital expenditure financed by
borrowing.

Option 4: Depreciation Method
Under this option, MRP is equal to the provision required in accordance with depreciation
accounting in respect of the asset, including any amount of impairment chargeable to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. It also takes account of any residual
value at end of the asset’s life. As standard depreciation rules are used where an asset is
part-financed by loan (e.g. 50% loan, 50% capital receipts), then a depreciation charge
proportionately equal to the loan on the asset (i.e. 50%) is required to be charged as MRP.
MRP is required to be charged annually until the cumulative amount of the provision is equal
to the original expenditure financed by borrowing. Should the asset be disposed of, then the
charge needs to continue as if the asset had not been disposed of unless the debt is repaid.

Finance Lease and PFI
Changes in accounting regulations from 2009/10 meant that assets held under a PFI
contract now form part of the Balance Sheet. On its own, this change would have resulted in
a one-off increase to the Capital Financing Requirement and (on a 4% basis), a potential
increase in the charge to revenue. This is not seen as a prudent course of action, and with a
view to mitigating against such increases, the guidance permits the inclusion in the annual
MRP charge of an amount equal to the sum charged to revenue under the contract to repay
the liability. In terms of PFI schemes, this charge forms part of the payment due to the PFI
contractor.

Page 80

Application at Lambeth
From 2008/09 onwards, Option 2 (the CFR method) has been applied to all supported
borrowing. It is proposed to continue to do this for all capital expenditure funded from
supported borrowing..
Similarly, Option 3 (Asset Life method) has in the recent past, been applied to capital
expenditure financed by Finance lease arrangements and PFI’s. It is proposed to continue
with this methodology. I.e. MRP will be provided in line with the amounts due to repay the
liability under the PFI/Lease contracts.

HRA Reform
The Council continues to review on an on-going basis its Treasury Management Strategy in
light of the HRA self financing reforms. As noted above, the Council is required to make
proper arrangements for the repayment of loans. This is done in the General Fund (GF) by
way of the aforementioned MRP charge. Until the recent changes to the subsidy regime, this
had been deemed sufficiently prudent, based on the guarantees that the government will
meet whatever interest costs are incurred through housing subsidy and that finance will
always be available through the PWLB.
The end of subsidy under HRA self financing removed the first guarantee and the
government policy change with regard to certainty around the availability of PWLB financing
calls into question the second. There is no statutory requirement for an MRP charge in the
HRA. However, without a prudent method that enables the repayment of loans, the Strategic
Director of Enabling would not be able to report that the Council’s Treasury Management
Strategy (set out elsewhere in this report) was sufficiently prudent and that reserves were
adequate for the purposes of debt repayment.
Accordingly, and in the context of prudence and affordability, it is recommended that an
additional MRP of 2% of the HRA Capital Financing Requirement continues to be made
annually, subject to review.

Financial implications
Sufficient resources have been set aside to meet the revenue commitment from MRP
providing that borrowing levels remain broadly line with current projections. Based on current
data the estimates of MRP for the GF and HRA are set out below;
Minimum Revenue Provision (£m)
General Fund (includes lease
arrangements)

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

8.22

8.66

8.35

Housing Revenue Account

6.28

7.78

8.08

Total

14.50

16.44

16.43

Page 81

Annex 1:
Demonstration of MRP calculation under each of the four methods
Option

Calculation

(a) For future supported borrowing and previous borrowings
Where:
Option 1:
Calculated as 4% of the total CFR for all CFR = Capital Finance Requirement
Regulatory
borrowing, excluding HRA and Less
Adjustment A.
Method
HRA = HRA Borrowing

Option 2:
Capital
Financing
Requirement
(CFR) Method

MRP = 4%(CFR – HRA –AA)

AA = Adjustment A

This uses the same formula as option 1
but does not take account of
Adjustment A.

Where:
CFR = Capital Finance Requirement
HRA = HRA Borrowing

MRP = 4%(CFR – HRA)

NB: Adjustment A is an accounting adjustment to ensure consistency with previous capital
regulations. Once calculated the figure remains a fixed variable within the calculations. In Lambeth,
Adjustment A is fixed at £7,672,165)
(b) For future supported borrowing and previous borrowings
Option
Calculation
Where:
Option 3:
The MRP for each asset acquired A = Capital Expenditure
Asset Life
(unsupported borrowing) on
through unsupported borrowing is
calculated using the formula:
Method
asset.
A-B
C
B = Total MRP already made
against the asset, i.e., the
local provision made before
the current financial year in
respect of that expenditure.
C = Remaining Useful Life of the
asset
Option 4:
Depreciation
Method

The MRP for each asset acquired
through unsupported borrowing is
calculated using the formula:
A-B - D
C
In essence, MRP under this method is
equal to the provision required in
accordance
with
depreciation
accounting in respect of the asset on
which expenditure has been financed
by borrowing or credit arrangements.
This should include any amounts for
impairments chargeable to the Income
& Expenditure Account

As Above, with D = Residual value of
the Asset
NB: The only difference between the
two methods of calculating the MRP
(i.e., Options 3 & 4) is that there is
recognition in Option 4 that the asset
will still have some quantifiable value
after its useful life has expired.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 83

Appendix 9: Treasury Management Strategy and Prudential Indicators 2015/16 to
2017/18
The Council is recommended to:
 approve the Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16
 approve the Treasury Management Indicators for 2015/16
 approve the Prudential Indicators 2015/16 to 2017/18
 approve the Treasury Management Policy Statement (Annex 1)

1.

Executive Summary

1.1.

This appendix sets out the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for
2015/16 and Prudential Indicators for 2015/16 and 2017/18.

1.2.

The Treasury Management Strategy incorporates a debt management strategy
that reflects the Council’s potential need to borrow to finance its capital
expenditure plans as set out in Appendices 6 through to 8.

1.3.

In formulating the Prudential Indicators in this report it has been assumed that
no new long-term borrowing will be undertaken over the next 3 years. However
£4.6m of PWLB debt is maturing in 2017/18. As it is likely that the interest rate
environment will be favourable it is expected that the Council will replace this
debt at the time. The Capital Investment Programme will be funded from capital
receipts, grants, other contributions and HRA borrowing approved by
government in previous years. The borrowing requirement for the HRA will be
sourced from cash balances rather than external debt. Should the need to
borrow arise as a result of unforeseen circumstances, an appropriate report will
be presented to Members at a later date in the year.

2.

Context

2.1

Introduction

2.1.1

On the 23rd February 2010 the Council adopted the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code
of Practice (the CIPFA Code) which requires the Council to approve a treasury
management strategy before the start of each financial year.

2.1.2

In addition, the Department for Communities and Local Government (CLG)
issued revised guidance on local authority investments in March 2010 that
requires the Council to approve an investment strategy before the start of each
financial year.

2.1.3

This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act
2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code and the CLG Guidance.

Page 84

2.2

Economic context: Treasury Management Adviser’s Assessment
2.2.1 Strong UK GDP quarterly growth of 0.7%, 0.8% and 0.7% in quarters 2, 3
and 4 respectively in 2013, (2013 annual rate 2.7%), and 0.7% in Q1, 0.9%
in Q2 and a first estimate of 0.7% in Q3 2014 (annual rate 3.1% in Q3),
means that the UK will have the strongest rate of growth of any G7 country in
2014. It also appears very likely that strong growth will continue through the
second half of 2014 and into 2015 as forward surveys for the services and
construction sectors are very encouraging and business investment is also
strongly recovering. The manufacturing sector has also been encouraging
though recent figures indicate a weakening in the future trend rate of growth.
However, for this recovery to become more balanced and sustainable in the
longer term, the recovery needs to move away from dependence on
consumer expenditure and the housing market to exporting, and particularly
of manufactured goods, both of which need to substantially improve on their
recent lacklustre performance.
2.2.2 This overall strong growth has resulted in unemployment falling much faster
through the initial threshold of 7%, set by the Monetary Policy Committee
(MPC) last August, before it said it would consider any increases in Bank
Rate. The MPC has, therefore, subsequently broadened its forward
guidance by adopting five qualitative principles and looking at a much wider
range of about eighteen indicators in order to form a view on how much slack
there is in the economy and how quickly slack is being used up. The MPC is
particularly concerned that the current squeeze on the disposable incomes of
consumers should be reversed by wage inflation rising back above the level
of inflation in order to ensure that the recovery will be sustainable. There
also needs to be a major improvement in labour productivity, which has
languished at dismal levels since 2008, to support increases in pay rates.
2.2.3 The Federal Reserve started to reduce its monthly asset purchases of $85bn
in December 2013 by $10bn per month; these ended in October 2014,
signalling confidence the US economic recovery would remain on track.
First quarter GDP figures for the US were depressed by exceptionally bad
winter weather, but growth rebounded very strongly in Q2 to 4.6%
(annualised). The first estimate of Q3 showed growth of 3.5% (annualised).
Annual growth during 2014 is likely to be just over 2%.

2.3

Credit outlook:

2.3.1 The primary principle governing the Council’s investment criteria is the
security of its investments, although the yield or return on the investment is
also a key consideration. After this main principle, the Council will ensure
that:


It maintains a policy covering both the categories of investment types it
will
invest in, criteria for choosing investment counterparties with
adequate security, and monitoring their security. This is set out in the
specified and non-specified investment sections below; and
2

Page 85



It has sufficient liquidity in its investments. For this purpose it will set out
procedures for determining the maximum periods for which funds may
prudently be committed. These procedures also apply to the Council’s
prudential indicators covering the maximum principal sums invested.

Bail-in Risk: Part of the Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive contains
provisions relating to recovery and resolution planning, intragroup financial
support, early intervention, resolution tools and powers, cross-border group
resolution, relations with third countries and financing arrangements. These are
part of a widely evolving regulatory background that not only deals with
recapitalisation or resolution of failing / failed institutions, but more importantly,
making them more resistant to problems in future crises. As part of the
resolution mechanisms, uninsured depositors are expected to be included within
“bail-in” measures that would take place at a time of failure. This could include
Local Authority depositors and would mean all or part of the Council’s deposit
could be used to support the bank’s failure, in effect the deposit would not be
returned (a default).
This is, in effect, what could already happen, although in practice the
Government has stepped in to rescue banks with importance to the banking
system and the economy (RBS, Lloyds/HBOS etc.), thereby ensuring market
confidence (a bail-out – too big to fail).
The key issue is that bail-in is likely to come into effect in 2016, later
internationally, so it is not an immediate issue. It may be later for the UK, but
the changes in the run up to this date may impact on the Council’s operations.
There is likely to be some counterbalancing, as bail-in risk increases, so banks
financial positions should be improving. The final impact may therefore be
neutral.
In summary, the Council needs to be prepared, although there should be no
immediate need to change, subject to the criteria for selecting counterparties
already in place. As the Council only uses long term ratings there should be no
need to change the counterparty selection criteria within the treasury
management strategy.
2.4

Interest rate forecasts
2.4.1 The Council has appointed Capita Asset Services as its treasury advisor and
part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest
rates. The following table gives their central view.
Table 1: Capita Central Interest rate Forecast – December 2014
Bank Rate 3 month LIBID 12 month LIBID 25-year gilt yield*
Q1 2015 0.50
0.50
0.90
2.60
Q2 2015 0.50
0.50
1.00
2.70
Q3 2015 0.50
0.60
1.10
2.90
Q4 2015 0.75
0.80
1.30
3.00
H1 2016 1.00
1.10
1.50
3.40
3

Page 86

H2 2016
H1 2017
H2 2017

1.25
1.50
1.75

1.30
1.50
1.90

1.80
2.00
2.40

3.60
3.80
3.90

* The Council can currently borrow from the PWLB at 0.80% above gilt yields

The table below shows the lowest, average and highest annual medium-term
forecasts for the official Bank rate by independent forecasters compiled by HM
Treasury.
Table 2:

Highest
Average
Lowest

HM Treasury Survey of Forecasts – November 2014
Average annual Bank Rate %
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
0.5
1.0
2.0
3.0
3.7
0.5
0.7
1.5
2.2
2.6
0.5
0.5
0.9
0.9
1.1

2.4.2

For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new
investments will be made at an average rate of 0.5%, and the base assumption
is that there will be no new borrowing in 2015/16 and funding will be raised
internally and we will review opportunities in the long term.

3.

Current and Expected Treasury Portfolios

1.4.

Current portfolio
The Council’s treasury portfolio as at 31 December 2014 was as follows.
Table 3:

Current Portfolio

Call accounts
Money market funds
Short-term deposits
Long-term deposits
Total Investments
Short-term loans
Long-term PWLB loans
Long-term market loans (LOBOs)
Total Borrowing
Net Borrowing

Principal
amount
£m
0.5
25.5
185.0
5.0
215.5
(27.0)
(412.7)
(439.7)
(224.2)

Interest
rate
%
0.25
0.46
0.73
1.03
0.71
0.45
5.57
5.26

4

Page 87

1.5.

Expected changes in portfolio
According to current cash flow forecasts, net borrowing of £224.2 million is
expected to increase as at 31 March 2015 as a result of financing capital
expenditure using cash balances. This forecast in net borrowing will be achieved
by reducing investment balances, as discussed in the borrowing strategy below.

1.6.

Budget implications
The budget for investment income in 2015/16 is £0.75 million, based on an
average investment portfolio of £150 million at an estimated average interest
rate of 0.50%. The budget for debt interest paid in 2015/16 is £23.0 million,
based on an average debt portfolio of £412.7 million at an average interest rate
of 5.57%. If actual levels of investments and borrowing, and actual interest
rates differ from those forecast, performance against budget will vary and will be
reported through the Council’s regular revenue monitoring process.

1.7.

Investment Strategy
The Council holds surplus funds, representing income received in advance of
expenditure plus balances and reserves held. In the past 12 months, the
Council’s investment balance has ranged between £215.5 million and £342
million, and average balances are expected to be at considerably below the
lower end of this range in the forthcoming year. Both the CIPFA Code and the
CLG Guidance require the Council to invest its funds prudently, and to have
regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking the highest
rate of return, or yield.

3.4.1

Investment criteria and limits
The Council defines the following as being of “high credit quality” (as per the
CLG Guidance), subject to the monetary and time limits shown.

5

Page 88

Cash
limit
£20m
each
of
which no
more
than
£15m
over
1
year

Time
limit

£15m
each
£10m
each

1 year 6
months

The Council’s current account bank (RBS/NatWest plc) if it fails to meet the
above criteria

£50m

next day

UK building societies whose lowest published long term credit rating is BBB+
or BBB and societies without credit ratings with assets greater than £500m

£10m

1 year 6
months

Table 4: Investment Criteria and Limits
AAA
AA+
AA
Banks and other organisations whose lowest published long-term
credit rating from Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s is:

AAA+
A
ABBB
+

UK building societies whose lowest published long term credit rating is BBB+
or BBB and societies without credit ratings with assets greater than £250m
but less than £500m

10 years
5 years
4 years
3 years
2 years

1 year

Money market funds and similar pooled vehicles whose lowest published
credit rating is AAA

£5m
0.5%
of
the Funds
size

Other non-credit rated pooled investment vehicles such as bond funds up to
£1 million and property funds up to £3 million

£1-3 m

notice
period

UK Local Authorities (irrespective of credit rating)

£20m
each

25 years

UK Registered Providers of Social Housing whose lowest published long-term
credit rating is [A-] or higher

£20m
each

10 years

UK Registered Providers of Social Housing whose lowest published long-term
credit rating is [BBB-] or higher and those without credit ratings

£10m
each

5 years

UK Central government and its agencies (irrespective of credit rating)

unlimited

unlimited

£5m each

3 months

£1m each

1 year

£100,000
each
£100,000

5 years
5 years

Receipts
only

swept to
RBS
weekly or
ASAP

Organisations and pooled funds which do not meet the above criteria, subject
to an external credit assessment and a specific recommendation from the
Council’s treasury management adviser
Organisations funded through the Funding Circle Targeted at local businesses
within the Council area.

Council's current bank account with the Cooperative Bank

3.4.2

1 year
Instant
Access

There is no intention to restrict investments to banks and building society
deposits, and investments may be made with any public or private sector
organisation that meets the credit rating criteria above. This reflects a lower
6

Page 89

likelihood that central government will support failing banks following the
Independent Commission on Banking report, as well as the removal of
restrictions on local authority purchases of corporate bonds in April 2012.
3.4.3

The majority of the Council’s investments will be made for relatively short
periods and in highly credit rated investments, giving priority to security and
liquidity ahead of yield. However, where the Council has identified a core cash
balance that is not required for any current or planned cash outflow, these funds
will be considered suitable for a wider range of investments, with a more
moderate focus on security and liquidity and a greater focus on achieving a level
of investment income that can support Council services. These may include
long-term investments with registered providers of social housing, small
businesses or corporate bond funds where an enhanced return is paid to cover
the additional risks presented. Standard risk mitigation techniques, such as
wide diversification and external credit assessments, will be employed, and no
such investment will be made without a specific recommendation from the
Council’s treasury management adviser.

3.4.4

The Council’s revenue reserves available to cover investment losses are
forecast to be £90 million on 31st March 2015. In order that no more than 20%30% of available reserves will be put at risk in the case of a single default, the
maximum that will be lent to any one organisation (other than the UK
Government and the Council’s Bankers - RBS) will be £27 million. A group of
banks under the same ownership will be treated as a single organisation for limit
purposes.

3.4.5

Current account bank
The Council’s current accounts are held with RBS/National Westminster Bank &
The Cooperative bank. The Council will treat RBS as “high credit quality” for the
purpose of making investments that can be withdrawn on the next working day,
subject to the bank maintaining a credit rating no lower than BBB. The Council
will not look to make long term investments with the Co-op. Any amounts that
are deposited by customers of the Council with the Co-op will be moved out the
next day or as soon as practicable.
The Council’s tendering of its banking services resulted in the re-appointment of
RBS (NatWest) as a provider. It is deemed to meet the Councils minimum
criteria in terms of its investment strategy i.e. “high credit quality” for the
purpose of making investments that can be withdrawn on the next working day,
subject to the bank maintaining a credit rating no lower than BBB.

1.8.

Building societies

3.4.6

UK building societies without credit ratings will be considered to be of “high
credit quality”, but subject to a lower cash limit and shorter time limit than rated
societies. The Council takes additional comfort from the building societies’
regulatory framework and insolvency regime where, in the unlikely event of a
building society liquidation, the Council’s deposits would be paid out in
preference to retail depositors. The Government has announced plans to
amend the building society insolvency regime alongside its plans for wide
7

Page 90

ranging banking reform, and investments in lower rated and unrated building
societies will therefore be kept under continuous review.
3.4.7

However, no investments will be made with building societies that hold a longterm credit rating lower than BBB or equivalent i.e. assets less than £250 million
due to the increased likelihood of default implied by this rating.

1.9.

Money market funds

3.4.8

Money market funds are pooled investment vehicles consisting of instruments
similar to those used by the Council. They have the advantage of providing
wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services of a
professional fund manager. Fees of between 0.10% and 0.20% per annum are
deducted from the interest paid to the Council. As part of its shadow banking
regulatory proposals, the European Commission has proposed a new European
framework for Money Market Funds (“MMFs”). As and when these regulations
come into force and depending on their likely impact on the current nature and
characteristics of the MMF’s, the Council will take a view as to whether or not to
continue using MMF’s within its investment portfolio.

3.4.9

Funds that offer same-day liquidity and a constant net asset value will be used
as an alternative to instant access call accounts, while funds whose value
changes with market prices and/or have a notice period will be used for longer
investment periods.

3.5 Other Pooled Funds:
The Council will also consider using other pooled funds such as pooled property
and bond funds that offer enhanced returns over the longer term, but are
potentially more volatile in the shorter term. These allow the Council to diversify
into asset classes other than cash without the need to own and manage the
underlying investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date and
not credit rated, but are available for withdrawal after a notice period, their
performance and continued suitability in meeting the Council’s investment
objectives will be monitored regularly.

3.8 Collateralised investments
Where the Council makes an investment with an organisation that is secured on
collateral in a third party (e.g. a reverse repo or a collateralised deposit), the time
limit may be extended to match the limit given above for that third party. However,
the investment will still count against the cash limit of the organisation receiving
the funds.
3.9 Funding Circle
As part of the 2015/16 investment criteria a small amount of funds will be invested
with local companies through the peer to peer lending scheme, The Funding
8

Page 91

Circle. The inclusion of this option is part treasury management, to test whether
investment returns can be boosted, and part policy to support local businesses.
The initial investment pool is small to assess the performance of this option. The
Council’s finance staff will mainly undertake appropriate due diligence on the
Funding Circle counterparties commensurate with the size of any loan but may
seek the assistance of the Council’s external treasury advisors. As with any loans
of this nature there is a possibility of partial or full loss of some of the investments,
although overall the Council would expect a better performance than cash
investments. The performance of this option will be reported to Members in the
annual treasury management report to assess whether to continue or expand the
scheme.
3.10 Foreign countries
3.5.1 Investments in foreign countries will be limited to those that hold an AAA, AA+ or
AA sovereign credit rating from all three major credit rating agencies, and to a
maximum of £20 million per foreign country. Investments in countries whose
lowest sovereign rating is not AAA will be limited to one year’s duration. No
country limit will apply to investments in the UK, irrespective of the sovereign
credit rating.
3.5.2

Overseas subsidiaries of foreign banking groups will normally be assessed
according to the country of domicile of the parent organisation. However,
Santander UK plc (a subsidiary of Spain’s Banco Santander) and Clydesdale
Bank plc (a subsidiary of National Australia Bank) will be classed as UK banks
due to their substantial UK franchises and the arms-length nature of the parentsubsidiary relationships.

3.5.3

Sovereign credit rating criteria and foreign country limits will not apply to
investments in multilateral development banks (e.g. the European Investment
Bank and the World Bank) or other supranational organisations (e.g. the
European Union).

3.11 Risk assessment and credit ratings
3.5.4

The Council uses long-term credit ratings from the three main rating agencies
Fitch Ratings Ltd, Moody’s Investors Service Inc and Standard & Poor’s
Financial Services LLC to assess the risk of investment default. The lowest
available credit rating will be used to determine credit quality.

3.5.5 Long-term ratings are expressed on a scale from AAA (the highest quality)
through to D (indicating default). Ratings of BBB- and above are described as
investment grade, while ratings of BB+ and below are described as speculative
grade. The Council will not hold speculative grade investments.
3.5.6

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Council’s treasury advisers,
who will notify changes in ratings as they occur. Where an entity has its credit
rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria then:
no new investments will be made, any existing investments that can be recalled
or sold at no cost will be, and full consideration will be given to the recall or sale
of all other existing investments with the affected counterparty.
9

Page 92

3.5.7

Where a credit rating agency announces that a rating is on review for possible
downgrade (also known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch negative”) so
that it is likely to fall below the above criteria, then no further investments will be
made in that organisation until the outcome of the review is announced. This
policy will not apply to negative outlooks.

3.5.8

The Council’s investments are normally senior unsecured liabilities of the
borrower, and the credit rating of the investment is therefore normally identical to
the credit rating of the counterparty. However, where a credit rating agency
awards a different rating to a particular class of investment instruments, the
Council will base its investment decisions on the instrument credit rating rather
than the counterparty credit rating.

3.12 Other information on the security of investments
3.5.9

The Council understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors
of investment default. Full regard will therefore be given to other available
information on the credit quality of the organisations in which it invests, including
credit default swap prices, financial statements and reports in the quality
financial press. No investments will be made with an organisation if there are
substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it may meet the above
criteria.

3.5.10 When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all
organisations, as in 2008 and 2011, this is not generally reflected in credit
ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances, the
Council will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit quality
and reduce the maximum duration of its investments to maintain the required
level of security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with prevailing
financial market conditions.
3.5.11 If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of “high
credit quality” are available to invest the Council’s cash balances, then the
surplus will be deposited with the UK Government, via the Debt Management
Office for example, or with other local authorities. This will cause a reduction in
the level of investment income earned, but will protect the principal sum
invested.
3.13 Non-specified investments
3.5.12 The CLG Guidance defines specified investments as those:
 denominated in pound sterling,


due to be repaid within 12 months of arrangement,



not defined as capital expenditure by legislation, and



invested with one of:
o the UK Government,
o a UK local authority, parish council or community council, or
o a body or investment scheme of “high credit quality”.
10

Page 93

3.5.13 Any investment not meeting the definition of a specified investment is classed as
non-specified.
The Council does not intend to make any investments
denominated in foreign currencies, nor any with low credit quality bodies, nor
any that are defined as capital expenditure by legislation, such as company
shares. Non-specified investments will therefore be limited to long-term
investments, i.e. those that are due to mature 12 months or longer from the date
of arrangement. Limits on non-specified investments are shown on Table 5
below;
Table 5
Total Long-Term Investments
Total Investments with Building Societies without credit rating or
rated below [A-]
Total investments in MMF
Total of other non-credit rated Pooled Funds
Total of Funding Circle Loans (non-credit rated)
Total non-specified investments

Cash Limit
£50m
£75m
£40m
£3m
£0.1m
£168.1m

3.5.14 The total cash limit on Money Market Funds has been increased to £40m to
diversify away from Debt Management Account Deposit Facility (DMADF) and
other local authorities owing to the fixed nature of investments with these
institutions which limits the Council’s ability to respond to unexpected cash outflow requirements.
4.

Liquidity management

1.10.

The Council uses purpose-built cash flow forecasting software (Logotech) to
determine the maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed.
The forecast is compiled on a pessimistic basis, with receipts under-estimated
and payments over-estimated to minimise the risk of the Council being forced to
borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments.

1.11.

Limits on long-term investments are set by reference to the Council’s medium
term financial plan and cash flow forecast.

1.12.

In addition to the above, a new Daily Cash Flow excel workbook is in place. This
cash flow is updated, line by line, on a daily basis and compared to the forecast
and this is providing further comfort to the Council’s cash position.

5.

Planned investment strategy for 2015/16

1.13.

The cash flow forecast will be used to divide surplus funds into three categories:
11

Page 94

 Short-term – cash required to meet known cash outflows in the next month,
plus a contingency to cover unexpected cash flows over the same period.
 Medium-term – cash required to manage the annual seasonal cash flow
cycle, including amounts to cover forecast shortages, planned uses of
reserves, and a longer-term contingency.
 Long-term – cash not required to meet cash flows, and used primarily to
generate investment income.
1.14.

Short-term funds are required to meet cash flows occurring in the next month or
so, and the preservation of capital and liquidity is therefore of paramount
importance. Generating investment returns is of limited concern here, although
it should not be ignored. Instant access money market funds and bank deposit
accounts will be the main methods used to manage short-term cash.

1.15.

Medium-term funds which may be required in the next one to twelve months will
be managed concentrating on security, with less importance attached to liquidity
but a slightly higher emphasis on yield. The majority of investments in this
period will be in the form of fixed term deposits with banks and building
societies. A wide spread of counterparties and maturity dates will be maintained
to maximise the diversification of credit and interest rate risks; this may be
achieved by the use of suitable medium-term money market funds. Deposits
with lower credit quality names will be made for shorter periods only, while
deposits with higher quality names can be made for longer durations.

1.16.

Cash that is not required to meet any liquidity need can be invested for the
longer term with a greater emphasis on achieving returns that will support
spending on local authority services. Security remains important, as any losses
from defaults will impact on the total return, but fluctuations in price and even
occasional losses can be managed over the long term within a diversified
portfolio. Liquidity is of lesser concern, although it should still be possible to sell
investments, with due notice, if large spending commitments arise unexpectedly.
A wider range of instruments, including structured deposits, certificates of
deposit, gilts and corporate bonds will be used to diversify the portfolio. The
Council will consider employing external fund managers that have the skills and
resources to manage the risks inherent in a portfolio of long-term investments.

1.17.

With short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-term rates, due
consideration will also be given to using surplus funds to make early repayments
of long-term borrowing. In addition to the savings on the interest rate
differential, this strategy will also reduce the Council’s exposure to credit risk
and interest rate risk.

6.

Borrowing Strategy

1.18.

The Council currently holds £412.7 million of long-term loans, with no movement
from the previous year. The Council’s capital financing requirement (CFR, or
underlying need to borrow for capital purposes) as at 31st March 2015 is
expected to be £609.4 million, and is forecast to rise to £704.3 million by March
12

Page 95

2016 as capital expenditure is incurred. This will be funded from the current
cash balances held.
1.19.

The maximum expected long-term borrowing requirement for 2015/16 is:
Table 6: Maximum Expected Long-Term borrowing Requirement for £m
2015/16
Change in underlying need to borrow
Less: Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
Equals: Forecast increase in Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
Plus: Loans maturing in 2015/16
Equals: Total long term borrowing requirement

111.963
(15.765)
96.198
0.0
96.198

1.20.

However, depending on the pattern of interest rates during the year, it may be
more cost effective to defer borrowing until later years, and to temporarily
reduce the size of the Council’s investment balance instead.

1.21.

In addition, the Council may borrow for short periods of time (normally for up to
two weeks) to cover unexpected cash flow shortages.

1.22.

Sources of borrowing
The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing will be:


Public Works Loan Board



any institution approved for investments above



any other bank or building society approved by the Financial Services
Authority



capital market bond investors



Special purpose companies created to enable joint local authority bond
issues.

1.23.

Planned borrowing strategy for 2015/16

1.1.1

The base assumption is that the Council will not enter into any new borrowing
and funding will be raised internally and we will review opportunities in the long
term. With short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-term rates, it
is likely to be more cost effective in the short-term to either borrow short-term
loans, variable rate loans or to not borrow and reduce the level of investments
held instead. However, with long-term rates forecast to rise in the coming years,
any such short-term savings will need to be balanced against the potential
longer-term costs.

1.1.2

Loans that present additional risk to the authority, such as lender’s option
borrower’s option (LOBO) loans will be limited to £10m. Variable rate loans will
be subject to the limit on the net exposure to variable interest rates in the
treasury management indicators below.

1.1.3

The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity and either pay a
premium or receive a discount according to a set formula based on current
13

Page 96

interest rates. The Council may take advantage of this and replace some higher
rate loans with new loans at lower interest rates, or repay loans without
replacement, where this is expected to lead to an overall saving or reduction in
risk.
1.2

Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives

1.2.1

Local authorities (including this Council) have previously made use of financial
derivatives embedded into loans and investments both to reduce interest rate
risk (e.g. interest rate collars and forward deals) and to reduce costs or increase
income at the expense of greater risk (e.g. LOBO loans and callable deposits).
The general power of competence in Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011
removes much of the uncertainty over local authorities’ use of standalone
financial derivatives (i.e. those that are not embedded into a loan or investment).
The CIPFA Code requires authorities to clearly detail their policy on the use of
derivatives in the annual strategy.

1.2.2

The Council will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps,
forwards, futures and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to
reduce the overall level of the financial risks that the Council is exposed to.
Additional risks presented, such as credit exposure to derivative counterparties,
will be taken into account when determining the overall level of risk. Embedded
derivatives will not be subject to this policy, although the risks they present will
be managed in line with the overall treasury risk management strategy.

1.3

Derivative counterparties
Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that
meets the approved investment criteria. The current value of any amount due
from a derivative counterparty will count against the counterparty credit limit and
the relevant foreign country limit.

7.

Treasury Management Indicators

1.4

The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management
risks using the following indicators. The Council is asked to approve the
following indicators:

1.4.1

Security: average credit rating
The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by
monitoring the weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio.
Portfolio average credit rating

Target
A-

For the purpose of this indicator, unrated building societies are assigned an
indicative rating of BBB, and unrated local authorities are assumed to hold a
AA+ rating.
14

Page 97

1.4.2

Liquidity: cash available within three months
The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity risk by
monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments within a
rolling three month period.
Total cash available without borrowing
Total cash available including borrowing

1.4.3

Target
£10m
£20m

Interest rate exposures
This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk. The
upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures, expressed as an
amount of net principal borrowed will be:

Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures
Upper limit on variable interest rate exposures

2015/16
£m
450
50

2016/17
£m
450
50

2017/18
£m
450
50

Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is
fixed for the whole financial year. Instruments that mature during the financial
year are classed as variable rate.
1.4.4

Maturity structure of borrowing
This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to refinancing risk. The
upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing will be:
Under 12 months
12 months and within 24 months
24 months and within five years
Five years and within 10 years
10 years and within 20 years
20 years and within 30 years
30 years and above

Upper
10%
10%
10%
10%
30%
50%
70%

Lower
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.
1.4.5

Principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days
The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of
incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits on the
total principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end will be:
15

Page 98

2015/16
£50m

Limit on principal invested beyond year end

2016/17
£40m

2017/18
£30m

8.

Prudential Indicators 2015/16 to 2017/18

1.5

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities requires
Council to use a set of indicators and limits to provide a control framework for
capital investment and treasury management decisions. The Council is being
asked to approve these Prudential Indicators as part of the Revenue & Capital
Budget report.

1.6

Borrowing limits
The Council is being asked to approve these Prudential Indicators as part of the
Capital Programme report.

1.7

Setting the Borrowing Limits.

1.7.1

The Council is required to set the Operational Boundary and the Authorised
Limit to its external debt. External debt refers to borrowing and other long-term
liabilities e.g. Leasing arrangements.

1.7.2

Both the limits need to be consistent with the Council's plans for capital
expenditure and financing and with its treasury management policy statement
and practices.

1.7.3

The operational boundary is to directly link into the Council's plans for capital
expenditure, the estimates of the capital financing requirement and the estimate
of the cash flow requirements for all other purposes, including revenue.

1.7.4

Table 7 below sets out the Borrowing Limits for the years 2015/16 to 2017/18.
Table 7: Borrowing Limits
Operational boundary – borrowing
Operational boundary – other long-term liabilities
Operational boundary – TOTAL
Authorised limit – borrowing
Authorised limit – other long-term liabilities
Authorised limit – TOTAL

2015/16
£450m
£110m
£560m
£600m
£110m
£710m

2016/17
£450m
£105m
£555m
£600m
£105m
£705m

2017/18
£450m
£100m
£550m
£600m
£100m
£700m

1.8

Capital Expenditure and Affordability

1.8.1

The purpose of the affordability indicators is to show whether capital investment
decisions are affordable and sustainable in the medium term. The key
information that indicates both the affordability and sustainability of the
programme is shown in the table below:-

Table 8: General Fund Prudential Indicators
Affordability

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000
16

Page 99

Estimates of capital expenditure
Estimates of capital financing requirement
GF ratio of financing costs to revenue (%)
Incremental impact on band D council tax levels
(£)
Table 9: HRA Prudential Indicators
Affordability

(Forecast)

(Budget)

(Budget)

(Budget)

97,170
225,829
5.09%

67,304
236,845
3.67%

13,346
228,095
3.20%

40,000
228,751
3.24%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

(Forecast)

(Budget)

(Budget)

(Budget)

112,222
130,327
66,000
37,000
Estimates of capital financing requirement
382,360
468,426
483,648
475,566
HRA ratio of financing costs to revenue (%)
18.50%
21.17%
23.58%
23.15%
Incremental impact on housing rents (£)
2.56
3.03
3.46
3.50
1.8.2 The table above sets out the following indicators for capital expenditure and
affordability:
Estimates of capital expenditure






Actual and estimated capital expenditure;
Actual and estimated capital financing requirement;
Actual and estimated ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream; and
Estimated incremental impact on council tax and housing rents.

1.8.3

The estimates of capital expenditure indicator reflects the capital expenditure
and funding plans set out in Appendices 9 and 10, plus the capitalised value and
funding of relevant long term liabilities (such as PFI arrangements).

1.8.4

The general fund indicator estimated Capital Financing Requirement decreases
over the period 2015/16 to 2017/18, as no new borrowing is planned and the
annual provision made for debt repayment (see the Statement of Policy on
Minimum Revenue Provision at Appendix 9) reduced the underlying need to
borrow. The HRA indicator estimated Capital Financing Requirement increases
over the period as the HRA implements its capital investment plans following
recommendations set out by the Lambeth Housing Commission.

1.8.5

It should be noted that the CFR does not reflect the actual level of external debt.
Neither does it reflect the actual capital expenditure to be incurred in these
years. They are indications of the level of capital expenditure the authority plans
to finance from borrowing (that is, its underlying need to borrow). The Strategic
Director of Enabling, as Chief Finance officer, determines how capital
expenditure is actually financed once a year, after year-end.

1.8.6

The general fund indicator estimated ratio of financing costs to net revenue
stream will remain broadly stable whilst ratio in the HRA is forecast to increase
as the HRA implements its capital investment plans following the reform of
housing finance. The increase is caused by the additional cost of borrowing and
a 2% minimum revenue provision.

1.8.7

The incremental impact on council tax/housing rents is a key indicator of
affordability and shows the incremental impact of borrowing (on council tax and
17

Page 100

rents). They express the cost of proposed changes in the three year capital
programme recommended in this budget report, in comparison with council’s
existing commitments and current plans. Any decision to borrow to finance
capital expenditure creates incremental costs to the authority, which will impact
on council tax/housing rents. It is essential to note that this indicator is not a
projection of increases in council tax/housing rents over the three years. It is
simply an additional tool to aid medium term financial planning.
1.9

Prudence

1.9.1

Gross Debt and the CFR indicator is a key control over the council’s borrowing
activity in relation to its capital expenditure and ensures that over the medium
term net borrowing is only for capital purposes.

1.9.2

No difficulty is anticipated in meeting this requirement for the current or future
years having taken into account current commitments, existing plans, and the
proposals in the budget report. However no borrowing is anticipated for now.

Gross Debt and the CFR Indicator

2015/16
(£m)

Borrowing

412.7

Finance Leases

96.4

Gross Debt

509.1

CFR March 2016

704.3

9.

Other Matters

1.10

The CLG Investment Guidance requires the Council to note the following
matters each year as part of the investment strategy:

1.11

Treasury management advisers

1.11.1 The Council tendered its contract for treasury management advisory services
and Capita Treasury Services were successful and started as the Council’s
advisors on 10 May 2014.
Capita now therefore provides advice and
information on the Council’s investment and borrowing activities, although
responsibility for final decision making remains with the Council and its officers.
The services received include:


advice and guidance on relevant policies, strategies and reports,



advice on investment decisions,



notification of credit ratings and changes,



other information on credit quality,



advice on debt management decisions,
18

Page 101



accounting advice,



reports on treasury performance,



forecasts of interest rates, and



training courses.

1.11.2 The quality of this service is controlled by monitoring its relevance to the
requirements of the authority, the speed at which requests for information are
responded to and how accurate the advice is when evaluated against other
independent but similar institutions.
1.12

Investment training

1.12.1 The needs of the Council’s treasury management staff for training in investment
management are assessed quarterly as part of the staff appraisal process, and
additionally when the responsibilities of individual members of staff change.
1.12.2 Staff regularly attend training courses, seminars and conferences provided by
Capita and CIPFA. Relevant staff are also encouraged to study professional
qualifications from CIPFA, the Association of Corporate Treasurers and other
appropriate organisations. The Council has therefore made a commitment to
support staff in their pursuit to obtaining and maintaining the relevant skills,
qualifications and membership needed as recommended by the CIPFA code
TMP10 “The Council recognises the importance of ensuring that all staff
involved in the Treasury Management function is fully equipped to undertake the
duties and responsibilities allocated to them. It will therefore seek to appoint
individuals who are both capable and experienced and will provide training for
staff to enable them to acquire and maintain an appropriate level of expertise,
knowledge and skills.”
1.13

Investment of money borrowed in advance of need

1.13.1 The Council may, from time to time, borrow in advance of spending need, where
this is expected to provide the best long term value for money. Since amounts
borrowed will be invested until spent, the Council is aware that it will be exposed
to the risk of loss of the borrowed sums, and the risk that investment and
borrowing interest rates may change in the intervening period. These risks will
be managed as part of the Council’s overall management of its treasury risks.
1.13.2 The total amount borrowed will not exceed the authorised borrowing limit of
£600 million. The maximum period between borrowing and expenditure is
expected to be two years, although the Council does not link particular loans
with particular items of expenditure.
1.14

Policy on charging interest to the Housing Revenue Account

1.14.1 Following the reform of housing finance as set out in the report to Cabinet on
12th September 2011 the Council is free to adopt its own policy on sharing
interest costs and income between the General Fund and Housing Revenue
19

Page 102

Account (HRA). The CIPFA Code recommends that authorities state their policy
on this matter each year in their treasury management strategy.
1.14.2 The report agreed the separation of its external loans into GF and HRA pools
and the mechanism for charging interest to each revenue account based on the
weighted average cost of those loans. Following ratification of the localism bill
on the 28 March 2012 the remaining loans were split into a GF pool (£169.6m)
and an HRA pool (£243.1m).
1.14.3 The average cost of PWLB loans is 5.57%. Based on current forecasts the HRA
interest costs for 2014/15 are estimated to be £17m and the GF £6m. (see
paragraph 3.3)
1.14.4 Under self-financing the government has set a cap for each local authority. The
Housing Commission recommended that the council should borrow up to this
amount to fund capital expenditure for the Housing Revenue Account over a 3 to
5 year period starting in 2012/13.
2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

£m

£m

£m

HRA Borrowing Limit

408.078

408.078

408.078

HRA Capital Financing Requirement

382.360

468.426

483.648

Less Myatt’s Field North PFI

(68.336)

(79.538)

(79.538)

HCFR

314.024

388.887

404.110

Additional HRA borrowing allowable

94.054

19.191

3.968

HRA Limit on indebtedness

1.15

Other Options Considered
The CLG Investment Guidance and the CIPFA Code of Practice do not
prescribe any particular treasury management strategy for local authorities to
adopt. The Chief Financial Officer, having consulted the Deputy Leader
(Finance & Investment), believes that the above strategy represents an
appropriate balance between risk management and cost effectiveness. Some
alternative strategies, with their financial and risk management implications, are
listed below.
Alternative

Impact on income and
expenditure
Adopt
a
narrower Interest income will be
definition of “high credit lower
quality” and/or shorter time
limits

Impact
on
risk
management
Reduced risk of losses
from credit related defaults

20

Page 103

Adopt a wider definition of Interest income will be Increased risk of losses
“high credit quality” and/or higher
from credit related defaults
longer time limits
Borrow additional sums at Debt interest costs will
long-term fixed interest rise; this is unlikely to be
rates
offset
by
higher
investment income
Borrow
short-term
or Debt interest costs will
variable loans instead of initially be lower
long-term fixed rates

Reduce level of borrowing

Saving on debt interest is
likely to exceed lost
investment income in the
short/medium
term
depending on changes in
interest rate.
Repaying
debt
would
currently
include
significant
premium costs, which
make it unattractive.

Higher investment balance
leading to a higher impact
in the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs will be more certain
Increases in debt interest
costs will be broadly offset
by
rising
investment
income in the medium
term, but long term costs
will be less certain
Reduced
investment
balance leading to a lower
impact in the event of a
default; however long-term
interest costs will be less
certain

Annex 1
Treasury Management Policy Statement
The Council’s financial regulations require it to create and maintain a treasury
management policy statement, stating the policies, objectives and approach to risk
management of its treasury activities, as a cornerstone for effective treasury
management.
Definition
21

Page 104

The Council defines its treasury management activities as: the management of the
Council’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the
pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.
Risk management
The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk to be
the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management activities will
be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury management
activities will focus on their risk implications for the organisation, and any financial
instruments entered into to manage these risks.
Value for money
The Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide support
towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is therefore
committed to the principles of achieving value for money in treasury management, and
to employing suitable comprehensive performance measurement techniques, within
the context of effective risk management.
Borrowing policy
The Council greatly values revenue budget stability and will therefore borrow the
majority of its long-term funding needs at long-term fixed rates of interest. Short-term
and variable rate loans will only be borrowed to the extent that they either offset shortterm and variable rate investments or can be shown to produce revenue savings.
The Council will set an affordable borrowing limit each year in compliance with the
Local Government Act 2003, and will have regard to the CIPFA Prudential Code for
Capital Finance in Local Authorities when setting that limit. It will also set limits on its
exposure to changes in interest rates and limits on the maturity structure of its
borrowing in the treasury management strategy report each year.
Investment policy
The Council’s primary objectives for the investment of its surplus funds are to protect
the principal sums invested from loss, and to ensure adequate liquidity so that funds
are available for expenditure when needed. The generation of investment income to
support the provision of local authority services is an important, but secondary,
objective.
The Council will have regard to the Communities and Local Government Guidance on
Local Government Investments and will approve an investment strategy each year as
part of the treasury management strategy. The strategy will set criteria to determine
suitable organisations with which cash may be invested, limits on the maximum
duration of such investments and limits on the amount of cash that may be invested
with any one organisation.

22

Page 171

Appendix 11

2015/16 Cumulative
Equality Impact Assessment
Date to Corporate EIA panel: 4 February 2015
Date to Cabinet: 9 February 2015
Date to Full Council: 25 February 2015

Introduction
At the heart of our ethos in Lambeth is the principle of ambition and fairness for all. This has
never been more important than at a time when our financial resources are being eroded by
central government, and we are committed to maintaining it in delivering the services that our
residents rely on.
Lambeth is proud to be home to over 300,000 people, all of whom have needs and aspirations,
and at every stage of policy development and delivery we consider how the decisions we make
will affect them. We have taken great care in putting this cumulative impact assessment
together, and as get we get new information and our policies develop we will refine this further.
We are facing huge financial challenges and some of the decisions we are making have been
difficult. All have been made with the interests of our residents at heart, and the work that we
have done to strengthen communities and understand the needs of our residents will help us to
support them in the years to come.

Councillor Imogen Walker
Deputy Leader and Cabinet member for equalities

Page 172
1. Our approach to equality impact assessing our 2015/2016-2017/18 budget
Scope of this assessment
This assessment identifies those areas within the 2015/16-2017/18 budget which are relevant to
equalities and seeks to describe their potential equalities impact when taken together. Our
approach for assessing the equalities impact of savings proposals is an ongoing process which
underpins cooperative commissioning. At this stage the analysis is indicative and as individual
proposals are further developed and implemented they will be subject to further assessment.
Our legal duties
Prior to April 2011 public authorities, like Lambeth Council were under a legal duty to have due
regard to the need to eliminate discrimination and promote equality with regard to race, disability
and gender, including gender reassignment, as well as to promote good race relations. In April
2011 the Equality Act (2010) introduced a new public sector duty which extends the protected
characteristics covered by the public sector equality duty to include age, sexual orientation,
pregnancy and maternity, and religion or belief.
Section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to:




eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
prohibited by the Act;
advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic
and people who do not share it; and
foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.

Having due regard means consciously thinking about the three aims of the Equality Duty as
part of the process of decision-making. This means that decision makers must be able to
evidence that they have taken into account any impact of the proposals under consideration on
people who share the protected characteristics before decisions are taken – this includes
decisions relating to how they act as employers; how they develop, evaluate and review policy;
how they design, deliver and evaluate services, and how they commission and procure from
others.
In the context of major reductions being required we have therefore endeavoured to ensure that:



The process followed to assess the equality impact of financial proposals is robust; and
The impact financial proposals could have on equality groups is thoroughly considered
before any decisions are taken.

By law as assessment must:



Contain sufficient information to enable a public authority to show it has paid “due
regard” to the equalities duties in its decision-making; and
Identify methods for mitigating or avoiding any adverse impact

Our approach to ensuring equality impacts are considered as part of cooperative commissioning
and financial decision making is therefore designed to demonstrate that the Council has proper
regard to these aims, in accordance with its statutory equality duties. It seeks to ensure that
even in this time of economic challenges the substantial savings are identified and delivered in a
balanced and sustainable way. This is key to the political administration who have prioritised
2
Cumulative Equalities impact assessment 2015/16

Page 173
equality as one of the three key elements of their vision for the borough (equalities- protecting
those that need it most; resilience – growing strong communities; and early intervention and
prevention- stopping problems from happening in the first place).
Our Approach
In 2010 Lambeth council started its journey to becoming a Cooperative Council. This means
that we believe that working together to empower people we can achieve more than if the
council acts alone – we call this coproduction.
The council is focused on achieving 13 outcomes for local communities. These have been
identified through evidence and coproduction with local people and are organised under three
themes: cleaner streets; more jobs and safer communities (see below for a visual summary of
how the 13 outcomes fit together and our overarching strategy around resilience, prevention
and equality).

In 2014/15 we introduced three outcome panels. They bring together officers and politicians to
shape the cooperative commissioning cycle and work out how best to spend the budget
available to achieve outcomes for our communities. The three outcome panels – Housing Jobs
and Investment; Community Wellbeing and Neighbourhoods, Environment and Sustainability
developed the proposals which underpin the 2015/16-2017/18 budget. Each outcome panel has
considered the equalities issues associated with the proposals as part of the discursive
development of proposals.
For the first time each new proposal includes an equalities relevance assessment. Where
possible, equality analysis sets out the equality implications, justification and mitigations. We
3
Cumulative Equalities impact assessment 2015/16

Page 174
believe that bringing the equality analysis into each individual budget proposals demonstrates
how we are mainstreaming equalities and making it part of everything we do.
In undertaking the cumulative impact assessment we have focused on the following:






As the proposals have developed they have been screened for potential impacts on
those with protected characteristics (race, sex, disability, religion or belief, sexual
orientation, pregnancy and maternity, and age), and on non-statutory equalities
considerations that Lambeth includes in its equalities analysis: language, socioeconomic and health and social wellbeing. For the first time we have not completed
separate EIAs on each proposal, we have embedded our equality analysis as part of
each individual proposal (see Appendix 2 Budget report, December 2014).
Initial assessment of the potential cumulative equalities impacts has been carried out,
and is reported here along with the potential impact of the budget proposals on the
community outcomes and equality objectives.
This cumulative EIA report will be considered by Corporate EIA panel and then by
Cabinet alongside the budget, and also by Council.

4
Cumulative Equalities impact assessment 2015/16

Page 175
2. Evidencing what matters most to local people
Perceptions of the council
Despite the budget reductions over the last few years, satisfaction with the council (64%) and
the proportion of adults feeling that the council provides value for money (48%) has reached the
highest levels recorded (2014 residents’ survey). Residents are more satisfied with their local
area as a place to live than ever before (88%) and they are feeling more informed about the
council (64%). This is extremely positive given the scale of the cuts already implemented and
demonstrates the impact the council is having.
Figure 1:

Satisfaction, VfM and feeling informed are all up

Q1: Overall, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with your local area as a place to live?
Q2 .Taking everything into account, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the way Lambeth Council runs things?
Q3.To what extent do you agree or disagree that Lambeth Council provides value for money?

100

Satisfaction with local area

90
80
70

Satisfaction with council

60
50

Feeling informed*

40

VfM

30
20
10
0
Satisfaction with Council

2005

Nov
2009

Feb
2010

Apr
2010

Aug
2010

Nov
2010

Feb
2011

April
2011

Aug
2011

Nov
2011

Apr
2012

Nov
2012

April
2013

April
2014

54

52

43

55

56

55

54

53

56

55

52

56

55

64

VfM

33

34

34

39

39

38

37

33

30

39

36

41

48

Satisfaction with area

79

79

81

81

Feeling informed*

60

56

59

56

78
54

54

55

86
52

58

51

44

88
64

64

Residents survey 2014 Base: All Q1: all respondents ( 1013) Q2: 1002, Q3 988 (respondents excluding don’t
knows / not stated) 2003 – Apr 2013 Adult base (circa: 750) *Scale: feeling very or fairly well informed

However, it is important to note that a significant number of local residents do not understand
that the council is faced with reducing budgets and so expectations of council services are likely
to remain high (45% of residents think the council has a reduced budget, 31% think the council
has more or the same amount of money and 24% don’t know, April 2013, see figure 2).

5
Cumulative Equalities impact assessment 2015/16

Page 176
Figure 2:

Which outcomes matter most?
This year, instead of asking about satisfaction with services, we asked residents to prioritise the
council’s outcomes. Figure 2 overleaf shows that when asked on the doorstep the outcomes
that people say matter most are around safety (54%), cleanliness (44%), housing (41%) and
young people (41%).
Of those who prioritise safety - tackling gangs and violence (88%), dealing with anti-social
behaviour (87%), ensuring there are safe places to play (82%) and supporting victims of
domestic violence (72%) are seen as most important. People who prioritise cleanliness think
that street cleaning (84%), waste reduction and recycling (67%) and road and pavement repair
(65%) are most important.
However, we also conducted more in depth qualitative research to really get people to think
about the outcomes. This research found a different prioritisation with crime still placing at the
top, but other outcomes including ‘vulnerable adults and children get support and protection’
and ‘people having the skills to find work’ moving into the top 3.
This evidence suggests that when given an opportunity to consider the outcomes in more detail
that local people prioritise those areas that impact on the most vulnerable.

6
Cumulative Equalities impact assessment 2015/16

Page 177
Figure 2:

Top of mind, the most important
outcomes are…

Q26:Looking at the following list, thinking about Lambeth as a whole, which three are the most important for
the council to put the money it receives into?
Ensuring Lambeth is a safe and friendly place to
live

54%

Ensuring Lambeth is a clean and
environmentally sustainable place to live

44%

Creating more opportunities for better quality
homes

41%

Helping young people to achieve their ambitions

41%

Supporting vulnerable people in the community

32%

Supporting the Lambeth economy and
employment
Helping residents to lead healthy lives

24%

15%

Residents survey 2014 Base: All respondents (1013)

Figure 3:

But there is a difference between top
of mind and detailed conversations
Can be achieved through
social and economic
interventions

Priority #1 Crime reduces

A core function

Priority #2 Vulnerable adults and children get support and protection
Priority #3 People have the skills to find work

A key driver of perception

Priority #4 Lambeth residents have more opportunities
for better quality homes
Priority #5 All young people have opportunities to
achieve their ambitions

Both providing care and enabling
independence are important

Priority #6 Older, disabled and vulnerable
people can live independently
Priority #7 People achieve financial security

Culture is changing – the
council should support

Can be achieved through
outcomes like housing and
jobs

The appetite for this is big but needs
initiatives to get things moving

Priority #10 All Lambeth communities feel
valued and part of their neighbourhood
Priority #11 People lead environmentally
sustainable lives

Maintaining existing vibrancy is
important

Interplay of factors contributing
to young people’s self-belief

Priority #8 People are healthier, for longer
Priority #9 People take greater
responsibility for their neighbourhoods

It is clear that the council
is committed to this idea

Consistent views on how to do
this e.g. apprenticeships

Priority #12 People live in, work in and visit
our vibrant and creative town centres
Priority #13 Lambeth plays a strong role in London’s economy

Enforcing role for the
council is important
Lambeth already plays a strong role.
Council can advocate

Source: Murmur qualitative research 2014. Based on in depth interviews about the community outcomes with 50 residents from a variety of backgrounds

7
Cumulative Equalities impact assessment 2015/16

Page 178
Potential changes to services
We previously asked residents about the services they think need to be protected and those
which could be reduced. Residents prioritised all social services, support services for
disabled residents, weekly waste collection, youth and children’s centres. On the back of
these findings many of these services have previously been protected. Areas where residents
would be most comfortable for the council to introduce or increase fees or fines are fly-tipping
and graffiti removal, arts and cultural activities, evening classes/adult education, sports and
leisure facilities, parking and bulky waste collection. It is worth noting that 21% of residents did
not think that fees or fines should be introduced or increased for any services.1
Different residents, because of their circumstances and the types of service they use, have
different priorities and concerns. Detail on which equality groups are more concerned than
average about particular issues is as follows:


Ethnicity: It is important to note that the different ethnic groups in Lambeth have very
different socio-economic profiles and so some apparent differences by ethnicity may
actually reflect the work profile, tenure or deprivation experienced by a particular group,
rather than their ethnicity. White British residents are more likely to prioritise he council’s
outcomes around safety and cleanliness and protecting the vulnerable. White residents
from non-British backgrounds are more likely to say that the level of crime is the thing
that most needs improving in their local area.
Black Caribbean residents, who on average have been in residence longer than other
groups, have consistently rated services and the council less positively since we started
collecting comprehensive perceptions data 15 years ago. Black Caribbean residents are
more likely to be dissatisfied with the value for money provided by the council, more
likely to be dissatisfied with the way the Council runs things. They are more likely to say
that the Council should prioritise spending on better quality homes and on the Lambeth
economy and employment.
Black African, Asian and Mixed race residents’ priorities for council spending are in line
with the borough average, with the exception of healthy lives and supporting vulnerable
people which black African residents rank less highly than average.





1

Age: Young people (age 18 – 24) are less likely to agree that changes to the local
neighbourhood benefit them personally and they are less likely to know how to get
involved with what the Council is doing locally. They are more likely to think helping
young people achieve their ambitions is important. Older residents (65+) are more likely
to think the council should prioritise spending on vulnerable people and helping residents
live healthy lives.
Gender: Crime continues to be the main concern for both men and women. Women are
more likely to say that the council should prioritise spending on helping young people
achieve their ambitions. This likely reflects that they are more likely to have caring
responsibilities for children and young people than men. Men are more likely to say
helping people lead healthy lives should be a priority for council spending, the latter
possibly reflecting that male residents are more likely to say they their health is good
than women.

Lambeth residents’ survey 2010

8
Cumulative Equalities impact assessment 2015/16

Page 179









Sexual orientation: Local data2 shows that Lesbian, Gay or Bisexual residents are
more concerned about pollution and homelessness, however drawing on national data3
we know that LGBT people experience problems finding accommodation where they feel
safe and that is LGBT-friendly. They also perceive a reduction in sexual health and
mental health services that addresses their specific needs, which has created greater
feelings of marginalisation and invisibility as specialist LGB services and support are
removed; we can reasonably expect attitudes to be similar in Lambeth. Heterosexual
residents are more concerned about a lack of jobs.
Religion/belief: Christian residents are more likely to say that job prospects are the
most important thing in making Lambeth a good place to live. They are more likely to say
that encouraging businesses to bring jobs to the borough and providing advice for small
businesses and career advice and mentoring for Lambeth residents is very important.
They are more likely to say that standards of council and private rented housing in the
area should be improved and that shopping facilities should also be improved.
Disability: Residents with a disability or long-term illness are more likely to think the
council should prioritise spending on vulnerable people
Socio-economic: Residents living in the least expensive quintile of housing, an
indicator of socio-economic deprivation, are more likely to prioritise outcomes relating to
housing and jobs.
Carers are more likely to say that the Council should prioritise spending on supporting
vulnerable people in the community and helping young people to achieve their
ambitions.

The information for sexual orientation has been taken from previous residents surveys as the sample
size was not sufficient in the 2014 survey to disaggregate data at this level.

2

3

NatCen research on the implications of austerity for LGBT people and services

9
Cumulative Equalities impact assessment 2015/16

Page 180
3. Equalities relevance of individual budget proposals
Methodology
The proposals analysed in this report cover the full range of savings proposals contained within
the 2015/16-2017/18 budget. The analysis in this report is subject to change in response to
alterations to any of the individual proposals. The table below summarises the relevance to
equality of each proposal, and described the equalities groups which the proposals may have a
disproportionate impact on when compared with the Lambeth population as a whole.
It is worth noting that the customer profile for some services does not reflect the borough-wide
population. For example, support services to older people are more likely to be used by older
people. This means that any change to activities will have a disproportionate impact by age
when compared to the borough population overall, but it may be a proportionate impact on
service users (i.e. the profile of customers before and after the change is likely to be the same).
Proposals previously agreed which will be implemented from 2015/16 onward have already
been subject to equality analysis and amount to £37.6m. Therefore, only new proposals were
assessed for relevance to equalities. This relevance assessment is summarised in the table
below. The majority of proposals which were assessed as not relevant to equalities relate to
changing how services and activities are funded, as opposed to changes to the services
themselves.
It is also important to note that there are proposed £12.7m in new savings to be realised through
council tax adjustments. £6.9m of this reflects that the number of properties from which we are
collecting council tax has increased, and that we are getting better at collecting council tax;
while £5.7m will be achieved through increasing council tax rates by 1.99%. The council tax
increase will have some equality implications and a full EIA is in the process of being drafted.
Prior to the formal decision being taken to increase council tax the Corporate EIA panel will
consider the equality analysis and mitigations which the organisation intends to put in place.
All proposals which are relevant to equalities have been discussed at the Corporate EIA panel
and those discussions have been built upon through Overview and Scrutiny.
The recommendations of Overview and Scrutiny which relate to equalities are:
(1)

that there continue to be discussions to strengthen the equalities framework reflecting the
committee’s concern that conversations with service users, carers and people with
protected characteristics do not always happen at pertinent times

(2)

that specifically in relation to the proposals for adult social care and health integration
there be robust monitoring of implementation and evaluation of impacts on communities
and a report back on impacts be brought to Overview and Scrutiny Committee for review

The Corporate EIA panel will have consideration to the recommendations of Overview
and Scrutiny and 1. check that conversations with service users, carers and people with
protected characteristics are meaningful and happening early in the process in relation
to the 4 proposals highlighted in this assessment (children’s, adults, street lighting and
community safeguarding); and 2. Schedule conversations following implementation of
the proposals to understand what the impacts on communities may have been.

10
Cumulative Equalities impact assessment 2015/16

Page 181
Figure 5
Proposal

Neighbourhood Environment and Sustainability
Capitalisation of revenue funded assets
Reduced subsidy for bulk recycling containers
Increased income for pest control
Capital investment in LED and control management
Community safeguarding
Re-procuring of parking contracts
Housing Jobs and Investment
Savings to business growth and regeneration
Fees, charges and traded services
Social welfare advice HRA recharge
Housing benefit admin costs grant funded
Community wellbeing
Children’s services

Adults’ services

Equalities Relevance

Not relevant to equalities
Relevant to equalities
(socio-economic,
ethnicity)
Not relevant to equalities
Relevant to equalities
(disability, age,
pregnancy/maternity)
Relevant to equalities
(ethnicity, socioeconomic, gender)
Not relevant to equalities

Date
discussed at
Corporate
EIA panel

Dec 2014

920
600

Dec 2014

30
600

Dec 2014

252
500

Not relevant to equalities
Not relevant to equalities
Not relevant to equalities
Not relevant to equalities

185
125
240
120

Relevant to equalities
(age, gender, disability,
socio-economic, health)

Dec 2014

Relevant to equalities
(age, gender, disability,
socio-economic, health)

Jan 2015

Total new savings

11
Cumulative Equalities impact assessment 2015/16

New Savings

No new
savings but
revisions to
how previously
agreed
savings will be
achieved
20,000
£23.572m

Page 182

The rest of this section provides a narrative summary of the totality of new proposals being brought forward
through the 2015/16-2017/18 budget.
NEIGHBOURHOODS, ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY
Waste Strategy:






As part of our waste and cleansing contract with Veolia, we currently pay an annual sum to cover
depreciation in the value of vehicles, buildings and equipment. By paying this charge through
capital funding, rather than using revenue (as we currently do), we can save the service nearly
£1m per year.
Save £600k per year by charging an annual hire charge for recycling bins for blocks of flats,
which are currently 100% subsidised by the council. We will still subsidise the cost by 25% to
keep the incentive for recycling and any charge will not affect those in social housing, where
reduction in costs elsewhere means this cost can be met without an increase in rents.
Make an extra £30k per year by promoting our already successful pest-control, animal welfare
and environmental health service to increase its work and issue fixed penalty notices to tackle
graffiti, fly-tipping and public health issues.

Street Lighting:


Save £600k per year by switching to less energy intensive and easily maintained LED street
lights. Investing in LED technology and implementing a Control Management System which will
enable the council to control street lighting down to an individual street lamps. This will require an
up-front capital investment, but the LED technology is much cheaper and more environmentally
friendly – so there will be positive environmental impacts as a result of this proposal. Following
the move to LED lights with a centralised control, the council will develop a set of proposals that
meet the approved British Lighting Standards to maximise the benefits of adaptive lighting.

Parking:


All separate contracts relating to parking (e.g. issuing permits, penalty charge notices,
maintenance of machines, online and phone payment services) will expire in July 2015 and will
be re-procured under one single contact. We aim to get a 7% discount by using one large
contract, which should save £500k per year.

Community Safeguarding:





Save £952k over the next three years by bringing all crime and anti-social behaviour issues
under one ‘Community Safeguarding’ service which will be organised through geographical
neighbourhood teams, working closely with residents to make reporting easier and prevention
work more effective.
The only borough-wide functions will be either grant funded or paid for through specific
programmes such as Violence Against Women and Girls programme.
Income will be raised through the sale of CCTV provision to registered social landlords and other
housing providers and increases in certain licensing fees for businesses.

HOUSING, JOBS AND INVESTMENT
Business Growth and Regeneration:


This is an area of council work that’s funded through the planning system and significant savings
have already been agreed, with a total of £820k over the next three years. There will be no
significant changes to the service and no direct impact on residents.

Private Sector Housing:

Page 183



Lambeth council is required by law to provide an environment health service to investigate,
licence and enforce housing rules in the private sector. We are not allowed to make a profit from
this work but we can change the way we charge for services. To save £125k over three years,
we will move from a fixed fee for landlords to hourly charges, be tougher with enforcements and
encourage landlords to use the Home Improvement Agency service which charges a fee of 15%.

Financial Resilience:


By transferring the financial responsibility for our Social Welfare Advice service to the Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) and better utilising grant funding to pay for Housing Benefit
administration, we can save £360k over three years.

COMMUNITY WELLBEING
Children’s Services







We can save £11.5m over the next three years. The resources we have will be used to support
children, young people and their families and prevent problems escalating. Over the long term,
we believe this approach will save money; fewer children will end up in care and families will be
less dependent on care services.
We will stop funding some satellite children’s centres and convert others so they offer a wider
range of facilities such as early learning for two year olds. We’ll make it easier for families to get
care and support through a ‘one stop’ point and the family support services will work
geographically in the south east, south west and north of the borough in a more joined-up way.
The current substance misuse service will be managed by a partner organisation and support for
teenage parents that’s currently run by the council will be taken on by the network of Family
Nurse Practitioners, funded by the LEAP Big Lottery award.
We will recruit more foster carers so we can reduce the number of children placed outside
Lambeth.

Adult Services








We can save more than £25m over the next three years.
We will develop a fully integrated and preventative health and social care service, delivered
between Lambeth and neighbouring Southwark through the Southwark and Lambeth Integrated
Care programme (SLIC), with health money invested to reduce pressures in the long-term.
People will have an individual allocated budget for care including mental health, adult learning
disabilities and social care services. By removing the Council-managed, centralised services,
there will be a lot more choice to create more personalised care provision.
Allowing people to manage their care directly and receive services in their own home is a more
preventative - rather than reactive - approach to care and will reduce demand for residential and
nursing care in the long-term.
Rather than centralised services imposed on people with health and social care needs, we aim to
introduce much more choice for people to access services themselves including day care
opportunities and cooked meals, through a 24-hour care line and the introduction in Lambeth of
the ‘Care Place’ online service.
The much more streamlined service will also make considerable savings in staff resources.

13
Cumulative EIA report 27/01/2015

Figure 6 – Existing and new savings 2015/16 – 2017/18
AREA

NES - Agreed July Proposals

Waste Strategy

HJI - Agreed July Proposals

Business, Growth & Regeneration
Private Sector Housing
Financial Resilence
CW - Agreed July Proposals

Children's Services

Adult Services

14
Cumulative EIA report 27/01/2015

Page 2014/15
2015/16
Ref BUDGET EXISTING NEW
0
900
1,700
100

800
100
100
100
400
300
0
0
0
0
0
0

5
11
15
17
22
44,967

28
30
33
12,660

35

42

164,213
221,840

4,500
200
100
100
100
300

0
0
0
800
300
1,000
2,636
987
300
314
170
214
150
800
1,960
1,020
0
9,851
15,151

920
600
30
0
0
125
1,500
3,175
0

100
25
240
0
365

0

4,930
4,930
8,470

TOTAL EXISTING
0
0
900
1,700
100
0
0
0
0
800
0
100
0
100
100
400
0
300
920
600
30
0
0
125
1,500
7,675
200
100
100
100
300
0
100
25
240
0
1,165
300
1,000
2,636
987
300
314
170
214
150
800
1,960
1,020
0
4,930
14,781
23,621

800
700
1,300

600
1,000
500
500
200
200
100

100

0
0
0
0
0
6,000
200
100
100
100
300
100
0
0
0
0
900
1,000
576
961
300
315
0
329
385
0

0
3,866
10,766

2016/17
NEW
0

TOTAL EXISTING

2017/18
NEW

TOTAL
TOTAL SAVINGS
800
700
2,200
1,700
100
600
1,000
500
500
1,000
200
100
100
100
100
400
100
300
920
600
30
600
500
252
1,600
15,002
400
200
200
200
600
100
185
125
240
120
2,370
300
2,000
3,212
1,948
600
629
170
1,543
535
800
1,960
1,020
20,000
1,516
36,233
53,605
6,000
59,605

800
0
0
0
700
0
1,300
0
0
0
0
0
600
0
1,000
0
500
0
500
0
200
0
200
0
0
0
100
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
100
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
600
600
0
0
0
500
500
0
0
0
0
0
0
127
127
100
100
1,200
7,200
0
127
127
0
200
0
0
0
100
0
100
0
100
0
300
0
100
0
0
0
0
85
85
0
0
0
100
100
0
0
0
0
0
120
120
0
0
0
120
1,020
0
185
185
0
0
1,000
0
0
0
576
0
0
0
961
0
0
0
300
0
0
0
315
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
329
1,000
0
1,000
385
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
20,000
20,000
0
-3,414
-3,414
0
0
0
16,586
20,452
1,000
1,000
17,906
28,672
1,000
312
1,312
Existing (July) Enabling Savings - Smart Support
TOTAL SAVINGS

Page 184

Street Lighting
Parking
Community Safeguarding
Street Cleaning Services

PROPOSAL
Implementation of phase 2 community hubs programme
Recommissioning of leisure contract
Implementation of hub-spoke model across parks and open spaces
Effecting behaviour change - localised waste management plans
Veolia to be first point of contact with citizens
Procure disposal of comingled recycling
Phase 3 waste strategy
Renegotiate Veolia overheads
Increase commercial waste income
WRWA reduction in residual gate fee (800k accelerated to 15/16)
Reduction in staffing
Capitalisation
Contract efficiencies and new ways of working
Restructure in community safety functions and additional PCSO contract
Trading Standards
Noise nuisance and environmental enforcement
CCTV
Cemeteries & Crematoria
Capitalisation of revenue funded assets
Reduced subsidy of bulk recycling containers
Increased income for Pest Control
Capital investment in LED & control management
Re-procurement of parking contracts
Increased income for CCTV service
Street Cleaning Services
NEIGHBOURHOODS, ENVIRONMENT & SUSTAINABILITY
Re-commissioning employment pathways and enterprise development
Establish BIDs to support vibrant and creative town centres
Reduction in homelessness prevention payments to landlords
Efficiency savings on contracts and service delivery
Welfare reform support, homelessness prevention, property standards
Increase in HRA contribution to tenancy support service costs
Savings to Business, Growth & Regeneration
Fees, Charges and Traded Services in Private Sector Housing
Social Welfare Advice HRA recharge
Housing Benefit admin costs grant funded
HOUSING, JOBS & INVESTMENT
Education, Estates & Capital
Full Redesign of Childrens Social Staff
Reducing and redesigning external placements includes CWD
Family Support: Redesign
Childrens centres
Early Years Quality Improvements
Other Commissioned Services
Universal Services
Education (incl. Traded Services)
Health and Social Care Whole System Integration
Personalisation
Adult Social Care Efficiencies
New model of integrated health and social care
Redirected health funding
COMMUNITY WELLBEING
TOTAL

Page 185

4. Delivering our community outcomes and equalities objectives
Community outcomes
In absolute terms, the largest budget reductions relate to the outcomes within the Community Wellbeing
panel. This is the largest area of council spend.
Below is a brief outline of how we will meet our community outcomes in light of the budget reductions.
Whilst some services will be reduced, our cooperative commissioning process is enabling commissioners to
understand the potential impact across the equalities groups and to use the re-commissioning process to
mitigate, where possible, any potential adverse impact that the reductions could make. This allows the
council to be more targeted in the use of its remaining resources to ensure we are helping those most in
need to achieve better outcomes. At this stage, the proposals are high level and there will be opportunities
to develop them and the appropriate mitigation with citizens across the three year budget cycle.

Community Outcome

How we will achieve it?

Older, disabled and vulnerable
people can live independently
and have control over their
lives

The development of end to end and integrated care is intended
to offer clearer and more consistent routes through services,
and improved working with health services. The development of
these services for older people will offer real advantages, with
refurbished and modernised sheltered housing, and newly built
and fully accessible extra care provision enabling people to
maintain their independence. The expansion of personalisation
also offers the opportunity for people to have greater control
over the services they receive.

Vulnerable adults get support
and protection

Many older people have said that they want to live as
independently as possible in their own homes for as long as
possible without the need for institutional care. Reducing the
use of residential care will help to meet this goal. Staff are
working closely with older people to ensure that they are
supported to move to a place that they choose and
personalised budgets will help older people to have more
control.

Vulnerable children get
support and protection

Our ‘universal’ services will continue to provide easy access to
the appropriate support, advice and information for children and
their families and while some children’s centres will be
converted there will still be a breadth of children’s centre
provision across the borough.
The early intervention model will provide early help, improving
outcomes for children and preventing an escalation of need and
the plans over the coming year to grow Lambeth’s pool of local
foster carers will mean more Lambeth children live in or close
to the borough.

Page 186

Children achieve their
ambitions

The proposals are based on providing a range of different
services at an earlier stage for children and families to support
children to achieve their ambitions.
We will commission early intervention and prevention services
in a targeted way to ensure that those most in need receive
effective support.
An early intervention pathway that breaks down barriers
between health and local authority services producing systems
change has the potential to be innovative and creative and to
produce efficiencies and solutions that harness the skills and
experience of the local community.

People are healthier for longer

The commissioning process will focus both on prevention; as a
long term view to tackle causes rather than symptoms; and
targeted interventions that focus on addressing and improving
health conditions in the early stages. This will be vital to
ensuring that we reduce the cost of physical inactivity, improve
the health of our citizens, and give people the best
opportunities to achieve their ambitions.

People lead environmentally
sustainable lives

We will continue to work with our communities to design
sustainability into everyday life. We will ask citizens to minimise
their waste and litter, giving them the resources they need to do
so and enforcing where necessary. Where we do intervene or
provide a service, whether that’s collecting waste or cleaning
streets, it will be targeted at the areas citizens tell us are most
important and in the most efficient and sustainable way.
Residents will have the opportunity to develop and expand
community initiatives and become more involved in their
immediate environment. For example the Snow Wardens
scheme empowers citizens to clear road surfaces close to their
businesses or homes and those of vulnerable neighbours
during periods of snow.

People live in, work in and visit
our vibrant and creative town
centres

We will continue to work to improve the local infrastructure in
recognition that this in turn supports a vibrant local economy. In
particular, we will aim to use our resources more effectively to
improve highways, and minimise disruptions to business and
consumers by requiring utility companies and others to
coordinate their activity when they are working in Lambeth.

Crime reduces

We will focus our work on crime and disorder issues affecting
Lambeth: anti-social behaviour, safe and responsible business
practice, reducing re-offending and preventing violence and
supporting the victims of violence. These services are merged
under a single Community Safeguarding function and we are

People Take Greater
Responsibility for Their
16

Cumulative EIA report 27/01/2015

Page 187

Neighbourhoods

developing geographic teams within community safeguarding to
make reporting easier and prevention work more effective.
Overall we will focus on the high risk incidents that have the
most impact on our residents and communities and cause the
greatest potential harm.

Lambeth Residents have more
opportunities for better quality
homes

We aim to make sure that all residents live in properties that
meet their housing needs and that they can afford, regardless
of who their landlord is. This means all those who need housing
have to consider housing options, including private rented
accommodation. We are working with landlords to increase the
supply of good quality rented housing in Lambeth and
delivering the Lambeth Housing Standard in our own stock. The
commitment to the upkeep and improvement of our council
housing, and the drive to meet the ‘Lambeth Housing Standard’
will be the focus over the next four years as Lambeth Living,
the ALMO which delivers much of Lambeth’s social housing is
brought back in-house.

More jobs and sustainable
growth

The council will use the proceeds of growth to fund
interventions in learning, skills and employment and in growing
our business base. We hope to add as much value as
possible, using our leverage and connections with voluntary /
community organisations, schools / colleges and businesses.
As we support more people into work, we will improve
outcomes for (targeted priority) individuals and families as well
as reducing demand for services/costs to the Council (and
public sector).

People achieve Financial
Security

We are investing to support people to develop greater financial
resilience so they can better cope with changes in their
financial circumstances. We are putting in place a range of
activity to support people who need it, including help to find
work, getting the benefits they are entitled to, and advice on
budgeting.

Equality objectives
Lambeth’s equality objectives are outlined in the Community Plan 2013-16. These objectives were
coproduced with citizens and reflect the shared ambitions for addressing inequality in the borough. Below is
a brief summary of how we are achieving them. At this stage, the proposals are high level and there will be
opportunities to develop them with citizens across the three year budget cycle to create greater alignment
with our equality objectives.

17
Cumulative EIA report 27/01/2015

Page 188

Equality Objectives

How we will achieve it?

Older, disabled and vulnerable
people can live independently
and have control over their
lives

The development of personalisation, end to end and integrated
care is intended to offer clearer and more consistent routes
through services, and improved working with health services,
connecting people with appropriate support at an earlier stage
to maintain independence. Personalisation in particular will give
people greater control and influence over the services they
receive. The development of older people’s housing will
contribute to this equality objective by allowing people to
maintain their independence for longer.

Those at risk of poverty and
hardship are financially
resilient

We are investing to improve financial resilience by redesigning
our financial advice services, supporting people to claim the
benefits they are entitled to, and supporting more people into
work as a route out of poverty. We recognise that digital literacy
will be critical for many in finding employment and claiming
benefits, and so we are working with members of the
community to improve digital literacy for those most at risk of
poverty.

Employment levels rise for:

We will target investment to support those groups identified in
our equality objective. We believe this can and will lead to
better and more tailored support for these groups.

-those with mental ill health
-other disabled people
-parents
-young people (aged 18-24
years)
-black residents

We recognise that the council is only one of a number of
providers of employment services in the borough, and so we
will work with partners to see where it is possible to work
together to target services to support black residents, young
people, disabled people and those with poor mental health and
parents more effectively.

Lambeth’s looked after
children have improved
educational, employment and
youth justice outcomes and
they are independent once
they leave care

The evidence for prevention and early intervention is growing,
and offers a way for public services to achieve better outcomes
and invest scarce resources more effectively. We plan to use
this approach in supporting vulnerable children, families and
young people. We expect this approach to improve outcomes
for Lambeth’s young people, reducing the number of children
entering the care system, with fewer high-need cases going to
adult services.

Community and equality
organisations are enabled to
participate fully in Lambeth’s
commissioning processes.

Working together with local citizens to understand our
communities’ strengths and needs is vital if we are to really
improve outcomes and strengthen our communities. As we
continue to develop the proposals across all outcomes, we
want citizens to become meaningfully involved in
commissioning in all areas of our business. This means we
must use a range of different approaches to enable everyone to

18
Cumulative EIA report 27/01/2015

Page 189

participate.
Black residents, unemployed
residents and long term
residents benefit from
Lambeth’s physical
regeneration

There are a number of regeneration programmes in place
across the borough, including the Future Brixton Programme
and Your New Town Hall, which are expected to benefit
residents including black residents, unemployed residents and
long term residents.

19
Cumulative EIA report 27/01/2015

Page 190

5. Analysis of the cumulative equalities impact
There are 12 budget proposals bringing new savings, worth £25.088m. Of these five are relevant to
equalities. Together these five proposals represent 91% of the new savings brought forward and amount to
£22.968m. This represents an increase from the 2014 cumulative impact assessment where only 31% or
£7.94m of the new savings were relevant to equalities and in 2012/13 where it was 51%. This huge
increase in the size of savings this year reflects that we are looking at the totality of new savings being
brought forward over the next three years, and not just the first year.
If we compare on a like for like basis in 2013 there were £7.94m or 31% of new savings in year 1 which
were relevant to equalities, but in 2014 there are only £0.725m or 10% of year 1 savings which are relevant
to equalities within the first year. This clearly shows that the majority of the proposals in the 2015/162017/18 budget relate to savings to be realised in years 2 and 3. It demonstrates that all of the relatively
easy efficiency savings have already been made and the transformation required to achieve a balanced
budget is much more significant. It is important to note that our remaining budgets are increasingly focused
on targeted and preventative services to help improve people’s quality of life and reduce the inequality gap
for our residents and the savings which are proposed are designed to enable this to happen.
Based on the analysis of the proposals and their predicted impacts, it is disabled people, older people and
BME people, including children, who will potentially be more disproportionally affected. This is due to the
proposed changes to older people’s care and the reduction in services predominantly used by BME people.
There may be less direct disproportionate impacts in the areas of health and wellbeing and socio-economic
however, this may reflect weaker information in this area that makes it more difficult to accurately identify
impact. The relevance assessments show women may be less adversely impacted than older or disabled
people, however the data is slightly nuanced as many older people and carers of disabled people are also
women. Therefore women overall may experience a larger impact than has been identified.
Although certain groups, such as married/civil partnerships, LGB and faith communities, are not highlighted
as being disproportionately impacted by the proposals we concede that this may merely reflect the fact that
information relating to these communities is currently limited and as such makes determining the impact on
these groups problematic.
Impacts on staff
At this stage the equalities impact on staff is unknown. Each of the proposals which impact on staff will
undergo an EIA to identify which staff will be affected and to put forward mitigating actions.
Comparison with the previous cumulative EIA
Similar to this year, the 2013/14 proposals agreed in last year’s budget, found a greater disproportionate
impact on disabled people, older people and BME people. There were a number of mitigations in place to
counter this such as, the development of end to end and integrated care.
The 2012/13 assessment also showed that proposals were more likely to come from the community
wellbeing area, many of which related to changes within adult and family social care. Following the original
assessment in 2012/13 the proposals were revised to lessen the potential impact.

20
Cumulative EIA report 27/01/2015

Page 191

Mitigations
As stated previously many of the proposals which are relevant to equalities are at an early stage of
development. However, mitigations are starting to be developed and are described below:
Children’s services




While some children’s centres may change and reduce the activities they offer a full range of
children’s centre services will be available across the borough.
Placing looked after children with families who live in Lambeth or closer to Lambeth is likely to have
a positive impact on these children.
Greater use of personal budgets within children’s services should have a positive impact as children
and their families will be able to put in place more tailored support packages

Adults’ services




We are choosing to realise savings within Adults services through greater use of personal budgets.
This should have a positive impact as people will be able to put in place more tailored support
packages which relate to their individual protected characteristics.
Greater integration between health and social care should act as mitigation to the budget reductions
being made. For example, integrated health and social care will enable the NHS and council to
intervene early as well as to support people back into their homes after a hospital stay.

Street lighting






No specific proposals have been made about reducing the intensity or duration of street lighting.
These proposals will be developed through 2015/16. However, initial considerations have already
identified the following mitigations are already considered or will be put in place:
The council will work with our Community Safeguarding colleagues and the police to make them
aware of the streets affected by adaptive lighting(through the controlled management system).
Although our benchmarking with other authorities who have already pursued this approach suggests
that there will not be a resultant increase in crime, we will track data to understand whether this is
the case locally.
We are not proposing to dim street lighting beyond that of the approved British Standard. We will
meet with DASL (Lambeth’s key Disability Forum) to understand in more detail what the impacts
might be for people with mobility impairments. We will coproduce with them, if needed, additional
proposals to mitigate the impact for this group of citizens.

Community safeguarding


The council will achieve savings by focussing its resources on the key areas where we can make
the most difference and have the greatest impact on our communities, such as ASB, gangs and
violence against women and girls. Functions that are better delivered by our partners, such as the
police, will continue to be delivered by them but we will no longer dedicate specialist resources to
these areas

Rental charges for recycling containers:


Residents on the lowest incomes who are living in council housing will be protected as the
increase cost will be absorbed by efficiencies elsewhere.

21
Cumulative EIA report 27/01/2015

Page 192



The increase in cost is anticipated to be around £12 per year. There are no mitigations to
support those on low incomes in the private rental sector. But having brought in rental
charges for multi-occupancy waste bins in 2011 we have not been made aware of specific
issues relating to rental charges for this group of citizens.

22
Cumulative EIA report 27/01/2015

Page 193

Summary and conclusion
Our approach involves building equality considerations into budgetary allocations at strategic and at
programme level. In these challenging times this is more not less important, as we look to support the most
vulnerable and reduce inequality.
Public priorities
Residents’ top outcome priorities relate to safety, cleanliness and housing. On the back of these findings
many of these services have not been subject to further changes and reductions through this budget setting
process. 91% of the proposed reductions may have a disproportionate effect on residents with protected
characteristics, but at this stage the proposals are at such an early stage of development it is difficult to
ascertain the precise nature of these impacts. Further equalities analysis will be undertaken as part of
individual proposal development and this analysis will be scrutinised by the Corporate EIA panel.
Potential cumulative equalities impacts of the proposals: The proposals with some relevance to
equality taken together are worth an estimated £22.968m and represent 91% of all the savings proposed.
Of the savings that potentially disproportionately impact residents from particular protected groups, they
may be more likely to impact upon disabled people, ethnic minority residents, younger and older people.
Some of the proposed savings potentially impact on staff; however at this stage the equalities impact is
unknown. 9% of the proposed savings have no relevance to equality.
Lambeth’s overall approach to mitigating impacts: Lambeth is a cooperative council. This means we
will work together with citizens, and look to give them greater control and influence over the decisions that
affect their lives. Cooperative commissioning is intended to put these principles into practice by working
with communities to make the most of their assets, focusing on the change they want to see, and working
together to achieve these outcomes. In the face of reducing financial resources, we know we need to
cooperate closely with our citizens to prioritise resources and find new and creative solutions to long
standing challenges.
We are developing a programme to consult with citizens, including equality groups, on the budget
proposals as they are developed in more detail. This will help us to take account of the potential impact of
the proposals on these groups, and to mitigate these impacts where possible.
Our approach to developing the proposals has been to embed mitigation within them as far as possible. So
that although
Next steps
In February 2015 this cumulative EIA will undergo further scrutiny by the following groups:
•
•

Corporate EIA Panel
Cabinet

This approach will give more opportunities for members to input into the recommendations which will be
implemented alongside the savings proposals. It is important to note that our approach for assessing the
cumulative impact of savings proposals is an ongoing process. At this stage the analysis is indicative and
as individual proposals are further developed and implemented they will be subject to further assessment.

23
Cumulative EIA report 27/01/2015

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 195

Agenda Item 4

Cabinet
9 February 2015
Financial Planning Report – Revenue and Capital Budget 2015/16 – 2017/18: Views and
Recommendations of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director Enabling: Guy Ware
Portfolio: Deputy Leader (Finance and Investment): Councillor Paul McGlone
Contact for enquiries:
ecarter@lambeth.gov.uk
Elaine Carter, Lead Scrutiny Officer 020 7926 0027
Report summary
This report sets out the views and recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
on the budget savings and proposals contained in the report to Cabinet on 8 December 2014
(Financial Planning Report – Revenue and Capital Budget 2015/16 – 2017/18). The proposals
were considered by Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 21 January 2015.
Finance summary
These are set out in the original officer report on the budget for 2015/16 – 2017/18.
Recommendations
That the following recommendations from Overview and Scrutiny Committees be considered:
(1)

that a benchmark criteria be established against which returns on capital investment can
be evaluated. The benchmark will support and inform decision making on whether
schemes under consideration should be adopted. The considerations should include both
commercial and community benefits that emphasise social value.

(2)

that there be a focus on agency and consultancy spend. Lambeth’s reported position as
an outlier in comparison to spend by other similar councils is an issue of concern to the
committee.

(3)

the savings anticipated through the new model of integrated health and social care should
be reassessed, and closely monitored, particularly in light of NHS England downgrading
the forecast of savings that may be achieved through the Better Care Fund.

(4)

that there be further analysis of measures to fund the outstanding deficit gap and future
engagement with Overview and Scrutiny Committee on options put forward particularly in
relation to proposals for Year 3.

Page 196
(5)

work needs to be done to strengthen the application of the equalities framework.
Identified impacts need to be responded to with appropriate positive actions at the
earliest stage rather than merely recorded in the EIA. For example this application might
manifest in involving service users, carers and people with protected characteristics at
pertinent times during a procurement process. In addition the strengthened approach
needs to include an aggregated assessment of the applications of the framework.

(6)

that specifically in relation to the proposals for adult social care and health integration
there be robust monitoring of implementation and evaluation of impacts on communities
and a report back on impacts be brought to Overview and Scrutiny Committee for review.

(7)

the committee notes the continuing risk of an increase in the number of households in
temporary accommodation and the associated pressures on the budget. Temporary
accommodation spend and efforts to reduce it should be considered as part of a future
scrutiny of housing issues.

(8)

the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (finance & budget scrutiny) should have the
minutes of the Asset Management Cabinet Advisory Panel for any capital projects it is
considering alongside the officers' report. The report should make clear why that proposal
has been chosen against other opportunities for investment across council operations.

Page 197
1.

Context

1.1

This reference from the Overview and Scrutiny Committees sets out the views of the
committee on the budget savings and proposals contained in the report to Cabinet on 8
December 2014 (Financial Planning Report – Revenue and Capital Budget 2015/16 –
2017/18).

2.

Proposal and Reasons

2.1

At its meeting on 21st January 2015, Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the
budget and savings proposals set out in the 8th December 2014 Cabinet report. Set out
below are the issues raised during the OSC discussion with the Deputy Leaders and with
the Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing (in relation to community wellbeing
outcomes), and with officers. A number of recommendations were agreed by the
committee following the meeting and are submitted to Cabinet for consideration. The
body of the report below provides the context for those recommendations.
Corporate Budget Strategy and Financial Planning

2.2

Consultants and Agency Staff. Responding to a report that Lambeth has the fourth
highest spend on consultants and agency staff, the committee was advised that this is
an issue for all authorities and particularly within social care. The council has a
recruitment and retention strategy for social care staff and is seeking to understand the
sector better; there are also changes underway within the service including not referring
cases to a social worker if there are other better options to engage with families. The
Director of Social Care (Children) advised that there is a rolling programme of social
worker recruitment but the council is often only able to recruit new social workers who
have restrictions on the children and caseloads they support and the council needs
numbers of good experienced staff. Lambeth is recognised as providing good support
and training to new staff who then often move on having gained relevant experience.
The council is looking at pay etc. and aspires to have a good mix of levels of experience
and reduce reliance on agency workers but experienced staff are often agency workers.
Retaining experienced staff will be about what the Lambeth offer is to those staff but for
some the flexibility offered by temporary and agency working is a lifestyle choice.
Historically caseloads in Lambeth had been very high and the council was committed to
reducing casework to a reasonable level, this has now happened but consequently
requires more social workers hence the use of agency workers.

2.3

Beyond social work, consultants are used short term - for example in Commissioning
when there is not staff available with a specific skill set - and during transition and
organisational change it can be easier to manage with staff that are not permanent.

2.4

Capital Investment. In terms of benchmarking capital investment proposals to decide
whether schemes should be adopted, the committee was advised there is no single
payback and return on investment criteria applied against which options are considered.
Such techniques are often more relevant to commercial investment. A driver for the
council is securing wider community benefits and social value rather than purely
commercial terms, accordingly different measures apply. An underlying principle is the

Page 198
need to make better use of council assets by selling surplus and generating benefits for
the community. An example is the Future Clapham development which delivered a new
library, leisure centre, GP surgery etc. at no cost to the tax payer, and the same will
apply for Brixton (‘Your New Town Hall’). Considerations are managed through AMCAP
(Asset Management Cabinet Advisory Panel) which looks at how the council is using its
assets, how they might be managed better, how revenue savings might be derived, and
how might provide modern first class provision.
2.5

Closing the Funding Gap. The borough is facing huge need and 50% cut in core funding
not taking account of inflation etc. In-year estimates are the best professional guess at
end-of-year spend but Lambeth has always been good at managing pressures and risks
to stay within its financial envelope. The council needs to save £90million over the next 3
years and Cabinet Members would welcome opportunities to engage with Overview and
Scrutiny Committee and provide further focus on closing the funding gap and proposals
being brought forward.

2.6

Partnership Pressures. Partners are also facing financial pressures and austerity
measures but it is a varied picture across the public sector and not all face a comparable
level of funding challenge as the council. Lambeth has been effective in building good
relationships with its range of partners – health, police, schools, transport for London etc.
– and work is on-going to avoid duplication in areas of work. But the council will need to
take those relationships and partnership individually and discuss with each potential
transactions and impacts arising from proposals recognising that all are having to make
decisions they would prefer not to be taking.

2.7

Revenue Income Streams. It was acknowledged that revenue streams anticipated from
some previous budget proposals have not always been realised. The proposals being
put forward which rely on increased revenue income are based on input from
experienced service manager and submitted only where it is known that an offer will be
taken up (e.g. CCTV and associated new requirements; traded services). Lessons have
been learned not to be over ambitious and to charge a realistic fee. There have been
successes with traded services such as H.R and payroll and some opportunities for
wider rollout.

2.8

Whilst it is important to have economic and business ambition there are also inherent
risks in creating an over reliance on business investment and the circumstance of
economic decline.
Community Wellbeing

2.9

Health and Social Care Integration. In response to questions about risks and mitigations
to achieve the £20 million savings expected from the implementation of a new integrated
health and social care model, the committee was advised that Lambeth is one of only 6
authorities across the country whose Better Care Fund (BCF) submission has been
approved. The council and CCG (Clinical Commissioning Group) work closely in
partnership and are planning for the future including through pooled budgets and the

Page 199
BCF demonstrates a vote of approval. Whilst some aspects of the BCF are dependent
on reducing emergency admissions and keeping people out of A&E this is not high risk
for Lambeth and the target reduction for A&E is only 2%. Lambeth benchmarks well, the
borough has a young population and there has been serious commitment across health
and social care to admission avoidance – levels are not increasing at the rate of some
other comparable authorities and the work with providers and the SLIC (Southwark and
Lambeth Integrated Care) appears to be making a difference.
2.10

The savings to be delivered through the Resource Allocation System (RAS) provide a
transparent and quality assured method of assessment and allocation according to
needs. ‘In Control’ was the previous tool for allocating resources but was not equitable
for some groups; RAS is able to benchmark against other authorities and allocate on an
equitable basis. Accordingly a system which reviews people individually and their
personal level of need will both allow people to buy the services they need and the
council to demonstrate transparency in its decision if required.

2.11

Children Services. Highlighting the importance of early intervention and prevention and
the associated longer term cost savings benefits, members questioned on an FOI
enquiry which had revealed that funding for children with mental health problems had
been reduced by 50%. It was acknowledged that the council had made a decision not to
continue with the level of CAMHS (Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services).
The strategy is about meeting needs of children through Targeted Services and the new
CAMHS Strategy will go to the Health and Wellbeing Board in March.

2.12

In relation to Tier 2 & Tier 3 and capacity for wider support to children and families who
need help but cannot access social care provision, partnership work is underway with
the CCG to deliver more early support and interventions. It is intended to map what is
provided across all services and existing inequalities and consider how might redesign
services to reduce gaps. This includes looking at thresholds and across the whole
system - it is critical that this is done partnership with schools as well as health.
Safeguarding remains uppermost in the new system but recognises that partners could
do more and there is not always a need to involve a social worker.

2.13

In relation to the delivery of the substance misuse service, and the positive national
reputation of the SLAM Addictions Service, the committee was advised that it was
important to get the commissioning process right and the best provider in place. The
Strategic Director Commissioning agreed to provide a written response to the associated
issue at Appx2, bullet 2.9

2.14

Section 20 placements (a voluntary accommodation arrangement where the parent
needs help) in Lambeth are low which demonstrates that interventions are good. All
Section 20 are being reviewed to see whether can refer back to the parent/carer.

2.15

On £1million to be saved through Universal Services in 2017/18 and concerns on the
potential impacts, the committee was advised that the council would work with the Young

Page 200
Lambeth Co-operative to support their being self-funding by Year 3 of the programme
but would not anticipate how the YLC would raise funds etc. to deliver services.
2.16

Regarding the future of Children Centres, a remodelling is taking place and consultation
underway. This will include looking at how staff could be consolidated and how health
partners might maximise services provided from Children Centres. A measured,
evidentiary approach will be taken and the council, CCG and LEAP Bid will look at the
financial modelling and reconfiguration. 3% of acute spend will be levered into early
interventions.

2.17

Equality Impact Assessments. Some reservations of confidence in the EIA process were
expressed by the committee and members commented that the council is good at
identifying but not necessarily responding to the needs of its diverse communities (as
had been demonstrated through the earlier ‘Shared Lives’ call-in). This is especially
reflected in adult social care services where there are high numbers of clients from BME
communities and/or with protected characteristics.

2.18

The Deputy Leader (Policy) invited representation from OSC at EIA Panels as observers
to demonstrate the robust approach given to equalities in service redesign and
consideration to people with protected characteristics. There is a rigorous process in
place and at the council’s invitation the LGA will be undertaking a Peer Review in
February. A cumulative impact assessment is being undertaken on proposals, and work
is also being planned to look back at how previous cumulative impact assessments have
borne out. However tough decisions have to be taken and if there are equalities impacts
identified it does not mean that proposals will not be implemented.
Neighbourhoods, Environment and Sustainability

2.19

Capital Investment/Lighting Infrastructure. The committee was advised that payback on
the street lighting proposals will deliver sustainability as well as cost savings. A range of
techniques are used to make judgements on proposals and consider where capital
resources are best applied and will deliver most benefits.

2.20

Community Safeguarding. Delivery will be through a change in emphasis with a local
neighbourhood approach and a focus on issues that local residents say are important to
them. There is close working with the police but policing and crime activities are the
function of the police, the council should focus on anti-social behaviour, enforcement and
environmental crime.

2.21

Parking Contracts The contracts associated with Parking provide a range of benefits
including bringing in a financial surplus which is used to support other schemes such as
the Freedom Pass. There is a need for an intelligence-led and evidence based approach
to parking in the borough and the proposed allocation for CPZ review will provide for a
comprehensive survey of every road across the borough and a fully evidenced report
and modelling to inform future decisions. The current approach is piecemeal; people are
paying for parking and the council should ensure that residents receive a good service

Page 201
that meets needs. The changing transport environment was acknowledged and the need
to provide a vision associated with the audit. The interest in scrutiny supporting an
associated piece of work was highlighted by the committee.
Housing Jobs and Investment
2.22

Members questioned on the London housing crisis and pressures arising from welfare
policy changes and the extent to which the budget accounts for reductions and impacts
arising from the roll out of government changes such as people living in temporary
accommodation, use of discretionary payments and universal credit. The committee was
advised that the council is looking at how it might develop a long term strategy, however
the future of the Discretionary Housing Payments pot is uncertain and paying housing
costs direct to claimants is a real income risk to the council. It is difficult as yet to model
the impacts and there is uncertainty about how Universal Credit will roll out. This will be
paid monthly in arrears so money will not be coming into the council as presently. The
council is seeking to build a strong resilience strategy and support individuals to set up
bank accounts and arrange direct debits. There are also risks associated with the
transient nature of London’s population as people move around different boroughs.

2.23

There has been a rise in Temporary Accommodation across London, Lambeth has
managed this better than some other boroughs but pressures are becoming more
difficult due to levels of demand for housing. The deletion of 3 Housing Benefit posts will
be delivered through efficiency savings

2.24

Members questioned on the impacts and any loss of anticipated income arising from
recent government changes that reduced the level of contribution required when
converting office space to residential accommodation. The committee was advised that
the impact is a net loss on the contribution to affordable housing and this is an issue on
which the council is actively lobbying. The council has a commitment to deliver 1000
homes at target rent and will be active in utilising its own assets as well as via planning
and regeneration opportunities to deliver affordable housing. The biggest loss to
affordable housing is via rent to buy.
Resolved
To recommend to Cabinet
(1) that a benchmark criteria be established against which returns on capital investment
can be evaluated. The benchmark will support and inform decision making on whether
schemes under consideration should be adopted. The considerations should include
both commercial and community benefits that emphasise social value.
(2) that there be a focus on agency and consultancy spend. Lambeth’s reported position
as an outlier in comparison to spend by other similar councils is an issue of concern to
the committee.
(3)

the savings anticipated through the new model of integrated health and social care
should be reassessed, and closely monitored, particularly in light of NHS England
downgrading the forecast of savings that may be achieved through the Better Care
Fund.

Page 202
(4)

that there be further analysis of measures to fund the outstanding deficit gap and
future engagement with Overview and Scrutiny Committee on options put forward
particularly in relation to proposals for Year 3.

(5)

work needs to be done to strengthen the application of the equalities framework.
Identified impacts need to be responded to with appropriate positive actions at the
earliest stage rather than merely recorded in the EIA. For example this application
might manifest in involving service users, carers and people with protected
characteristics at pertinent times during a procurement process. In addition the
strengthened approach needs to include an aggregated assessment of the
applications of the framework.

(6)

that specifically in relation to the proposals for adult social care and health
integration there be robust monitoring of implementation and evaluation of impacts
on communities and a report back on impacts be brought to Overview and Scrutiny
Committee for review.

(7)

the committee notes the continuing risk of an increase in the number of households
in temporary accommodation and the associated pressures on the budget.
Temporary accommodation spend and efforts to reduce it should be considered as
part of a future scrutiny of housing issues.

(8)

the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (finance & budget scrutiny) should have the
minutes of the Asset Management Cabinet Advisory Panel for any capital projects it
is considering alongside the officers' report. The report should make clear why that
proposal has been chosen against other opportunities for investment across council
operations.

3.

Finance

3.1

None additional to those contained in the budget report.

4.

Legal and Democracy

4.1

None additional to those contained in the budget report.

5.

Consultation and co-production

5.1

None additional to those contained in the budget report.

6.

Risk management

6.1

None additional to those contained in the budget report.

7.

Equalities impact assessment

7.1

None additional to those contained in the budget report.

8.

Community safety

8.1

None additional to those contained in the budget report.

9.

Organisational implications

Page 203
9.1

None additional to those contained in the budget report.

10.

Timetable for implementation

10.1

Not applicable.

Page 204
Audit trail
Consultation
Name/Position
Mark Hynes, Strategic
Director
Martin Crump
(Finance Clearance)
Andrew Pavlou (Legal)
Anne Rasmussen
Councillor Ed Davie
Councillor Paul McGlone

Lambeth
cluster/division or
partner
On behalf of Strategic
Director, Enabling
Enabling, Integrated
Support
Enabling, Integrated
Support
Enabling, Integrated
Support
Chair Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Deputy Leader:
Finance & Investment

Date Sent

Date
Received

Comments in
para:

27.01.15

28.01.15

27.01.15

28.01.15

3

27.01.15

28.01.15

4

27.01.15

28.01.15

27.01.15

28.01.15

27.01.15

Note: Draft minutes were also
sent to relevant Directors for
clearance
Report history
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Report no.
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons

N/A
29/1/15
149/14-15
No
No
N/A
N/A

Background information

Agendas items for:
Overview & Scrutiny Committee (21.01.15)
Cabinet (9/12/14)

Appendices

None

Page 205

Agenda Item 5

Cabinet
9 February 2015
Integrated Personalised Support Alliance (IPSA) – Adult Mental Health
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director, Commissioning: Helen Charlesworth-May
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing: Councillor Jim Dickson
Contact for enquiries:
Denis O’Rourke - denisorourke@nhs.net – 0791 788 3008
Report summary
This report seeks agreement for Lambeth Council to enter into a Section 75 Partnership
Agreement ((of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended by the Health and Social
Care Act 2012)) with NHS Lambeth CCG to pool commissioning budgets for Mental Health
Rehabilitation Services and then with these pooled funds enter into an Alliance Agreement with
providers in order to support the transformation of health and social care services.
In April 2014, Lambeth Council (procurement board) and NHS Lambeth CCG and gave
approval for commissioners to commence a process aimed at entering into an alliance contract
agreement with a selected group of providers to support the transformation of mental health
rehabilitation services. This encompasses in-patient NHS bed services and residential care
placements funded by the Council. Both bodies agreed to this negotiated approach as a
‘development pilot’ or ‘proof of concept’. This was justified on the grounds that this is a highly
complex service transformation that requires providers who have demonstrated commitment to
the co-production programme that the Council and CCG have been supporting through the
Lambeth Living Well Collaborative (the LLWC). Providers also need to be able to work on a
collaborative basis to deliver integrated personalised care in a relatively new and untested
contractual approach (alliance contracting) framework within health and social care.
Proposals include the creation of a multi-agency community rehabilitation service to provide
personalised recovery packages of support. This will enable move on from institutional care
settings for c90 people through the provision of social housing, personal budgets and intensive
care and support. The proposal also offers the CCG and Council c23% savings against the
current £12.285m annual budget over three years.

1

Page 206
Finance summary
The proposed total contract value (funding envelope) is shown below:
Year 1
£000
Baseline annual budget
less savings
Pump priming
Total contract value

12,285
(1,943)
1,200
11,542

Year 2 (and
option Year 3)
£000
12,174
(2,800)
0
9,375

The 23% savings target (£2.8m) is delivered in full from year 2 of the contract. The lower
savings agreed in Year 1 take account of the time required to review existing people and agree
a new service offer.
The IPSA proposal consists of financial contributions from NHS Lambeth CCG and Lambeth
Council (the two commissioner participants with the Alliance) are set out in the table below. Both
savings and pump-priming costs are apportioned between NHS Lambeth CCG and Lambeth
Council as partners in the pooled fund proportionate to their budgetary contributions.

Year 1
Gross Budget
Savings
Total
Pump-priming (Non Recurrent)
Total
% Split

CCG
£000s
7,073
(1,119)
5,954
691
6,645
57.6%

LBL
£000s
5,212
(824)
4,387
509
4,896
42.4%

Total
£000s
12,285
(1,943)
10,342
1,200
11,542
100.0%

Year 2 (with option of Year 3)
Gross Budget
Savings
Total
% Split

CCG
£000s
7,073
(1,627)
5,446
58.1%

LBL
£000s
5,102
(1,173)
3,928
41.9%

Total
£000s
12,175
(2,800)
9,375
100.0%

The funding envelope has been set after data modelling took place based on agreed
assumptions and has shown a robust case for savings while maintaining or improving services
to people. The funding envelope will cover the costs of care, care packages and personal
budgets of those who are in the IPSA Services.
As noted above a total of £1.2m non recurrent funding has been agreed by the partners to
support pump priming and transition to the new service.
Recommendations
1)

To agree in principle to the proposed section 75 partnership agreement between
NHS Lambeth CCG and Lambeth Council to support the commissioning of the
Integrated Personalised Support Alliance (IPSA) Agreement, with the provision of
a pooled fund and lead commissioning arrangement, led by NHS Lambeth CCG.

2

Page 207
2)

3)
4)

To agree in principle to the award of two years contract with provision for a one
year extension. To take the form of an Integrated Personalised Support Alliance
Agreement (and allied NHS standard contracts) to support service transformation
as set out in this report.
To agree the proposed financial contribution to the proposed pooled fund as set
out in the report.
To delegate the final sign off of the Section 75 Partnership Agreement and
Alliance Agreement to the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Context
1.1

At the Lambeth Council procurement board on 17 April 2014 and NHS Lambeth CCG
Board Integrated Governance Committee (IGC) on 23 April 2014 it was agreed to
commence negotiations with a group of providers to develop an Alliance Agreement to
support the transformation of rehabilitation services, including secondary care in-patient
rehabilitation services and social care residential care placements. Since approvals were
granted the Integrated Commissioning Team has led a development process, in
collaboration with service providers, to work toward establishing an Alliance Agreement.
Regular updates have been made to NHS Lambeth CCG Board Seminars and Lambeth
Council’s Community and Well Being Outcome Panel.

1.2

Following approval to proceed with the ‘Rehabilitation’ Alliance, commissioners formally
approached the Provider Alliance Group (PAG) (which was set up by commissioners as
part of the LLWC work) with a proposition to enter into an Alliance Agreement to support
transformation of ‘rehabilitation’ services and delivery of key outcomes with a savings
target of c23%. In response, a small group of providers within the PAG; ThamesReach,
Certitude, South London & the Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust (SLaM) and Lambeth
Council Social Care Delivery agreed to form a bespoke Alliance in response to the
invitation to work with commissioners on this initiative. The Alliance was required to
respond to commissioners with a formal written response to the proposition that set out
how they would approach delivery of improved outcomes and the saving’s target. The
Mental Health Integrated Programme (MHIP) Board evaluated this application against
evaluation criteria (previously approved by the NHS Lambeth CCG IGC and the Lambeth
Council Procurement Board) and confirmed that the Alliance had met the core criteria.
On this basis, since July 2014, the process progressed to formal negotiations between
commissioners and providers.

1.3

The IPSA proposal will support better co-operation and co-production with Lambeth
residents, and will contribute to the following community plan outcomes:
Safer Communities
•
Vulnerable people get the support and protection they need;
•
Older, disabled and vulnerable people can live independent lives and have
control over the support they need;
•
People are healthier for longer; and
•
Lambeth residents have more opportunities for better quality homes.
More jobs
•
People are helped to achieve financial security; and
•
People have the skills to find work.
Cleaner streets
•
Communities feel valued and part of their neighbourhoods.

3

Page 208
1.4

The IPSA will also support implementation of the Care Act 2014. The driving principles
of the Care Act are the promotion of wellbeing and the prevention, delay and reduction in
the need for care and support.
The Act aims to clarify the duties of Local Authorities and ensure that people are aware
of what they are entitled to. People using services must also be involved as active
partners able to participate as fully as possible in decisions about their care. This duty to
involve applies in all settings, in care homes as well as the community.

2

Proposal and Reasons

2.1

The proposal seeks to develop a new approach to the commissioning of integrated
services for people with severe and enduring mental health needs, particularly mental
health rehabilitation services. The approach, alliance contracting, is a natural phase of
evolution and builds on the success of the Lambeth Living Well Collaborative ( the
LLWC) which is the partnership platform created and supported by NHS Lambeth CCG,
Lambeth Council and partners to apply co-production practice to the commissioning and
delivery of services and support for people with severe mental health problems.

2.2

The proposal entails delivering personalised integrated care and support for 190 people
currently placed within residential spot placements and in-patient rehabilitation services
currently costing the Lambeth Council and NHS Lambeth CCG £12.285m. The current
bed based services provide limited outcomes for service users and are currently over
budget and subject to increasing demand. The current offer is unsustainable hence the
reason for testing out this new approach.
IPSA Service Offer and Outcomes

2.3

The IPSA will be responsible for two key functions that will support delivery of improved
outcomes for people with complex needs who will benefit from intensive ‘rehabilitation’
support. The first function is to support the current (legacy) residents of in-patient
rehabilitation services and residential care placements to move on to more independent
housing provision. This will be supported recovery based personalised care packages,
including personal budgets.

2.4

The second function will be to support all ‘new’ referrals by intensive rehabilitation
support which is not supported by Community Mental Health Teams (CMHT) or by the
Living Well Network (LWN). This will also involve managing the process and funds for
care packages and personal budgets for all those who are assessed as eligible. This will
all be achieved within the agreed funding envelope.

2.5

Current place of legacy people using rehabilitation services:
Service

Dec 14

SLaM Tony Hillis Unit (THU) ward
SLaM McKenzie ward
SLaM Spot Hospital Placements
LA funded Residential Placements

16
17
22
113

LA Nursing Placements
Total

22
190 people

4

Page 209
2.6

The key services and support which the Alliance will provide are as follows:
•
Care and support co-ordination and facilitation;
•
Regular review of needs;
•
Peer support and befriending;
•
Housing provision and support;
•
Support with finances and managing personal budgets;
•
Support for participation including work and readiness for work;
•
Physical health care and support;
•
Mental health treatment and monitoring; and
•
In-patient care and residential care and support only in exceptional
circumstances.

2.7

The key outcomes which the IPSA is designed to deliver are based on the Big 3
outcomes (that matter to people who use services) developed by LLWC. In addition to
substantially improving outcomes for people, the IPSA expects to deliver 23% savings
against the current budget envelope.
LLWC – “Big 3” outcomes
To support people to :
1. Recover and stay well experiencing improved
- Quality of life
- Physical and mental health
2. Make their own choices & achieve personal goals, experiencing increased
- Self-determination and autonomy
3. Participate on an equal footing in daily life specifically
- To ‘connect’ with e.g. family, friends & neighbours
- To ‘give’ in the community e.g. community activities, volunteering, peer support
- To ‘be included’ especially in relation to education, employment, adequate income
and stable housing
- To ‘participate’ on an equal footing with others with reduced stigma & discrimination
e.g. in access to mainstream services, housing, education and employment

2.8

We are developing the outcomes into key performance measure as indicated below.
These will be detailed in the Alliance Agreement.
Sub area

Measure

Evaluation

Key Results
Area

Gamebreaking
Target
(by Yr. 2)

Recovery
and staying
well

Improved
mental health
and wellbeing

% of people with increased
and sustained score on
Recovery Star

Peer evaluator panel
will determine level of
performance

All people report
an improvement
in scores.

People’s
physical health
has been

% of people achieving each
level below:

Data submission and
aggregation

80% of people
have
improvement in

5

Page 210
Sub area

Measure

Evaluation

Key Results
Area

Gamebreaking
Target
(by Yr. 2)

addressed and
managed

1) annual GP visit and
health check (minimum);

their own health
action plan

2) health action plan
(stretch);
3) demonstrating
improvement on health
action plan (gamebreaking)
Reduced
unplanned use
of services

Number of attendances at
A&E

Data submission and
aggregation

20% reduction in
A&E attendance
and unplanned
admission.

Of those people
able/choosing to
move on 90% will
be in their own
settled
accommodation.

Number of unplanned
admissions
Number of MHA admissions

People live in a
place of their
own choosing

% of people in their own
settled and sustained
accommodation.

Data submission and
aggregation

People have
personal
budgets

Number of people with
personal budget by end of
Year 2

Data submission and
aggregation

75% will access a
personal budget
(of those people
able/choosing)

More people
remain in or are
started on
pathway to
work

Percentage of people are in
training, volunteering or in
open or self-employment

Data submission and
aggregation

30% for legacy
clients. 70% for
new clients

All have
meaningful
connections

Percentage of people
reporting improved
meaningful connections

Peer evaluator panel
will determine level of
performance

100%

Own
choices

Participation

2.9

Peer evaluator panel
to check choice
element

Key service developments include:
•

•

Creation of a multi-agency, professional (with peer support) Alliance
Community Rehabilitation Team which will comprise of the former Social Work
Occupational Therapy (SWOT – within Lambeth Council Social Care Delivery);
High Support Team (HST - within SLaM) and staff from the in-patient
rehabilitation service and voluntary sector;
Reduction in residential care provision by 50% over two years i.e. c 50 beds;

6

Page 211
•

Reduction in need for in-patient rehabilitation provision and development of
community based intensive community rehabilitation facility (7 bed existing
supported housing scheme to be remodelled);
Supply of 20 units of self-contained housing via ThamesReach
(social/commercial finance);
Supply of 9 self-contained flats via Certitude – remodelled on site of former
Fanon Resource Centre;
Supply of social housing units via Lambeth Council Social Care quota; and
Peer support and connections hub at remodelled Fanon Resource Centre.

•
•
•
•

Housing Supply and Management
2.10

A critical part of the service offer is the provision of housing and improved joint working
between housing providers and mental health services. This will be provided through a
combination of supply directly made available by members of the Alliance; access to
supported housing; social housing provision (including accommodation provided by
Lambeth Living and registered housing landlords (RSL's) and private sector provision,
where appropriate. We will engage with the member lead, Lambeth Council
Commissioning Team and Lambeth Living to support the IPSA with housing provision
made available through the social care housing quota. Details of this arrangement are
currently being worked up.

2.11

One of the key challenges will be to work with housing managers to ensure proposed
housing offers are made in areas which are sensitive to the needs of people with severe
mental health problems. In addition, to ensure firm protocols are in place with housing
providers/managers to ensure tenancy issues are managed pro-actively. Joint working
arrangements are being developed with Lambeth Living, the largest provider of social
housing in Lambeth and with IPSA, the Living Well Network and CMHT staff teams. This
arrangement will not be adversely affected by the reintegration of Lambeth Living into
Lambeth Council. The outcome of this is that we will reduce tenancy breakdowns for
people with complex needs. For new people the focus will be on supporting them to stay
in their own home as far as possible.

3

Finance

3.1

The proposed total contract value (funding envelope) which comprises both
Council and CCG funding is shown below:
Year 1
£000
Baseline annual budget
less savings
Pump priming
Total contract value

12,285
(1,943)
1,200
11,542

Year 2 (and
option
Year 3)
£000
12,174
(2,800)
0
9,375

The 23% savings target (£2.8m) is delivered in full from year 2 of the contract.
The lower savings agreed in Year 1 take account of the time required to review
existing people and agree a new service offer.
3.2

The IPSA proposal consists of financial contributions from NHS Lambeth CCG
and Lambeth Council (the two commissioner participants with the Alliance) as set
out in the table below. Both savings and pump-priming costs are apportioned
7

Page 212
between NHS Lambeth CCG and Lambeth Council as partners in the pooled
fund proportionate to their budgetary contributions.
Year 1
Gross Budget
Savings
Total
Pump-priming (Non Recurrent)
Total
% Split

CCG
£000s
7,073
(1,119)
5,954
691
6,645
57.6%

LBL
£000s
5,212
(824)
4,387
509
4,896
42.4%

Total
£000s
12,285
(1,943)
10,342
1,200
11,542
100.0%

Year 2 (with option of Year 3)
Gross Budget
Savings
Total
% Split

CCG
£000s
7,073
(1,627)
5,446
58.1%

LBL
£000s
5,102
(1,173)
3,928
41.9%

Total
£000s
12,175
(2,800)
9,375
100.0%

3.3

The funding envelope has been set after data modelling took place based on agreed
assumptions and has shown a robust case for savings while maintaining or improving
services to people. The funding envelope will cover the costs of care, care packages and
personal budgets of those who are in the IPS Alliance Services. There are financial risks
to other Mental Health social care budgets because people leaving IPS Alliance Services
may require continued social care support. It has been difficult to accurately model the
scale of this risk as the IPS Alliance represents a significant change to the system. Initial
modelling has estimated the risk to be very low in 2015/16 and significant for 2016/17
but within the currently agreed budgets in future years. The impact of the IPS Alliance
agreement on social care budgets as a whole will be monitored closely so that the full
impact is fully understood and taken into account in future contract arrangements.

3.4

The numbers of those who are expected to be in the IPSA Services include those in inpatient rehabilitation or residential placements (the legacy group of patients/users) at the
start of the contract and any new referrals during the contract life.

3.5

As noted above a total of £1.2m non-recurrent funding has been agreed by the partners
to support pump priming and transition to the new service. This pump priming will
require £350k of funding above the available budget for mental health which will be
funded from reserves although a bid to the Cooperative Investment Fund is being
prepared and if successful will replace reserves funding.

3.6

NHS Lambeth CCG and the London Borough of Lambeth appointed Grant Thornton to
undertake a Convergence Audit to provide a high level assessment of the Alliance’s
financial forecasts prior to agreement and implementation of the alliance agreement.
This included:


understanding how the financial model outputs are built up from underlying input
assumptions;

8

Page 213



assessing the completeness and appropriateness of the key income and
expenditure assumptions and comparing with the historical income and cost
experience of the providers
identifying the key risks to the delivery of the forecasts and making
recommendations for follow-up actions.

The Convergence Audit has provided analysis of the costs within the provider model and
given further transparency of the cost structures and arrangements within the alliance.
Whilst the report raised areas for providers to consider during the implementation of the
alliance contract no further issues were identified that resulted in a change to the model
or its assumptions.
It has been agreed, as part of finalising the alliance contract that the provider finance
group would develop a financial reporting framework for agreement with the Alliance
financial leads and Leadership Team.
3.7

The risk and gain share arrangement between NHS Lambeth CCG and Lambeth Council
will be based on the relative contribution. There will be no risk and gain share
arrangement in the first year of the contract.

3.8

A comprehensive risk register has been developed as part of this work. The key
financial, legal and service risks are highlighted below together with mitigating action.

4
4.1

Legal and Democracy
The proposed IPSA will comprise of commissioners (NHS Lambeth CCG and Lambeth
Council) and the four providers listed in the diagram below. Lambeth Council has a role
within the Alliance as both a commissioner of social care services but, also as a provider
of social care services through direct delivery of social work. The Alliance Agreement is
designed to work alongside the NHS Standard Contract which will set out specific
requirements in relation to regulatory requirements etc. as illustrated in the diagram
below.

Section 75 Partnership Agreement

9

Page 214
4.2

In order to support the commissioning arrangements of the Alliance Agreement a
Section 75 (of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended by the Health and
Social Care Act 2012)) partnership agreement will be necessary. This will support the
ambitions of both NHS Lambeth CCG and Lambeth Council to achieve integrated care
through the adoption of a pooled fund and lead commissioning between both
organisations. The Agreement specifies the respective service and financial
contributions and the risk share arrangements. It is proposed that NHS Lambeth CCG
takes on the lead commissioning responsibility on behalf of Lambeth Council.

4.3

A committee in common will be established between Lambeth Council and NHS
Lambeth CCG to provide over-arching governance for all Section 75 related initiatives
including IPSA and the Better Care Fund (BCF).

4.4

The IPSA Project has been receiving on-going advice and guidance from an Alliance
Contracting consultant, LH Alliances Ltd. Wragge and Co. solicitors who have
experience of alliance contracting elsewhere have advised on the development of the
Alliance Agreement. NHS England and Monitor have been briefed on the proposed
procurement approach. Lambeth Council legal services have advised on both the
Alliance Agreement and Section 75 Agreement. Capsticks solicitors have provided the
legal advice (on behalf of NHS Lambeth CCG and Lambeth Council) and support in
relation to the Section 75 agreement and its link with the Alliance Agreement.

IPSA Governance
4.5

In July 2014, the formal Integrated Personal Support Alliance (IPSA) governance
arrangements were established as set out below and described at the Community
Wellbeing Outcome Panel on 22 October 2014

10

Page 215
4.6

5

The Alliance Leadership Team (ALT) has been meeting regularly since July 2014 to
support the development of a detailed service and financial plan, capable of delivering
the ambitious outcomes and savings targets. The Alliance Management Team (AMT) is
the provider/delivery part of the Alliance and has undertaken a considerable amount of
detailed service and financial planning in order to reach the final set of proposals which
the ALT approved on 14th January 2015. These proposals are set out in Section 3 of this
report.
Consultation and co-production

5.1

The development of the IPSA is a key element of the service transformation programme
being led by the Mental Health Integration Programme (MHIP) and supported by our
partnership platform, the Lambeth Living Well Collaborative (LLWC). The proposed
alliance contracting approach fits with the ambition of the MHIP and the LLWC to deliver
whole system change (across voluntary sector, primary care, social care and secondary
care in collaboration with users of services and carers) through a process of coproduction, and a focus on personalised care and support outcomes for people.

5.2

People who use services have been fully involved in developing the Big 3 Outcomes of
the LLWC. These outcomes form the basis of the performance framework and will be
involved in the evaluation of the Alliance’s delivery against key outcomes.

6

Risk management

6.1

A comprehensive risk register has been developed as part of this work. The key
financial, legal and service risks are highlighted below together with mitigating action:

Key risks

Mitigating action

Financial
Providers will face double running
/ transitional costs in the move to
the new service offer.

-

Lambeth Council and NHS Lambeth CCG have made
available £1.2m non recurrent funding to support transition.

Savings are not delivered in
accordance with the expected
plan – 23% against financial
envelope

-

Poor service performance leads to
reduced reward and increased
financial risk from alliance
providers

-

Service and financial modeling has been undertaken and
subjected to stress testing and scenario planning.
Convergence Audit has been undertaken to test the
financial robustness of the provider model
The financial envelope agreed reflects the commissioner
and provider negotiations on a model that will deliver 23%
savings in Year 2 with 16% savings in Year 1 that take
account of the time needed to review existing people and
agree a new service offer.
The ALT, which includes commissioners will monitor
performance closely and ensure remedial action is taken.

Key risks

Mitigating action

Inability to agree apportionment of

-

-

The S75 partnership agreement provides the framework to
agree this. The savings, pump-priming cost and risk and

11

Page 216
savings between health and social
care
Costs falling outside of the pooled
budget creates risk to the CCG,
LBL and providers

gain share arrangements are as outlined above.

-

The service and financial plan underpinning the agreement
will be monitored on a monthly basis by the ALT.
The IPSA is an integral element of the whole system
transformation performance dashboard developed by
MHIP will be monitored closely, and by the ALT.

Legal
Procurement challenge to the
proposed negotiated
alliance/contract is made.

-

-

This is mitigated by the fact this is a proof of
concept/developmental pilot to support service integration
and critically we are aiming to build on the progress,
innovation and commitment of existing providers who have
worked via the LLWC to support improved services and
support for borough residents.
We will need to consider future commissioning against the
required procurement frameworks for the Council and
CCG.

Service
Insufficient housing stock sourced
to meet demand

-

Providers have committed to providing 29 units of the
expected 90 units required to support the “legacy”
population group.
Access to the social housing “social care” quota has been
confirmed along with ongoing access to supported housing
units.
Joint working protocols are being developed with housing
providers to ensure people are supported more effectively
and before problems escalate i.e. eviction.
Alliance change management implementation plan being
developed.

Staff transferring to the new
service fail to embrace new ways
of working e.g. recovery and
personalisation.

-

Apply learning from LWN workforce / culture change
development e.g. Assessment, Action and Planning
Approach

Demand for “rehabilitation”
support for people with complex
needs continues to grow.

-

Expectation is that new demand will reduce due to impact
of SLaM Adult Mental Health (AMH) redesign and LWN.
Joint development work with the SLaM Behaviourial and
Development Clinical Academic Group (CAG) to ensure
appropriate pathways are available following step down
from secure services.
The IPSA is an integral element of the whole system
transformation performance dashboard developed by
MHIP will be monitored closely, and by the ALT.
Alliance providers are active members of a wider network
of employment, vocational support providers which has
access to a range of placements etc.
Joint work has commenced with Lambeth Council
employment and growth commissioners to increase job
opportunities and support including links with Job Centre
Plus and DWP employment support programmes.
Assessments have been undertaken by the AMT which

-

Insufficient employment support /
placements/ jobs sourced

-

Insufficient numbers of people in

-

12

Page 217
residential care and health spot
placements are able to move as
needs justify current placement

suggest “move on” estimates are “conservative” and
realistic

7

Equalities impact assessment

7.1

An equalities impact assessment has been undertaken in respect of the IPSA proposal;
this is attached as Appendix 1. The majority of people who access the current
‘rehabilitation’ service offer for people with very complex needs (in-patient rehabilitation
beds and residential care) have a history of unsettled accommodation (including failed
tenancies); limited, if any, employment history; limited connections with family and wider
community resources and poor access to primary care services, and generally
experience a low level autonomy and personal choice in their lives.

7.2

The in-patient bed services are over represented by people from black and minority
ethnic communities and from people who experience repeat admissions to psychiatric
hospitals. The over representation of people from black communities in acute bed based
services is a key issue of concern raised within the Black Wellbeing Commission ‘From
Surviving to Thriving’ undertaken during 2014. The proposed new offer seeks to address
these inequalities by adopting a personalised approach aimed at supporting people in
their own ‘settled’ homes; supporting them to manage ‘crises’ at home as and when they
occur; ensure improved access to primary care services; supporting people on the
pathway to employment and connecting them to wider community resources as well as
offering greater personal choice and autonomy through the provision of personal
budgets.

7.3

This approach has the benefit of aiming to address the inequalities experienced by
people with mental ill health and the community safety concerns of the broader
community as set out below.

8

Community safety

8.1

People using mental health services may sometimes be linked with anti-social behaviour
but are more likely to be at risk of exploitation and violence from other people in the
community. Through services such as those provided through the IPSA proposal the
likelihood of such exploitation will be reduced.
Providers will be expected to assist in monitoring and engaging people to link in with
mental health and universal support services including peer support and community
connection services. Providers will also be expected to encourage medication
compliance and develop coping strategies to reduce the potential for breakdown or
relapse.
Providers will deal with anti-social behaviour or nuisance occurring in or around peoples’
homes, and will liaise with Safer Neighbourhood and Community Safety teams to deal
with such issues. It is a contractual requirement that all current providers’ staff should
possess an enhanced CRB and POVA clearance, that all staff receive training on the
safeguarding of vulnerable adults and that they meet the National Minimum Standards
in this respect, as well as measures to safeguard children.

8.2

8.3

13

Page 218
9

Organisational implications

9.1

Procurement
The services comply with responsible procurement in the following ways:
Social responsibility: Organisations involved in the IPSA proposal have strong records
in employing a representative mix of the community and may be undertaking work to
train and support service users within their organisations. This includes encouraging
access to work opportunities and developing peer support services.
Economic responsibility: The IPSA proposal will ensure that high quality, good value
services are developed which offer as much choice and control as possible to people as
they step-down from rehabilitation or residential care home services. Data modelling has
been completed based on agreed financial assumptions, and has shown that large
savings can be achieved while maintaining or improving care and support services.
Environmental responsibility: Each provider will have an environmental policy,
describing how they will meet their obligations in this field.
Lambeth Council’s procurement team have provided advice and guidance in relation to
this proposal. It is recognised that the procurement approach runs the risk of challenge
by providers as the invitation to form an alliance for this initiative was restricted to
existing providers who comprise of the Provider Alliance Group (PAG) developed by the
LLWC. However, this risk is reduced by the fact that the proposal is a ‘development pilot’
or ‘proof of concept’ and at the end we will need to consider future commissioning
against the required procurement frameworks for the Council and CCG.

9.2

Staffing and accommodation
This proposal involves the creation of a new multi-agency professional team created
from the existing Lambeth Council Social Work Occupational therapy (SWOT) and High
Support Team (South London and the Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust) along-side staff
from two voluntary sector organisations, Thames Reach and Certitude. Staff will be
made available from their respective organisations to work together within the newly
created team with a clear management structure in place for managing day to day
operations.

9.3

Health
This proposal has been developed jointly with NHS Lambeth CCG and contributes to
meeting the key priority of improving the mental well-being of the Lambeth population as
set out in the Health and Well Being strategy and Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.

14

Page 219
10

Timetable for implementation

CCG GB approval

21 January 2015

Lambeth Council cabinet approval

9 February 2015

Finalise Alliance agreement and S75 agreement

February 2015

Sign off Alliance Agreement and S75 Agreement

9 March 2015

Finalise service plan and performance reporting

20 March 2015

New service formally commences

1 April 2015

Community Rehabilitation Team fully operational

April 2015

Initial 9 units housing supply

June 2015

Turretts step-down facility in place

July 2015

10.2

List of measurable aims and outcomes with the date by which they should be achieved

Key Result Area

Key Delivery targets (achieved by Year 2_

Recovery and
staying well

Mental health wellbeing – 100% reported improvement.
Physical health - 80% have improvement in goals set in
Health Action plan
Unplanned use of services – 20% reduction in
emergency admissions
Place of residence – 90% in settled accommodation by
year 2.
Use of personal budgets – 90% in receipt.
In employment Meaningful activities – 70%
23% savings target

Self determination
Participation
Cost

15

Page 220
Audit trail
Consultation
Name/Position

Department or
Organisation

Date Sent

Date
Received

Comments in
para:

Helen Charlesworth-May Strategic Director
Commissioning

Executive Director

12 January

19 January

Throughout
doc.

Director Integrated
Commissioning
Legal Services

4 December 12 January

Throughout
doc.

12 January

12 January

Democratic services

12 January

13 January

Pete Hesketh

Finance

4 December 12 January

Gill Vickers

4 December 12 January

Fiona Connolly

Director Adult Social
Care
AD Adult Social Care

Cabinet
Councillor Jim Dickson

Cabinet Member

12 January

22 January

Councillor Imogen Walker

Cabinet Member

12 January

22 January

Managing Director,
Lambeth CCG
Chief Financial Officer,
Lambeth CCG
Chair Lambeth CCG
Board
Lambeth CCG Board
Member - Mental
Health Clinical Leads
Lambeth CCG Board
Member – Non
Executive Directors

14 January

21 January

Moira McGrath
David Thomas / Alison
McKane
Anne Rasmussen

4 December 12 January

Throughout
doc.
Throughout
doc.
Throughout
doc.
Throughout
doc.
Throughout
doc.
Throughout
doc.

External / NHS Lambeth
CCG
Andrew Eyres
Christine Caton
Dr Adrian McLachlan
Dr Raj Mitra and Dr Paul
Heenan
Sue Gallagher & Graham
Laylee
For internal reports, list
internal meetings where
issue has been considered

16

4 December 21 January
14 January

21 January

14 January

21 January

14 January

16 January

Throughout
doc.
Throughout
doc.
Throughout
doc.
Throughout
doc.
Throughout
doc.

Page 221
Report history
Original
discussion with
Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report
sent
Report no.
Part II Exempt
from
Disclosure/confid
ential
accompanying
report?
Key decision
report
Date first
appeared on
forward plan
Key decision
reasons
Background
information

On-going – since Feb 14
28 January 2015
28 January 2015
152/14-15
No

Yes
14 February 2014
-

Value over £500k
Significant decision to support policy on integration with health services.

Airdina’s Story http://lambethcollaborative.org.uk/recoverystories/airdrina%e2%80%99s-storyintegrated-health-and-social-care-personal-budgets
Health and Wellbeing Board papers 22 October 2014 http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/documents/g9027/Public%20reports%20pack
%20Wednesday%2022-Oct2014%2018.00%20Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Board.pdf?T=10
Crisis Care Concordat declaration http://www.crisiscareconcordat.org.uk/areas/lambeth/
Black Health and Wellbeing Commission – From Thriving to Surviving http://lambethcollaborative.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/08/ENC-4.4-BHWBCommission-Final-Report2-PDF-June-2014.pdf

Appendices
Appendix 1 - Equality Impact Assessment

Equality impact
assessment form IPSA-final.docx

17

This page is intentionally left blank

Please enter responses below in the right hand columns

Date

26 January 2015

Sign-off path for EIA (please add/delete as applicable)

Cluster management team (Commissioning)
Cabinet

Title of Project, business area, policy/strategy

Integrated Personalised Support Alliance (IPSA)

Author

Karen Clarke

Job title, division and department

Senior Commissioning Officer
Commissioning Cluster
Integrated Commissioning Team - Mental Health
Kclarke1@lambeth.gov.uk
020 7926 7525
Moira McGrath, Director of Integrated Commissioning (Older Adults)

Contact email and telephone
Strategic Director Sponsor

Page 223

Equality Impact Assessment
Report

1

London Borough of Lambeth
Full Equality Impact
Assessment Report

Please enter responses below in the right hand columns.

1.0 Introduction

Page 224

1.1 Business activity aims and
intentions
The Integrated Personalised Support Alliance (IPSA) is a developmental pilot to test out a
new collaborative way of working as a ‘proof of concept’ initiative. NHS Lambeth CCG and
In brief explain the aims of your
proposal/project/service, why is it
Lambeth Council wish to improve the care and support for people with severe and
needed? Who is it aimed at? What is the enduring mental health needs and complex life issues through significantly reducing the
intended outcome? What are the links current over reliance on in-patient rehabilitation beds and residential care home
to the political vision, and outcomes?
placements. The funds currently being spent on these services will be combined to
provide new accommodation options and personalised care and support packages.
The IPSA proposals initially concern approximately 200 people in existing rehabilitation
services but will also apply to others who will benefit from the approach in the future.
The aim is to move away from the traditional 'service-led' approaches to one that
responds to people's hopes and ambitions for their lives and builds on their strengths and
assets rather than focusing on their needs and deficits. The approach will also move away
from one that is risk-averse to one that actively manages risks as part of an holistic plan
for recovery and independence.
The IPSA proposals will fulfil the wider 'Big 3' outcomes agreed by the Living Well
Collaborative (see details below).
To achieve these outcomes the proposals intend to:


Provide integrated personalised support packages for people who are currently
rehabilitation ward in-patients or living in residential spot placements
2



Support and, if appropriate, manage the process and funds for care packages and
personal budgets for all those who are assessed as eligible

The IPSA proposals bring together a range of stakeholders – commissioners, clinicians,
providers, voluntary and community organisations, people using services and carers. The
proposals will support the creation of a multi-agency community rehabilitation service to
provide personalised support to people through person-centred support planning. This
team will enable move-on from institutional care settings for around 90 people through
the provision of lower support accommodation and via NHS Lambeth CCG and Council
commissioned services.

Page 225

The development of the IPSA is a key element of the service transformation programme
being led by the Mental Health Integration Programme (MHIP), supported by the
Lambeth Living Well Collaborative (LLWC). This proposal will support the ambitions of the
MHIP and the LLWC to deliver whole system change through co-production and a focus
on the provision of personalised care and support.
There are clear links between this development and Lambeth Council's Community Plan
2013-16 objectives, particularly in the following areas:


Vulnerable people get the support and protection they need



Older, disabled, and vulnerable people can live independent lives and have control
over the support they need



People are healthier for longer



People have the skills to find work



Lambeth residents have more opportunities for better quality homes
3



All Lambeth communities feel they are valued and are part of their
neighbourhoods

The provision of integrated personalised support will also enable delivery of the big three
Collaborative outcomes identified by people using Lambeth mental health services:
To recover and stay well
 Experiencing improved quality of life, physical and mental health

ii.

To make their own choices and achieve personal goals
 With the skills to do this well

iii.

To participate on an equal footing in daily life
 Including friends and family, a home, work, financial independence and
the opportunity to 'give back'

Page 226

i.

The IPSA proposals will be delivered by an alliance of local providers and commissioners
through an innovative Alliance Contract arrangement.

2.0 Analysing your equalities evidence
2.1 Evidence
Any proposed business activity, new policy or strategy, service change, or procurement must be informed by carrying out an
assessment of the likely impact that it may have. In this section please include both data and analysis which shows that you
understand how this decision is likely to affect residents that fall under the protected characteristics enshrined in law and the local
characteristics which we consider to be important in Lambeth (language, health and socio-economic factors). Please check the
council's equality and monitoring policy and your division’s self assessment. Each division in 2012 reviewed its equality data and
completed a self assessment about what equality data is relevant and available.
IF YOUR PROPOSAL ALSO IMPACTS ON LAMBETH COUNCIL STAFF YOU NEED TO COMPLETE A STAFFING EIA.
4

Protected characteristics and local
equality characteristics

Race

Impact analysis
For each characteristic please indicate the type of impact (i.e. positive, negative,
positive and negative, none, or unknown), and:
Please explain how you justify your claims around impacts.
Please include any data and evidence that you have collected including from surveys,
performance data or complaints to support your proposed changes.
Please indicate sources of data and the date it relates to/was produced (e.g. ‘Residents
Survey, wave 10, April 12‘ or ‘Lambeth Business Survey 2012’ etc)
Positive and negative

Page 227

Opportunities exist for positive impact in relation to race and ethnicity, as the whole
focus of the IPSA proposals is to increase the flexibility of services to support diverse
choices and needs. The proposals offer the opportunity to maximise individual control
and independence for people currently living in institutionalised settings.
There is some evidence of the existing inequalities and challenges in the system in terms
of race, and analysis of the breakdown of the ethnicity of people on Lambeth
rehabilitation wards indicates an over-representation of people from black and minority
ethnic groups relative to the local population - although the breakdown of ethnicities in
residential care placements is more balanced. NHS Lambeth CCG commissioned the
‘Rehabilitation QIPP Project Group’ to undertake a review of SLaM’s Adult Mental Health
rehabilitation provision. A needs assessment was undertaken in mid-2013 of hospital and
private placements which included a breakdown of ethnicity:

5

White
White British

Asian or Asian
British
16

Asian/British/

Black or Black
British
5

Other ethnic
groups

Black British

10

African/Other
African

11

Caribbean

7

Mixed Black

*

Asian Other
White Other

4

Not
Stated/Other

*

*indicates small numbers

Page 228

National research has found a 15-fold difference in severe mental illness between
prevalence in black men (3.1%) compared with white men (0.2%) – (ONS Adult Psychiatry
Morbidity Survey in England 2007, published in 2009). The ‘Count Me In’ Census in 2011 found
that black groups are 40% more likely to access mental health services via a criminal
justice gateway (Black Health and Wellbeing Commission report 2014). Efforts have been made to
improve outcomes for BME people using mental health services, but people from AfricanCaribbean and African backgrounds still experience greater dissatisfaction with mental
health services than white service users (The Schizophrenia Commission’s 2012 report, ‘The
Abandoned Illness’).
An overwhelming majority of people from black and minority ethnic (BME) backgrounds
in the UK living with mental health problems face regular discrimination because of their
illness according to a report from the anti-stigma organisation, Time to Change. In the
first survey the organisation has conducted, exclusively of people from BME groups, 93%
said they had experienced discrimination in everyday life due to their mental health
difficulties. Respondents also reported high levels of racial discrimination (73% had faced
it at some point and 28% in the previous 12 months), leading the study's authors to warn
about the serious issue of "dual discrimination" blighting people's lives. The research
6

surveyed 740 people in 2013 from a mixture of African, Caribbean, Indian, Pakistani and
Bangladeshi backgrounds in England with mental health issues. Most alarmingly, it found
that almost half (49%) had faced discriminatory behaviour from mental health staff.
(Guardian March 2014).

Page 229

The IPSA proposals should work to address the imbalances, discrimination and poor
outcomes detailed above by providing opportunities for people from different ethnic
groups to have greater choice and control over the care and support provided to them,
also possibly combined with a personal budget allocation if eligible. Personal budgets are
a mechanism which allows people the flexibility and autonomy to acquire the care and
support they need according to cultural and other requirements. Extension of this
approach could be expected to have a positive impact. Some of the findings from
Personal Health Budgets (PHB) have been encouraging for example; an evaluation of the
PHB pilot in Northampton between 2010-12 found that PHB holders used fewer inpatient, A&E and GP services than those in the control group by an average of £3050 a
year (PHBs for Mental Health, V. Alakeson, July 2014).
The Alliance should ensure that there is equal access to opportunities which are
developed, that people from different groups are included in developing new service
offers, that people are placed in less restrictive environments, that there is extensive
training for staff around equalities issues and challenging discrimination, and that people
are able to choose more personal and relevant service options.
In terms of negative impact however, there may be some concerns about people from
different ethnicities benefiting from personalisation as evidence is not available that this
is indeed the case. Unfortunately research about personalisation is very variable in the
extent to which it reports on equalities and the outcomes which have been achieved.
Information available includes a paper published in July 2014 by the Race Equality
Foundation (Personalisation for Black and Minority Ethnic Groups). This report states: ‘Uptake of
personal budgets in mental health services appears to be low across all ethnic groups.
Organisations advocating on behalf of black and minority ethnic groups with mental
7

health problems argue that their negative experiences of mental health services may act
as an additional disincentive to trying personal budgets’.

Page 230

The report considers that the lack of information on the specific experiences of people
from black and minority groups makes it difficult to draw firm conclusions on what is
working well and where improvements need to be made. The report does however state
that the numbers of people receiving personal budgets is increasing and the use of direct
payments are becoming more popular amongst this group. This suggests that
improvements are being made, as previous research had highlighted poor take-up of
direct payments. The Social Care Institute for Excellence identified ten specific barriers to
BME service users accessing direct payments (Stuart, O (2006) Will community-based support services
make direct payments a viable option for black and minority ethnic service users and carers?), these include
difficulties in recruiting personal assistants who are able to meet the cultural, linguistic
and religious requirements of individuals.
The Race Equality Foundation report also notes that as well as offering greater choice for
people using services, personalisation potentially offers greater choice and control for
family carers about the ways in which they would like to be supported in their role.
However, a study (Glendinning et al., 2013) is referenced to argue that opportunities have
been missed to achieve greater co-ordination between policies aimed at developing
personalisation and policies aimed at achieving better support for carers.
Gender

Positive
There are currently more males resident in Lambeth rehabilitation wards, but a more or
less equal proportion of males and females in residential placements.
In considering equalities issues it is useful to consider the differences between genders
which affect experience of illness and service use. The Alliance will need to consider how
the different roles of men and women may affect positive and negative impact. Gender
can determine social position, status and treatment in society and susceptibility and
exposure to specific mental health risks.
8

There are no marked gender differences in the rates of severe mental disorders like
schizophrenia and bipolar disorder between men and women, but men are more than
three times more likely to be diagnosed with anti-social personality disorder than
women. Gender differences have been reported in age of onset of symptoms, frequency
of psychotic symptoms, course of these disorders, social adjustment and long-term
outcome. The disability associated with mental illness falls most heavily on those who
experience three or more comorbid disorders - where women pre-dominate.

Page 231

Gender differences occur particularly in the rates of common mental disorders depression, anxiety and somatic complaints. These disorders, in which women
predominate, affect approximately 1 in 6 people in the community at any one time and
constitute a serious public health problem. Unipolar depression, predicted to be the
second leading cause of global disability burden by 2020, is twice as common in women.
The lifetime prevalence rate for alcohol dependence, another common disorder, is more
than twice as high in men than women. In developed countries, approximately 1 in 5 men
and 1 in 12 women develop alcohol dependence during their lives.
Gender specific risk factors
Depression, anxiety, somatic symptoms and high rates of comorbidity are significantly
related to interconnected and co-occurrent risk factors such as gender based roles,
stressors and negative life experiences and events.
Gender specific risk factors for common mental disorders that disproportionately affect
women include socioeconomic disadvantage, low income and income inequality, low or
subordinate social status and rank and responsibility for the care of others. The high
prevalence of sexual violence to which women are exposed and the correspondingly high
rate of Post Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) following such violence, renders women the
largest single group of people affected by this disorder. The Alliance will need to consider
any issues around domestic violence including payment of personal budgets.
9

(Above information from the World Health Organisation website)

The IPSA proposals should allow increased personal choice for men and women, allowing
them to select support options and packages which better meet individual needs. The
Alliance will need to understand and challenge discrimination or stereotyping based on
gender roles, and ensure that there is equal access to the opportunities which are being
developed.
Gender re-assignment

Unknown

What is known about this group is that transgender people are more likely to experience
mental distress due to the social disapproval and discrimination that they encounter.
Research in the areas of employment, health provision, social exclusion and hate crime
indicates that transgender or trans people (people who don't conform to the traditional
division of male and female) experience higher levels of discrimination, harassment and
violence.
Consequently, trans people are at greater risk of depression, self-harm and suicide. A
2007 survey of 872 trans people found that 34% of respondents had considered suicide.
This is considerably higher than the general population. There are some specific health
needs identified such as access to treatment (surgery) and issues related to being
transgender in mainstream health service such as single sex wards, care of older people,
recording of gender on forms and so on.
(Above information from the NHS Choices website)
10

Page 232

There is at present little evidence about the particular experiences of transgender people
in the areas of social care and mental health services. This may be an area in which the
Alliance will wish to carry out further research and which could be considered as part of
any future developments.

Disability

Positive and negative
It has previously been suggested that people with physical disabilities and mental health
support needs tend to be overlooked by policy-makers and commissioners of services.
Many people with disabilities report having difficulty accessing mental health services
because of their physical impairments. Many also have difficulty accessing physical
disability services because of the inadequate recognition of mental health needs within
disability related services (Morris, J. (2004b) People with physical impairments and mental
health support needs: a critical review of the literature).

Personalisation should offer people with disabilities the opportunity to purchase goods
and services which better meet their needs and reduce reliance on services. This could
include choosing digital services, assistive technology options or aids and adaptations
which may not be otherwise be available.
The IBSEN study of individual budget pilots found outcomes were particularly improved
for people with mental health problems and other disabilities. ( C Glendinning et al, The
national evaluation of the Individual Budgets pilot programme (IBSEN Individual Budgets Evaluation
Network); Social Policy Research Unit, University of York, 2008)

11

Page 233

There is a lack of information about the prevalence of disability within IPSA's proposed
populations, and further research is required in this area. Observations from the Mental
Health Funding and Advisory Panel and Social Worker Occupational Therapy (SWOT)
team assessments indicate that there are people with disability issues living in Lambeth
residential care homes, particularly people with co-morbid learning difficulties (mild to
moderate). There are also people with sight and hearing impairments and limited
mobility whose needs need to be considered by the Alliance to ensure equal access to
personalised care and support options. There could possibly be a lack of suitable
accommodation options for people which could prevent move-on from rehabilitation
services.

The national Personal Health Budget Pilot evaluation showed that benefits were more
marked where people had higher levels of need and large support packages, where they
could exercise more control and individual choice. From the analysis of the structured
outcome tools and cost data, the evaluation found that, over a 12-month follow-up
period, the use of personal health budgets was associated with significant improvement
in patients’ care-related quality of life and psychological well-being (Personal Health Budgets
Evaluation, PSSRU, University of Kent, November 2012). This could well be the case for people in
rehabilitation services with disabilities, who may require complex care and support
packages.

The Alliance will also need to consider how to work with people who lack capacity to
make certain decisions under the Mental Capacity Act, which may involve working closely
with a suitable person or the person’s carer.
The Alliance will therefore need to ensure that they consider all people who have a longterm condition which gives rise to disability or disadvantage, including conditions such as
cardio-vascular disease or diabetes, for example. It will be important to give attention to
a person’s physical health conditions and ensure their diet and medications are
appropriate and that they are not excluded from opportunities. Many groups of disabled
people will have particular needs in relation to services; for example people with HIV are
at risk of discrimination and poor treatment because stigmatising and discriminatory
views about the virus persist (The National Aids Trust).
12

Page 234

Although people with learning disabilities are currently one of the most likely groups to
be in receipt of a personal budget, they are one of the groups who may require additional
support to enable better take-up. Similarly, people with issues such as autism, hearing or
sight impairments or physical health issues may require additional support to access the
new options being developed by the IPSA proposals.

Age

Positive and negative
If the IPSA proposals are brought effectively into practice at a local level, we would expect
older and younger people to experience improved outcomes in the same way as other
equalities groups. Locally, for example, there has been a good response in take-up of
personal budgets for younger people as they leave hospital or residential care, and some
people have requested personalised options to improve fitness, community connection
or funding for employment or training options.

Previous studies have found that older people have been less likely to be offered a
personal budget and personalised support planning/self-assessment, as it is sometimes
automatically and wrongly assumed that they will find the process too difficult or
confusing. (C Glendinning et al, The national evaluation of the Individual Budgets pilot programme (IBSEN
Individual Budgets Evaluation Network); Social Policy Research Unit, University of York, 2008).

There is also evidence to suggest that older people face discrimination in using mental
health services (Equality in Later Life Healthcare Commission (2009)), and that older people with
other equality characteristics can face multiple disadvantage. For example, Stonewall
highlighted particular equality issues for older lesbian, gay and bisexual people in its
report LGB in Later Life (2011). More than two in five LGB people are not confident that
13

Page 235

The Alliance will need to consider whether older people require more support in order to
get the best outcomes from personalisation and personal budgets, and in being able to
exercise more choice and control in their care and support. Some people living in
residential care homes may have been resident there for some time and there have been
reports from the SWOT team that some people could be quite institutionalised.
Personalisation could have a more positive impact with younger adults who have little or
no knowledge of services provided by social care and so should be able to choose service
options without being influenced by previous services they received.

mental health services would be able to understand and meet their needs.
Further research is required in this area to understand the extent of positive and negative
impacts for older and younger people arising from the IPSA proposals.
Sexual orientation

Unknown
There is currently a lack of information to fully assess impact, although there is some
previous evidence which suggested that assessment processes for social care do not
currently correctly assess the needs for lesbian, gay and bisexual groups. A survey
conducted by the former Commission for Social Care Inspection (CSCI) found that only
24% of people felt that their needs as an LGBT person were adequately considered at
their last assessment (Putting people first: equality and diversity matters – providing appropriate
Research shows that LGBT residents are more likely to have seen or experienced hate
crime compared to residents overall. Indeed official data from the Metropolitan police
shows that in the 12 months to March 2012 there were 142 reported incidences of
homophobic crime in the borough up from 103 the year before. In relation to the housing
and social care support needs of older LGBT residents there is a high divergence in need
and that for some the current housing provision for older people was not always
appropriate for older LGBT residents. In 2006 the LGBT Matters study of Lesbians, Gay
men, Bisexual and Trans (LGBT) men and women who live, work and socialise in Lambeth
similarly found that the needs and experiences of the LGBT population are influenced
profoundly by other social factors (ethnicity/race, class, income, gender, age)
However as people are supported more holistically and innovatively through the IPSA
proposals, there will be increased opportunities to take into account any needs arising
specifically as a result of an individual’s sexual orientation. People may choose to access
LGBT organisations or community groups, or choose a PA who better understands their
sexuality. Currently Lambeth support planners do encourage people to identify needs and
outcomes in relation to sexual orientation and identity and this has resulted in some very
14

Page 236

services for lesbian, gay and bisexual and transgender people (CSCI, 2008)).

personalised options being identified during recovery and support planning sessions.
The Alliance will need to consider that there may be some negative impact if there are no
changes to the current lack of knowledge about sexual orientation or the continued risk
of discrimination and harassment.
Religion and belief

Positive

It is known that religious affiliation can be protective in some circumstances yet some
religious traditions may deny the existence of mental health problems. In Lambeth the
SLaM Mental Health Promotion Team have experience of working with some of the
different Muslim, Christian and other faith communities on mental health awareness. It is
clear from this experience that there is a great range of opinions, knowledge, experiences
and willingness to engage even within individual faith traditions.
There may also be a risk that the outward and visible forms of religious observance may
expose people to discrimination. This may be of particular relevance with the rise of
Islamophobia and experience of Muslims in relation their treatment in the media.
New service options could consider how to better meet faith needs, such as consideration
of the need for a prayer room, diet choice and preparation of food or personal assistants
available from different faith groups. Religion and belief may also be very closely
15

Page 237

It is not expected that the IPSA proposals will have a particularly negative impact related
to issues of religion and belief, although more information is required in this area. As
services become personalised more people will be supported through the innovative and
flexible use of a personal budget. Previous learning from the Lambeth Personal Health
Budget Pilot has shown that people may choose to spend their budgets on faith-related
activity as a way to reduce isolation and build better community links, or to deal with
stress and its effects on mental health and wellbeing. Personal budgets could support
people to attend their desired place of worship or to employ a personal assistant from
the same faith background if this is important to the individual.

Pregnancy and maternity

intertwined with the culture of some communities as well as people’s cultural practices
and beliefs about health and illness - even if a person identifies as having a particular
belief no assumptions can be made about practice thus a wide perspective will be
important to maintain.
None
It is not anticipated that the IPSA proposals will have a significant effect on pregnancy and
maternity issues as a whole. Support and information would need to be available for
women in this situation so they are able to make informed choices.

Marriage and civil partnership

None

As for the section on sexual orientation there could be a risk of discrimination from staff
or from other people using services.
Socio-economic factors

Positive
Many Lambeth residents are exposed to high levels of socioeconomic deprivation, with
poverty and social exclusion posing social challenges in the borough. The latest
deprivation data is the 2010 Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD). IMD 2010 places
Lambeth as the 8th most deprived borough in London and 14th most deprived in England,
a relative worsening of position since 2008 when Lambeth was ranked 19th most
deprived (Lambeth State of the Borough Report 2014, Lambeth Council).
The risks of mental ill health in relation to income is well known and demonstrated
repeatedly in research studies; people living in households with the lowest levels of
income are more likely to have common mental illness than those living in the highest
16

Page 238

It is not thought to be any impacts on people depending on their marriage / civil
partnership status However it will be essential for the service to take account of a
person’s home situation including their partner and any children.

income households. Psychotic illness is nearly ten times as common in the lowest socioeconomic group (0.9%) compared to the highest (0.1%).The rates of admission for acute
psychiatric care tend to be higher in deprived areas.
People in rehabilitation and residential care homes will typically be unemployed and in
receipt of benefits, have a history of homelessness and insecure housing, be socially
excluded, lack social support networks and generally experience numerous adverse social
determinants.

The Alliance can seek to change these experiences by encouraging people to express their
views about services and what needs to change, recognising strengths and assets,
including people in co-producing services and local markets. By improving access to less
restrictive services, money management and benefits advice, good quality housing and
support, employment and training opportunities, community connection and local
voluntary groups the Alliance has the opportunity to improve outcomes for people who
have been socially excluded and who have experienced a range of social inequalities.
The Alliance will need to ensure that as they develop the market for care and support and
increase competition between providers that this does not lead to lower wages and more
workers on low income. Service providers will need to ensure that they pay at least the
London Living Wage to their employees.
Language

Unknown
17

Page 239

Care may serve to reinforce inequalities and discrimination. Some people using services
may face significant barriers to participation, for example they may communicate
differently, have learning difficulties, be unable to go out, live in restrictive environments,
have physical health issues and need personal assistance. Care and support services may
reinforce hierarchies and impose conditions which do not meet the needs and choices of
people from different groups, leading to feelings of helplessness and lack of control.

We do not know the language requirements of people resident on rehabilitation wards or
residential care homes. People may require translation or interpretation services, support
because of disabilities or capacity issues, or may not be fluent or confident readers or
communicators. The IPSA will need to be flexible to respond to individual communication
and language support needs as and when they arise.

People may also need ongoing support to understand personalisation and the new
service offer, to be fully involved in assessment and support planning processes and to be
able to fully benefit from the opportunities available through the IPSA proposals.
Health

Unknown
People in Lambeth rehabilitative services will have different incidence and prevalence of
health issues and different needs with respect to the way in which services should be
provided. There are no available data with which to assess positive or negative impact in
this area in connection with the IPSA proposals, although some assumptions can be made
based on knowledge of the physical health issues which typically affect people with
mental health issues.
The Mental Health Foundation website reports that many people with mental health
problems are likely to have their physical health needs unrecognised or poorly managed:
those who use mental health services are less likely than the general population to be
offered blood pressure, cholesterol, urine or weight checks, or to receive opportunistic
18

Page 240

Lambeth Council has publicised that many residents are thought not to be fluent English
speakers and that there are approximately 150 languages spoken in the borough.
Assumptions could therefore be made that a proportion of people using rehabilitative
services will require support in this area or negative impact will result. This may also
extend to people’s access to and ability or confidence to use computers and web-based
resources. Digital inclusion and reasonable adjustments will need to be considered for
some people.

advice on smoking cessation, alcohol, exercise or diet.
As a result people with mental health problems are much more likely to smoke, be
overweight, eat an unhealthy diet and exercise less than the general population. They are
also more likely to have co-existing alcohol problems and may take risks with their sexual
health including being at risk of sexual exploitation.
These factors mean that people with severe and enduring mental illnesses are at
increased risk of physical illness including cardiovascular disease, diabetes, infections
including sexually transmitted infections, respiratory disease and greater levels of
obesity.
For example, the Mental Health Foundation report that schizophrenia is associated with:
Double the risk of death from heart disease



Three times the risk of death from respiratory disease - people with schizophrenia
are three times as likely to smoke as other people

People living on rehabilitation wards or in residential care homes will typically be
unemployed, have a history of homelessness or insecure accommodation, have poor
community connection and a lack of contact with family or friends. These factors are also
associated with poor health outcomes and an increased likelihood of depression or other
common mental illness.
The IPSA proposals will need to consider how to ensure services take a much more
holistic approach to people’s physical and mental health putting physical health and
mental health on a par and incorporating a person’s physical health risks into recovery
and support planning. Proper arrangements should be made to ensure that people within
the IPSA proposals have equitable access to appropriate health and other services (such
as health improvement) in line with their needs. Physical health may not be as closely
monitored in lower support accommodation options, and personal assistants will require
knowledge in this area. There will also need to be good arrangements with a person’s GP
and other community health services - GPs must be part of any support and recovery
19

Page 241



planning.
2.2 Gaps in evidence base
What gaps in information have you
identified from your analysis? In your
response please identify areas where
more information is required and how
you intend to fill in the gaps. If you are
unable to fill in the gaps please state
this clearly with justification.

A lot of the information gathered for this screening is from published literature rather
than from local experience. It has been assumed that this information is relevant to
people in Lambeth who maybe of a similar equality group or background. This may or
may not be the case and it is not really possible to always say that local experience of
services is similar to that reported in research.
It is essential to have a local understanding of how different equality and other groups
experience services and whether this is changing for the better. Services have not been
able to provide evidence of where there have been particular initiatives to improve care
and support for one or more equality group.

Areas where it has been difficult to identify equalities impact or where there are gaps in
information have been highlighted throughout this document. The Alliance will need to
complete an analysis of information required and consider how to collect this as:


Meeting the requirements of the Equality Act (2010) is in all contracts issued by
NHS Lambeth CCG and the Council so basic equality monitoring should already be
fundamental to Alliance providers. An update and agreement on a common
template for equality monitoring that is integral to the clinical record may be
needed.



For all groups but especially where small numbers are expected, more will be
needed than quantitative monitoring to demonstrate the Alliance is fulfilling the
Equality Duties and promoting equity of services. It will be important to capture
personal experience including whether people feel they have been treated fairly
and with respect especially for people who are more at risk of discrimination
either from staff or from the process of care. Therefore providers will need to
20

Page 242

Also equality monitoring information is not available from services for all of the people
living in rehabilitation or residential care homes with protected characteristics.

prioritise which group or groups are most at risk of unequal treatment, identify
people and communities with whom they can engage to learn how best to
respond to diverse needs, take action and monitor improvements over time.

3.0 Consultation, Involvement and Coproduction
3.1 Coproduction, involvement and
consultation
Who are your key stakeholders and how
have you consulted, coproduced or
involved them? What difference did this
make?

The Lambeth Living Well Collaborative’s work in co-producing mental health service
transformation means that there is a strong foundation upon which to develop the IPSA
proposals. There have been a range of events, forums, workshops, pilots and service
prototypes which have enabled engagement with a wide range of stakeholders including:
people using services, carers, statutory support providers, commissioners, councillors,
senior managers across health and social care, local voluntary organisations and official
bodies such as NHS England.

The specific details of the IPSA proposals have involved the participation of a range of
senior managers from NHS Lambeth CCG, Lambeth Council, the South London and
Maudsley Trust and partner provider organisations. The proposals have been developed
in conjunction with an alliance contract specialist consultant and were refined following
detailed consideration of the practical, legal and financial implications of establishing an
innovative contract arrangement.
3.2 Gaps in coproduction, consultation
and involvement
The Collaborative has not specifically looked at equality issues arising for different groups.
Therefore development of the IPSA proposals will require consideration and specific
What gaps in consultation and
involvement and coproduction have you information on equalities issues and impacts from people directly affected by the
21

Page 243

The different co-production elements have all added knowledge and insight into how
services should change to become more personalised, recovery-focussed and responsive
to individual requirements. Previous engagement events have showcased the work that
has been done by the Collaborative and partners and, supported conversations with a
large number of attendees about to develop new and improved service offers.

identified (set out any gaps as they
relate to specific equality groups)?
Please describe where more
consultation, involvement and/or
coproduction is required and set out
how you intend to undertake it. If you
do not intend to undertake it, please set
out your justification.

proposals. The Alliance will need to consider where there are gaps in knowledge and
information about equalities and how these gaps should be addressed.
The Alliance will also need to consider how to involve people from diverse backgrounds in
developing the IPSA proposals by:









4.0 Conclusions, justification and action
4.1Conclusions and justification
What are the main conclusions of this
EIA? What, if any, disproportionate

The IPSA proposals aim to improve the experiences of people likely to benefit from an
intensive and personalised mental health rehabilitation service. The IPSA developments
22

Page 244



Encouraging involvement in planning groups and decision-making processes and
actively supporting and enabling people from diverse backgrounds to participate
Direct conversations with people about how to personalise services especially
people from the different equality groups
Involving people in co-producing and delivering new support arrangements
including ensuring an active approach and making reasonable adjustments so all
have equal opportunity to participate
Looking at gaps in the care and support market and segmenting by equality
groups and their specific and diverse needs
Considering how outcomes can be effectively monitored and measured, and
services reviewed from an equality and equity perspective both qualitatively and
quantitatively
Developing a communications and engagement plan that will work for diverse
communities with different levels of literacy and different interpretations and
understanding of mental health, and varied experience and knowledge of services
Developing and delivering staff training sessions focusing on capabilities and
competence to provide appropriate care to highly diverse populations
Providing appropriate support and supervision of staff to perform their
responsibilities equitably and well in all circumstances and with any person and
their carers and family

negative or positive equality impacts did are also an opportunity to take positive steps to reduce existing inequalities, promote
you identify at 2.1? On what grounds do better relations between groups, improve wellbeing and encourage better access to more
you justify them and how will they be
personal and recovery-focussed care and support. Alliance teams will work comitigated?
productively with people, moving away from the traditional 'service-led' approaches in
which people are expected to fit in to services which may not properly address their
needs or aspirations for the future.

The development of personalised support options are generally considered to be positive,
and previous learning from Lambeth's Social Worker Occupational Therapy (SWOT) Team
has shown that people from 24-hour supported environments can successfully step-down
to lower support accommodation and live more independently with personalised
support. The SWOT Team pilot carried out assessments of people living in residential care
homes and identified people who could step-down into lower support accommodation. A
number of people moved and are still in their accommodation, achieving much better
outcomes whilst also enabling large savings to be achieved.
However, there is a risk that there could be some confusion or lack of understanding
about personalisation and personal budgets, and about what services and support can be
accessed. A lack of accessible information and advocacy, possibly combined with years
living in an institutionalised setting, may mean that some people are reluctant to engage
with the ‘new ways of working’ that IPSA proposes. There may also be difficulties in
ensuring that accommodation services and community support provision really does
23

Page 245

Positive impacts will result through the development of services that recognise people's
strengths and assets rather than needs and deficits, and work in a less risk-averse way to
improve individual outcomes and opportunities for independence. Individuals will be able
to determine the outcomes they would like to achieve for the future during assessment
and recovery and support planning, which could include where they would like to live and
how they would like to spend any eligible personal budget/health budget allocations.
Person-centred planning will support people to identify options which may include more
individualised, non-mainstream options which better address their cultural or other
equalities needs and choices.

address the needs and aspirations of people from a range of different groups.
The Alliance should not consider that personalisation automatically addresses inequality
for all of the protected characteristics and people of all backgrounds. In reality, the best
way to address inequalities is to understand how they are played out in individual’s lives.
This means not making any assumptions and active enquiry with each individual about
what would work best for them accompanied by a flexible and appropriate response from
individual staff and the service as a whole. For each protected characteristic there will
need to be factors which are considered in order to develop personalised approaches
which fully incorporate individual issues.

Mitigations
There is the opportunity to develop specific activities which will help with the mitigation
of impact for people from different backgrounds. As discussed, an assumption that there
will be no significant adverse impact is based on the understanding that the focus of the
IPSA proposals will be to develop personalised services which better meet the needs of
people with a range of complex issues including equalities needs. However this
assumption must be demonstrated by the Alliance over time.
The Alliance has the opportunity to support greater choice and control to people from all
equalities groups. IPSA providers and commissioners have previously been involved in
developing innovative initiatives such as lower support accommodation options for
people moving on from residential care, the Living Well Network Hub, Lambeth
Community Options Team, Personal Health Budget pilot, medication prototype, peer
24

Page 246

For all of the groups considered, discrimination and stereotyping are always a potential
risk although much of this may be unconscious and not deliberate. The Alliance providers
will need to be aware of the risks which may arise as a result of this, and take steps to
ensure this is being identified on an individual and systemic level as well as having service
improvement plans to promote equity and fairness for all groups where improvement can
be demonstrated over time.

support and community connection services. This learning can be used to develop and
reconfigure services and markets to better meet individual needs.
To mitigate any negative impacts which may emerge as a result of the IPSA proposals the
following actions will need to be considered:




-

Educating people on personalisation and how to make choices, providing
support to ensure that they understand the impacts of the new ways of
working
Ensuring that the appropriate level of support is provided to help manage
change for individuals affected by the IPSA proposals
Ensuring support is available to help people develop recovery and support
plans, consider new options and manage their personal budget if required
Information is clear and accessible to all people and services are available
to support those who have language and communication needs
Offering a range of care and support options including personal assistants
are available to ensure increased choice for people from different groups
Include assessment of the household environment
25

Page 247



An agreed and systematic approach to equality monitoring so that outcomes can
be reviewed by equality group over time.
A detailed equalities action plan to be developed by the Alliance with priorities set
using the risks identified in this screening and in consultation with people
currently receiving rehabilitation or residential care services and their carers
Targeted support to people and groups in accordance with their needs and
wishes, ensuring that people have been fully involved in the decision-making
process around their care and support options
As part of a person’s review and recovery planning identifying with the person any
barriers that may hinder their ability to benefit equally from the IPSA ‘offer’, for
example in relation to literacy, English language skills, physical health or disability
and previous experience of discrimination. This would include:






Individuals who lack capacity and are without family or carers who are able to
help in making choices on their behalf are appropriately supported and offered
advocacy support
Learning and development support for staff along with appropriate induction that
where necessary challenges people’s assumptions and preconceived ideas
Employing a varied and diverse group of staff and actively providing opportunities
for staff to learn from one another and their different backgrounds with the
support of management
Links developed with peer supporters and local organisations to support and
connect people from different groups

4.2Equality Action plan
Please list the equality issue/s identified through the evidence and the mitigating action to be taken. Please also detail the date
when the action will be taken and the name and job title of the responsible officer.
Equality Issue
Mitigating actions
Example:
Example:
That the equality analysis may not have Review the EIA and assess whether the mitigating actions were sufficient.
accurately covered all the equality
12/09/12. Joe Bloggs. Head of ABC
impacts; and the mitigations may not
act to reduce disproportionate impact
Equalities impacts and mitigations are
not fully considered and addressed
Services commissioned do not meet the
needs of all

An equalities action plan to be developed by the Alliance in order to fully address gaps,
understand impacts and plan for the development of the IPSA proposals
A programme of consultation and engagement with people affected by the proposals and
will need to be undertaken by the Alliance to inform service developments ensuring that
there is diverse representation
Uncertainty and lack of clarity about the Development of a communications and engagement plan, with support and advocacy
26

Page 248

A governance structure will be needed to scrutinise the work commissioned in this area,
with particular emphasis on the equality impacts of the activities and safeguarding
process. Monitoring and performance frameworks will need to include equalities
considerations and the need for improved and more extensive data collection.

IPSA proposals which cause anxiety and available to help people understand the proposals and successfully manage change
concern to some people who may have
difficulty understanding the implications
Lack of information and data available Review information available and identify gaps and how these can be addressed. Develop
to properly assess impacts, equalities an extensive equalities performance and monitoring framework and governance
action planning and review processes arrangements
Lack of understanding of equalities
Develop a workforce development and training plan
issues and impacts and lack of real
change in this area

5.0 Publishing your results

Page 249

The results of your EIA must be published. Once the business activity has been implemented the EIA must be periodically reviewed
to ensure your decision/change had the anticipated impact and the actions set out at 4.2 are still appropriate.
EIA publishing date
EIA review date
Assessment sign off (name/job title):
All completed and signed-off EIAs must be submitted to equalities@lambeth.gov.uk for publication on Lambeth’s website. Where possible,
please anonymise your EIAs prior to submission (i.e. please remove any references to an officers’ name, email and phone number).

27

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 251

Agenda Item 6

Cabinet
9 February 2015
Lambeth draft Revised Statement of Community Involvement
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Sue Foster, Strategic Director Delivery
Portfolio: Councillor Jack Hopkins, Cabinet Member for Jobs and Growth:
Contact for enquiries:
Alan Vinall, Delivery Lead Planning Strategy and Policy, Business Growth and Regeneration
Delivery Cluster, 020 7926 1212, avinall@lambeth.gov.uk
Report summary
The council is required by law to have a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI). An SCI
sets out how and when stakeholders will be involved in development plan preparation and
consulted on planning applications. The current SCI was prepared in 2007 and adopted by the
council in April 2008. It is now out-of-date due to changes in planning legislation. It also needs
to be updated to reflect the council’s co-operative working practices, the outcomes based
budgeting savings targets, more widespread use of new technology and the internet for
consultations and provide a more environmentally sustainable service.
Many of the consultation measures currently employed by the council exceed statutory
requirements and measures employed by other London boroughs. These come with associated
costs and resources and therefore continued use of such non-statutory measures may not be
appropriate in the revised SCI.
It is recommended that the draft revised Statement of Community Involvement, at Appendix 1,
for public consultation during six weeks between February and March 2015 be agreed.
Consultation responses will be evaluated and the SCI will be amended as appropriate. The new
revised SCI will be submitted to full council for adoption, expected to be May/June 2015.
Finance summary
The public consultation on the draft statement of community involvement will be funded from
existing approved budgets.
As part of the outcome based budgetary savings requirement the Planning and Development
(P&D) Services agreed savings of £150,000 to be implemented in 2014/15. Following the
Housing Jobs and Investment Outcomes Panel/October budget challenge, a further £70,000
savings were agreed for 2015/16 and £50,000 for 2016/17. Following careful consideration and

Page 252
discussion on how these savings could best be met by the department, and while ensuring
resources are used in the most effective way; it was considered that changes in the way we
consult on planning applications could help achieve these savings targets without adversely
impacting on current high levels of performance in respect of timeliness of decision making. If
the revised SCI is adopted, the changes as set out in the draft will contribute approximately
£90k towards the savings agreed as part of the Financial Planning and Budgeting for the
service. The SCI supports smarter ways of working and engaging with the community and
developers that endorses the cooperative council ethos while delivering services in this difficult
climate of reduced funding.

Recommendations
(1)

To approve the draft revised Statement of Community Involvement (Appendix 1) for
public consultation between February and March 2015.

Page 253
1.

Context

1.1

The purpose of the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) is to set out the level
and type of public consultation that the council will undertake when considering
planning applications and preparing planning policy documents.

1.2

The current Lambeth SCI 2008 is out-of-date due to changes in legislation and could
better reflect the more prevalent use of technology by people today and the council’s
co-operative principles. Similarly the SCI is considered outdated in terms of demand
on council resources. As part of the outcomes based budgeting savings projections,
P&D Services has committed to achieving £150,000 in savings (implemented
2014/15) with a further £70,000 for 2015/16 and £50,000 for 2016/17. Taking into
account the need to work smarter and more co-operatively with partners and taking
account priorities of P&D Services; it is considered that changes in the way we
consult can help achieve some of these savings.

1.3

Many of the consultation measures currently employed by the council exceed
statutory requirements and measures employed by other London boroughs. These
come with associated costs (both environmental and financial) and therefore
continued use of such non-statutory measures may not be appropriate in the revised
SCI.

1.4

A draft revised SCI, together with a report outlining all options considered, has been
presented to Planning and Development & Cabinet Advisory Panel (PD&CAP). This
report and the revised SCI attached as Appendix 1 incorporates member feedback
from that panel.

2.

Proposal and Reasons

2.1

In order for the council to modernise how it engages with partners, residents and
businesses to follow more co-operative working practices, and for P&D Services to meet
agreed budgetary savings, a number of changes are proposed in the revised SCI on the
way we consult on development of planning policy documents and planning applications.
Consultation on planning policy

2.2

The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 sets out
the minimum legislative consultation requirements in preparing local plans and
supplementary planning documents. Lambeth currently exceeds statutory requirements
for consulting on planning policy documents.

2.3

Overall it is considered that existing methods used for consulting on planning policy
documents are effective, provide value for money and achieve co-operative working
principles and wider community engagement. Therefore it is proposed that a wide range
of current consultation measures (for example focus groups, workshops, leaflets, printed
media) should remain available for use. Specifically, use of stakeholder workshops/
focus groups have been particularly useful in generating ideas and feedback in the past
ensuring that key target groups are engaged in the policy formulation process.

Page 254
2.4

The use of measures would be subject to resources and appropriateness to the subject
and/or spatial extent of policy document. This is achieved through the revised SCI’s noncommittal language such as ‘may’, ‘could’, where appropriate’, which thereby provides
flexibility to consultation.

2.5

Placing a public notice in the local paper on planning policy consultations is no longer a
statutory requirement. It is also considered an ineffective engagement activity which is
expensive to use. The draft SCI proposes to no longer require public notices in the local
paper on planning policy consultations. The draft SCI meets minimum legislative
consultation requirements for planning policy consultations.
Consultation on planning applications

2.6

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
Order 2010 and Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 set out the
statutory consultation requirements for planning applications. Lambeth currently exceeds
statutory requirements for consulting on planning applications. For example it is not a
requirement to both display a site notice and send neighbour notification letters. It is also
not required to notify relevant Lambeth groups, make drawings available at libraries, or
acknowledge comments received – all measures that the council currently does for every
planning application. These measures can add to considerable cost and resources;
sometimes the council sends thousands of notifications letters for minimal return.

2.7

The draft SCI meets minimum statutory requirements and proposes the following
changes to consultations on planning applications:

2.8



Neighbour notification letters sent only to those sharing a boundary with the
subject site (i.e. statutory minimum);



Including more information on the planning process (for example how people can
keep themselves updated on the application) in the initial neighbour notification
letter (where used). The letter will also list all other neighbours notified of the
proposal;



Where site notices are not statutorily required, the council may request the
developer to erect a site notice(s) and require evidence to prove it has been
done; and



Libraries will no longer hold physical copies of planning applications and
drawings. These are available to view free of charge on the library computers via
the council website.

A main change we are proposing in the SCI is sending neighbour notification letters only
to owners/occupiers that share boundaries with the subject site. Currently, the extent of
neighbour notification letters by the council is determined by the case officer and is
normally set at 200m around the subject site but can vary to be commensurate to the
nature and scale of the proposed development, and/or any pre-application community
interest in the development. This can sometimes mean that thousands of letters are sent
out, resulting in a considerable cost to the council. The response rate of such

Page 255
notifications is often low in comparison. Given this, and taking into account developers of
major applications undertake their own pre-application community engagement
activities, and that significant schemes (for example Vauxhall Tower and Garden Bridge)
make major newspaper headlines; it is considered that neighbour notification letters
could be limited to shared boundaries without a significant impact on response rates.
2.9

An analysis of three recently consulted major applications strongly indicate that
neighbour notification letters do not elicit high response rates. For the Wyvil Road
application, 5076 letters were sent, and only 8 comments received (response rate of
0.157%). Similarly, 1 Lambeth High Street had a low response rate of 2.7%. The Higgs
Industrial Estate attracted a higher response rate of 13.6% but this remains low.

3.

Finance

3.1

The cost of consultation on the Draft Statement of Community Involvement will be
funded from existing approved budgets.

3.2

As part of the outcomes based budgeting savings projections, P&D Services has
committed to achieving £150,000 in savings (implemented 2014/15) with a further
£70,000 for 2015/16 and £50,000 for 2016/17. In the difficult climate of reduced
funding, a change in the way the council consults on planning applications will
significantly help the service to remain within the agreed budget and focus
resources on supporting higher priorities of the council and community, while still
meeting statutory requirements on planning consultations. For example, the total
cost of postage relating to planning applications work is currently £80,000 per
annum. A further £48,000 is spent on enveloping and stationery. Exact breakdown
of these costs between planning application consultations and other
correspondence is not possible; however an approximate estimate is that about 70%
of these figures relate to consultations. The response rate of such neighbour
notification letters is often very low in comparison (see para 2.9). Therefore a
change in the way the council consults on planning applications, etc is expected to
generate cost savings of approximately £90k per annum and yet not adversely affect
response rates.

4.

Legal and Democracy

4.1

The recommendations in this report comply with the statutory requirements set out in the
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) England) Order
2010,Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservations Areas) Act 1990 and the Town and
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England)Regulations 2012. Regard has been taken
of the National Planning Policy Framework and the National Planning Practice Guidance.

5.

Consultation and co-production

5.1

Once agreed by Cabinet, the draft revised SCI will undergo public consultation for six
weeks in February/March 2015. The responses received will then be considered and the
SCI amended accordingly if appropriate for adoption by full council.

Page 256
6.

Risk management

6.1

Legislation sets out the minimum requirements for planning policy and planning
application consultations. The council will honour statutory requirements and therefore
avoid risk of judicial review.

6.2

Without a significant shift in the council’s approach to planning consultations there is real
risk that the planning department will not achieve any meaningful savings to its
consultation budget. Any spend on planning consultations must demonstrate value for
money and elicit meaningful response. It would also risk the department being unable to
deliver a balanced budget, given the outcome based budget savings which have been
committed to. This would in all likelihood impact upon performance as the technical
planning resource (staff) would need to be cut to fill the gap.

7.

Equalities impact assessment

7.1

An EIA (see appendix 2) has been prepared alongside the preparation of the revised
SCI. The EIA generally found the SCI to have a positive impact on equalities groups in
the borough.

8.

Community safety

8.1

The draft revised SCI does not impact on community safety.
Timetable for implementation
Stage in plan preparation
Consultation on draft revised Statement of
Community Involvement (six weeks)
Amend SCI in light of comments
Feedback to equalities panel (if needed)
Feedback to PC & CAP
Cabinet meeting to recommend approval
Adoption by full council

Date
16 February – 30 March 2015 tbc
April 2015
April 2015
May 2015
July 2015
July 2015

Page 257
Audit trail
Consultation
Name/Position

Lambeth
cluster/division or
partner
Strategic Director
Delivery

Date Sent

Date
Received

Comments in
para:

23.12.14

07.01.15

Mike Pocock

Delivery Director
Business, Growth and
Regeneration

23.12.14

07.01.15

Report summary,
Finance
summary, 1.2,
2.1, 2.3, 2.4, 2.8,
2.9, 3.2
and changes to
Appendix 1
Report summary,
Finance
summary, 1.2,
1.3, 2.1, 2.3, 2.4,
2.6, 3.2

Sandra Roebuck

Assistant Director
Neighbourhood
Investment
Governance and
Democracy
Democratic Services

23.12.14

Hamant Bharadia

Sue Foster

Peter Flockhart

23.12.14

08.01.15

23.12.14

08.01.15

Enabling/Integrated
Services

23.12.14

08.01.15

Cllr Jack Hopkins

Cabinet Member for
Business and Growth

23.12.14

09.01.15

Cllr Diana Morris

Chair of Planning
Applications
Committee

23.12.14

08.01.15

Anne Rasmussen

Report history
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Report no.
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential

02/01/15
09.01.15
150/14-15
No

2.2, 2.5, 2.7, 4.1
and Appendix 1
Cover page,
Recommendation,
and Timetable
Finance summary
and
3.1, 3.2
Changes to be
taken on board
when
implementing the
SCI
Changes to
Appendix 1 and to
be taken on board
when
implementing the
SCI

Page 258
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information

No

National Planning Policy Framework March
2012 (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance March
2014 (NPPG)
Town and Country Planning (Local
Development) (England) Regulations 2012
Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) England) Order 2010

Appendices

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990
Appendix 1 - Revised draft Statement of
Community Involvement, January 2015
Appendix 2 – Equalities Impact Assessment
on Revised draft Statement of Community
Involvement, Dec 2014

Page 259
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
1.

1.1

INTRODUCTION
What is a Statement of Community Involvement?
The council is required by law under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 to
have a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI). An SCI sets out how and when the
community and other stakeholders can be involved in development plan preparation and in
the consideration of planning applications, including pre-application proposals and appeals.
The SCI has been prepared in line with the council’s commitment of co-operative working
practices.

1.2

The current Lambeth SCI was prepared in 2007 and adopted by the council in 2008. It is now
out-of-date due to changes in planning legislation. It also needs to be updated to better
reflect the more widespread use of technology and the internet by people today and the
council’s co-operative principles. Similarly the SCI is considered outdated in terms of
demand on council resources.

1.3

The SCI is an important component of the council’s portfolio of planning documents. All
planning documents outlined in the council’s Local Development Scheme need to be
prepared in line with the engagement proposals set out in the adopted SCI. The SCI also
provides certainty to the public and interested parties on the type of notification they can
expect and how they can be involved in making their views known on planning applications.

1.4

The SCI sets out:
 how Lambeth Council will work co-operatively with the local community, partners and
interested parties
 good practice in engaging those with an interest in planning policy and planning
applications
 appropriate consultation methods
 resource implications of community involvement
 minimum standards of consultation as set out in Planning Regulations and additional
measures proposed by the council
Potential engagement methods

1.5

The council will have available a range of ways to engage with local residents, businesses and
organisations and will use the method or methods appropriate and proportionate to the
planning matter (policy or application) in question. In line with co-operative council ethos
the council will seek to engage in partnership where possible and/or through our community
partners.
Website

1.6

The council website (www.lambeth.gov.uk) includes pages dedicated to planning policy and
planning applications. The website contains all borough planning policy documents,
including the Local Plan, supplementary planning documents, and policy guidance notes. It
1

Page 260
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
also contains the Local Development Scheme, this Statement of Community Involvement,
information on neighbourhood planning and a link to the London Plan.
1.7

The planning applications pages include the ability to register for email alerts of planning
applications in a locality or any other areas of interest in the borough, opportunity to
comment online on planning applications, ability to search planning applications (including
archived applications) and submit planning applications. Breaches of planning rules may also
be reported via the website, and there is also information to help determine whether
planning permission is required, and the types of planning advice the council provides.

1.8

All planning policy and application consultations will be published on the council website.
Electronic communication and email

1.9

Due to its minimal resource implication electronic communication and email is the preferred
method of notifying and communicating planning consultations, and receiving comments. In
recent years email has been an increasingly popular means of communication by consultees
to express views or request information. Where the council holds a valid email address for a
statutory, specific or general consultee, or any other interested party; email is the preferred
method of communication over posting letters unless planning regulations specify
otherwise. It is the responsibility of interested persons or parties to keep the council
informed of changes in email address. The council aims to have a valid email address for all
consultees listed on its planning consultation database. It is the responsibility of recipients
of electronic email to check their junk/trash/promotions mail boxes in case mail is
automatically delivered to these boxes rather than the primary inbox and/or allow emails
from the council to be accepted direct to their inbox.
Weekly planning lists

1.10

A weekly list of all registered planning applications and decisions taken on planning
applications is available to view on the council website.
Libraries

1.11

For borough-wide policy documents, at least one copy of all draft and adopted planning
policy documents will be held at each of the libraries in Lambeth. Area-specific documents
(draft and adopted) will be held at the library local to the specific area. Lambeth libraries
offer free computer and internet access for library members. The computers can therefore
be used to view planning related documents on the council website. Information on local
libraries, including opening hours is available on the council website. The libraries will display
in a prominent position the weekly planning lists.
Letters

1.12

Where email is unavailable, letters may be used to consult specific and general consultation
bodies, and neighbour notifications about planning applications. As email is the preferred
means of getting in contact rather than letters; notifications of consultation events, planning
documents and planning applications will not be sent by post where a valid email address is
2

Page 261
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
held. It is the responsibility of interested persons or parties to keep the council informed of
changes in email address.
Site notices
1.13

Site notices are a minimum statutory requirement for certain planning applications. These
include applications for listed building consent where works to the exterior of the building
are proposed; applications to vary or discharge conditions attached to a listed building
consent, or conservation area consent, or involving exterior works to a listed building;
applications that do not accord with the development plan and; applications subject to an
Environmental Impact Assessment. The council will arrange the erection of the site notice
where it is legally required for applications. Where it is not legally required, the council may
request applicants of major development proposals to erect a site notice(s).
Local paper and public notices

1.14

Public notices for planning applications, excluding minor development (applications other
than applications for major development as defined in Article 2 of the Development
Management Procedure Order) are generally put into local newspapers. This is primarily the
Lambeth Weekender, although the South London Press may be used to meet statutory
timeframes. Press releases can be used to give prominence to major planning applications
and consultation on development guidelines, policy and other planning documents. Public
notices in local newspapers are costly and use of this method may change if legislation no
longer requires statutory publicity of planning applications in newspapers.

1.15

It is no longer a statutory requirement to place a public notice in the local paper to advertise
planning policy documents but the council may consider placing notices for major
consultation and for major formal stages of document preparation for example publicising
formal submission of a plan to the secretary of state, or final plan adoption. Articles in the
Lambeth Weekender on planning policy matters are useful and an effective means of
generating interest and seeking community views on potential approaches to policy
formulation.
Summary leaflets/newsletters

1.16

In certain circumstances summary leaflets have worked very well in Lambeth at pulling out
key issues effectively and engaging people more effectively in targeted workshops. Content
can be tailored to a particular issue, topic or area. While production and distribution of
leaflets and newsletters has associated costs, previous use of them demonstrates their
effectiveness in engaging a wide range of people. The council may consider use of leaflets
and newsletters in future consultations.
Posters

1.17

Posters can be used to advertise consultations and availability of documents and
information. They can be targeted through area distribution, tailored to a particular issue,
area or topic and can potentially reach people not normally interested in planning issues. As
with other printed consultation material, production and distribution costs can be high
3

Page 262
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
depending on design, quality and printing volume. The council may consider use of posters
in future consultations.
Exhibitions
1.18

Exhibitions normally involve display boards showing proposed area or topic based changes.
They allow people to browse and take in information, responding via a feedback form, but
also via council officers or developers who organised the exhibition. Council organised
exhibitions will be held in locations accessible by a range of transport options and with
disabled access and advertised appropriately, for example on the council’s website, in
council publications and email notifications. The council encourages developers of major or
significant planning applications to hold exhibitions, displays, presentations and to follow
similar accessibility and advertising as part of their community consultation process.
Public meetings

1.19

Pubic meetings are useful for discussing large projects or planning applications or planning
policy where the discussion can be focused on specific matters. Their main value is in
providing information and answering questions. However, often meetings can be dominated
by individuals or groups. Public meetings will adhere to enhanced accessibility principles for
inclusive engagement, for example, timing, location, venue, audible and visual
communication of information and materials.
Workshops/ drop-in sessions/ focus groups

1.20

Workshops can bring people together from different sectors of the community to be more
actively involved in the early and initial issues and options in preparing policy documents.
Workshops and focus groups work well on a topic or area basis and will normally be led by
council officers and/or facilitators, as appropriate. They can be a good way of engaging with
harder to reach groups, particularly through ‘piggy backing’ on existing meetings (otherwise
known as mole events). This is also consistent with co-operative working practices, and the
council will look to engage community partners to help deliver consultations where
appropriate. Like public meetings, these will adhere to enhanced accessibility principles for
inclusive engagement, for example timing, location, venue, and visual and audible
communication of information and materials.

1.21

Drop-in sessions are informal meetings where people who are interested in particular issues
and plans can ‘drop-in’ for a one-to-one discussion with a planner. These may be held in
informal locations such as a town centre or market, or in more formal locations like the town
hall or council offices.
Questionnaire surveys

1.22

A questionnaire survey often works well with a summary leaflet that outlines the purpose of
the proposed policy document, issues and options to specific policy topics, and prompt
questions to help structure consultation. Questionnaires can be posted, downloaded from
the website or taken to any workshop, meeting or event. Previous use of questionnaires has
been very effective in increasing response rates and focusing on key issues. They can also be
4

Page 263
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
used for on-street surveys which have proved a good consultation tool in the past,
particularly in engaging harder to reach people, however; on-street surveys are resource
intensive.
Public and community events
1.23

The council will take opportunities to link up with other programmes of public consultation
or community or council-led events. At such events or consultation programmes the council
can publicise and encourage comments on relevant planning applications and other planning
issues. As a co-operative council using community partners to help deliver consultations will
be encouraged where appropriate.
Local councillors

1.24

Locally elected councillors play a key part in providing advice, representation and advocacy
of planning related issues as well as helping to notify residents and businesses of the
borough of current planning matters.
Social media

1.25

Social media is increasingly recognised as an effective means for communication. It can
provide instant communication to a large number of people. This method of communication
may engage those who are not normally interested in local government issues and reach a
wider audience than the planning policy database. The council will use social media to
promote consultations where appropriate.

5

Page 264
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
2.

WORKING WITH OTHERS ON PLANNING POLICY

2.1

This section sets out how the council intends to engage with the community in the
formulation of planning policy documents. The Local Development Scheme (LDS) (available
to view on the council website and upon request) sets out the programme for preparation of
Lambeth’s Local Planning documents. It is regularly updated so people can be aware of
forthcoming opportunities to participate in the preparation of planning policy documents.
Statutory planning policy documents
Local Plan

2.2

The council, as a local planning authority, is required to prepare statutory planning
documents and the timetable for their preparation is set out in the LDS. These statutory
planning documents are also known as development plan documents. A Local Plan is one
such development plan document and it can be a single policy document or a suite of
documents. Currently the Local Plan for Lambeth is made up of the Core Strategy 2011 and
remaining saved, non-superseded policies in the Lambeth Unitary Development Plan 2007.
These locally prepared documents, together with the London Plan 2011 contain the policies
against which planning applications in Lambeth are determined. Together, these three
documents constitute the current statutory development plan for the borough. However, a
new Lambeth Local Plan is close to adoption (expected May 2015) and will soon replace the
Core Strategy and saved UDP policies.

2.3

In March 2012, the coalition government published the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) which replaced almost all existing national planning policy and guidance. The NPPF
requires Local Plan policies to be up-to-date to ensure that local planning authorities are
well placed in relation to the new presumption in favour of sustainable development.
Where policies are out-of-date or silent on an issue, it may be difficult for the council to use
its planning powers to secure the best outcome from proposed development schemes.
Whilst the Lambeth Core Strategy was recently adopted, the remaining saved UDP policies
are now outdated and require updating.

2.4

In order to comply with the NPPF, the council has brought forward a new draft Local Plan for
Lambeth. The over-arching vision, strategic objectives and spatial strategy set out in the
Core Strategy 2011 have not undergone review as part of this exercise, as they are recently
developed and adopted by the council and remain valid (subject to factual updating). A
limited number of areas of strategic policy have undergone a review of approach, but all
aspects of the plan have been updated to reflect factual changes. Policies to replace
remaining saved UDP policies, and site allocations have been included in the new draft Local
Plan.

2.5

The Local Plan was submitted for examination in March 2014. The examination hearing took
place in July 2014 and consultation on main modifications was undertaken during November
2014 – January 2015. It is anticipated that the Lambeth Local Plan will be adopted in May
2015.

6

Page 265
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
2.6

The Greater London Authority published draft Further Alterations to the London Plan 2011
(FALP) for public consultation in January 2014. The FALP underwent an Examination in
Public in September 2014, with the expectation that these will be adopted early in 2015.
These Further Alterations introduce new London-wide and borough-level housing targets
and new borough-level waste apportionments. In order to address the implications of these
for Lambeth, the council proposes to undertake an immediate early review of the Lambeth
Local Plan following its adoption in 2015. A decision on whether this is a full or partial
review will be made early in 2015.

2.7

Upon adoption, the Local Plan will cover a fifteen year period. The Local Plan plus the
London Plan will form the new statutory development plan for the borough. The Local Plan
sets out the vision and framework for future development of Lambeth, addressing needs
and opportunities in relation to housing, the economy, community facilities and
infrastructure – as well as a basis for safeguarding the environment, adapting to climate
change and securing good design. The Local Plan is a critical tool in guiding decisions about
individual development proposals, as it (together with any forthcoming neighbourhood
plans) are the starting-point for considering whether applications can be approved.

2.8

The Local Plan makes clear what is intended to happen in Lambeth over the life of the
plan, where and when this will occur and how it will be delivered. This is done by setting out
broad locations and specific allocations of land for different purposes; through designations
showing areas where particular opportunities or considerations apply (for example
conservation areas); and through criteria-based policies to be taken into account when
considering development. The policies map spatially illustrates the application of policies in
the Local Plan.

2.9

Other development plan documents may include a Gypsy and Traveller Development Plan
Document and a Waste Development Plan Document. The council may address the
requirement to allocate additional sites and/or areas for waste to meet the London Plan
waste apportionment through a separate waste DPD. The NPPF sets a new requirement to
identify and update annually a five year supply of specific deliverable sites for travellers
against locally set targets. It is proposed that the requirements of national policy on this
issue may also be addressed in a separate development plan document (DPD) on gypsies and
travellers. Alternatively both may be subsumed into the Local Plan review.
Neighbourhood plans

2.10

The Localism Act 2011 allows for the preparation of neighbourhood plans. A neighbourhood
plan is prepared by the community through designated neighbourhood forums and sets out
policies on development and use of land in the defined neighbourhood area. If brought
forward by the community and when formally agreed by the council, the neighbourhood
plan becomes a statutory planning document and must be taken into account when making
decisions on planning applications in that neighbourhood. This means it has the same degree
of weight in decision making as the Local Plan.

7

Page 266
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
2.11

The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 set out, amongst other things, the
consultation requirements for neighbourhood planning, including the responsibilities of the
local planning authority. The council will undertake its statutory duty with respect to these
regulations. Overall the consultation requirements on the council are similar to that required
for development plan documents. The council recommends that local people consider using
the methods of community involvement set out in this SCI as the basis for their own sound
and inclusive consultation on the preparation of their neighbourhood plan (including
formation of the forum and neighbourhood area).
Supplementary Planning Documents

2.13

The council may also produce non-statutory planning documents such as supplementary
planning documents. These do not have development plan status and therefore are not
subject to independent examination like statutory documents such as the local plan.
Supplementary planning documents can be prepared by the council to expand policy or
provide further details to the policies in development plan documents.
Who we will consult
Statutory consultees

2.15

The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) Regulations 2012 set out the plan
preparation process and minimum requirements for consultation (regulations 18 to 26). As a
minimum the council must consult and invite representations (comments) with ‘specific
consultation bodies’, ‘general consultation bodies’ and ‘such residents or other persons
carrying on business in the local planning authority’s area from which the local planning
authority consider it appropriate to invite representations’. A current list of specific and
general consultees is provided in Appendix 1.

2.16

The council maintains a database of contact details of groups and individuals who have
expressed an interest in planning policy. It was created in 2005 and has been continually
updated over the years. Any group, organisation or individual can be added to the database
and therefore be notified of planning policy consultations. If you would like to be added to
(or removed from) the planning policy database please email
planningpolicy@lambeth.gov.uk.

2.17

These statutory bodies, interested parties and organisations, as well as the wider general
public will be engaged in a number of different ways including ways that support the
councils co-operative working ethos, see section 1 and Table 1. Where appropriate the
council will encourage community partners to help deliver consultations.
Harder to reach groups

2.18

The council recognises that in terms of consultation and engagement exercises Lambeth can
be split into two groups: those easily reached and kept involved, and those that are harder
to reach. These include young people, black and ethnic minority groups, faith groups,
lesbian, bisexual, gay and transgender groups, disability groups, Asian women and gypsies
8

Page 267
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
and travellers. Particular efforts will be made to reach these groups. The council has
identified a number of highly active networks and voluntary organisations which represent
the views of people identifying with these groups. The details of these groups are on the
council’s consultation database.
2.19

Specific efforts will be made to involve schools and youth organisations through Lambeth
Youth Council, residents through the Leaseholder and Tenants Councils and other groups
and forums. More outreach methods, such as ‘mole events’ will be used in reaching groups
not normally involved in planning.

2.20

Appendix 2 identifies engagement methods proven to be particularly effective for different
groups. These methods will be available for use by the council subject to resourcing and
nature of policy document. It is important that consultation are accessible. Appendix 3
provides a list of consideration to ensure consultation are accessible (including use of
translation, audiotape and induction-loop services), and this list will be taken into account
when making decision on consultations.
Duty to co-operate

2.21

The duty to co-operate was introduced in the Localism Act 2011, and amends the Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. It places a legal duty on local planning authorities and
public bodies to engage constructively, actively and on an on-going basis to maximise the
effectiveness of Local Plan preparation in the context of strategic cross boundary matters.
This means that the council must seek to actively engage neighbouring boroughs and a
range of other agencies (see Appendix 1) when preparing and reviewing its planning policies,
particularly in relation to strategic priorities and cross-boundary issues. Activities that fall
within the duty to cooperate include activities that prepare the way or support the
preparation of local plans and can relate to all stages of the plan preparation process. The
council has to submit robust evidence to demonstrate compliance with the duty to
cooperate and therefore a statement on cooperative working will be prepared and available
for inspection as part of the Examination in Public process. The council is also required to
report on its duty to cooperate activity in the annual monitoring report.
Community involvement in the statutory Local Plan process

2.22

The process of producing local plans involves several stages. Figure 1 shows the process and
Table 1 expands on this providing detail on how engagement and responses can change
policy. The stages of production are prescribed by the Town and Country Planning (Local
Planning) Regulations. The National Planning Policy Framework states that early and
meaningful engagement with neighbourhoods, local organisations and businesses is
essential. The council needs to therefore identify and engage at an early stage with all those
that may be interested in the development or content of a local plan, including those groups
who may be affected by its proposals but who do not play an active part in most
consultations (including harder to reach groups). Table 1 sets out the different stages of
plan preparation, proposed engagement measures, type of input for each stage and the
outcome of engagement exercises. It clearly sets out what is required by law in terms of
9

Page 268
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
consultation, and measures that the council may choose to use, subject to time, resource
and nature of the development plan document being prepared.
2.23

Appendix 2 identifies engagement methods for different groups that have proved successful
in the past. Continued use of these methods and activities will remain available for use at
the discretion of the council in preparing development plan documents and supplementary
planning documents (see paragraph 2.24).

10

Page 269
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Figure 1: Process of producing development plan documents (DPDs)

Pre-Production

Production

Publication

Examination

Evidence gathering
Consult on Scoping Reort for Sustainability Appraisal (SA)

Public participation in preparation of DPD (on-going engagement Regulation 18 and Duty to Cooperate) and SA
Representations received
Preparation of Proposed Submission DPD and SA
Full Council decision is required on whether the DPD is sound and can
process to pre-submission publication

Pre-submission Publication (Regulation 19)
Representations received on soundness of the DPD and/or comments
on SA. Any changes proposed to the DPD can only be made through
the examination
Request to the Mayor of London for an opinion on general conformity
of the DPD with the London Plan

Submission of the DPD , SA and evidence base (Regulation 22)
Independent Examination (Regulation 24)
Publication of main modifications for representations on soundness

Adoption (Regulation 26)

Adoption

11

Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Stage of document
preparation
Stage 1 preproduction/evidence
base/ plan preparation –
front loading/scoping
stage
The council consults on
the scope of the
development plan
document and issues and
options

Regulation

Nature of input and Outcomes

Legal requirement
- Consult on Scoping Report for Sustainability Appraisal (SA) as per
regulations 9 and 13 of the Environmental Assessment of Plans and
Programmes Regulations 2004 (minimum 5 weeks)
- Consult relevant specific and general consultation bodies and other
such residents or persons carrying on business in the borough
appropriate on what a local plan of the subject matter ought to contain
(no fixed period for consultation)
- Invite representations on issues that would have significant impacts
on both the borough and another local planning authority, or significant
cross-boundary issues and strategic priorities (sections 33A and 20(5)(c)
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase (as amended) Act 2004)
particularly from Local Enterprise Partnerships and Local Nature
Partnerships.
Optional measures
- Make documents available at council offices and all libraries.
- Publish documents on the council’s website.
- Publicise in the Council’s web based Consultation Diary.
- Article in council publications
- Press release and adverts
- Post/email summary leaflets to groups and organisations with
questionnaire to structure and promote responses
- Hold workshop/meetings subject to assessed needs and/or requests
with priority for elderly, young, black minority ethnic and disability
groups
- On-street surveys/questionnaires
- Facilitated focus groups
- SNAP surveys
- ‘Mole event’ attendance
- Social media
- Use of methods outlined in Appendix 2

Regulation
18

Main opportunity to provide comments
(normally over a 6-week period) to help
develop proposals and options for the
policy document
Comments can contribute to collecting
baseline information, identifying
environmental problems and
developing SA objectives as part of SA
process

12

Outcomes:
- Records of discussions
- Copies of comments
- Consultation Statement
- Representation schedule including
council response, either individually or
grouped as theme (for example SNAP
surveys), as appropriate

Page 270

Consultation arrangements

Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Stage 2 Plan preparation
- formulation stage
The council considers
alternatives, formulates
the preferred strategy
and composes a draft
plan

13

Regulation
18

Normally the last main opportunity to
provide comments (over a 6-week
period) to help shape the contents of
the plan.
Outcomes:
- Records of discussions
/correspondence
- Copies of representations
- Consultation Statement
- Representation schedule including
council response, either individually
or grouped as theme (for example
SNAP surveys), as appropriate

Page 271

Stage 3 Pre-submission
Publication

Legal requirement
- Duty to co-operate obligations as set out in section 33A of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase (as amended) Act 2004
- Consultation on the SA in line with Regulations 12 and 13 of the
Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations
2004
- Consult relevant specific and general consultation bodies and other
such residents or persons carrying on business in the borough on
what a local plan of the subject matter ought to contain (no fixed
period for consultation).
Optional measures
- Minimum 6 weeks consultation period
- Make draft documents available at council planning office and all
libraries.
- Publish draft documents on the council’s website.
- Publicise in the council’s web based Consultation Diary.
- Article in council publications
- Press releases and adverts
- Post/email summary leaflets to groups and organisations with
questionnaire to structure and promote response
- Hold workshop/meetings subject to assessed needs and/or requests
with priority for elderly, young, black minority ethnic and disability
groups
- SNAP surveys
- ‘mole event’ attendance
- staff drop-in sessions
- Exhibitions
- Email updates
- Social media
- Use of methods outlined in Appendix 2
Legal requirement
- 6 weeks formal publication
- send to each specific consultation body a copy of each submission

Regulations
19 & 20

Formal opportunity for anyone to
comment on the soundness of the Plan
(restricted to tests of soundness only):

Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Six-week publication
period for those
dissatisfied or satisfied
with the local plan to
make formal
representations to the
inspector about the
soundness of the plan.

This is the council’s
proposed final version of
the plan which is
submitted to the
Secretary of State for
independent

14

 Positively prepared
 Justified
 Effective
 Consistent with national policy
This is not a consultation opportunity to
make changes / provide comments on
the contents of the plan.
Representations received on soundness
of the plan will be sent to the planning
inspector, alongside the plan for
independent examination.
Outcomes
- Copies of Representations
- A consultation statement giving the
number of representations made
under regulation 18 and regulation
20, a summary of main issues raised
under these regulations, or a
statement that no representations
were made.

Page 272

Stage 4 Submission

document and statement of representations procedure
- send to each general consultation body the statement of
representations procedure and notify where and when submission
documents can be inspected
- Make available for inspection proposed submission documents
(includes local plan, SA and supporting documents), and statement of
representations procedure and form:
- at council offices and libraries.
- published on the council website.
- request the opinion of the Mayor of London on the general conformity
of the local plan to the London Plan
Optional measures
- Place advert in the local press
- Publicise in the Council’s web based Consultation Diary.
- Article in council publications
- Press release and adverts
- Consult area assemblies, community/neighbourhood bodies or any
other future representative arrangements as appropriate.
- Email/post summary leaflets to groups and organisations and make
available for individuals with questionnaire to structure and promote
response
- Hold workshop/meetings subject to assessed needs and/or requests
with priority for elderly, young, black minority ethnic and disability
groups.
- Social media
Legal requirement
- Send each of the submission documents in paper form and
electronically to Secretary of State
- Make available for inspection the submission documents (includes
the planning document, submission policies map, SA and
supporting documents), and statement of representations
(Regulation 22(1)(c) statement), including copies of representations
and statement as to where the plan and supporting documents are

Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
examination.
The council collates any
representations made at
pre-submission
publication stage at also
submits these to
Secretary of State along
with all other supporting
documents.
Stage 5 Independent
Examination

The inspector may
recommend proposed
‘main modifications’ to
the plan to ensure its
soundness and legal
compliance if asked to do
so by the council. Minor
modifications may also
be made to improve its

In line with Planning Inspectorate (PINS) best practice, publication of
proposed main modifications should reflect consultation requirements
under regulation 19:
- 6 weeks formal publication
- send to each specific consultation body a copy of the schedule of
proposed main modifications, sustainability appraisal (if applicable)
and a representation form
- notify each general consultation body where and when the schedule
of proposed main modifications can be inspected
- Make available for inspection the schedule of proposed main
modifications, sustainability appraisal (if applicable) and representation
form:
15

Regulation
24
Regulation
19

Pre-examination
During the 6 week period prior to the
examination the inspector may ask the
local authority questions on the plan.
Any questions posed to the local
authority and the local authority’s
responses are published on the council
website.
It will be up to the appointed inspector
to determine the level of public
participation at the examination in
public.
Post-examination
Consultation on the main modifications
allows individuals, organisations,
interested parties the opportunity to
comment on the wording of the
modifications.
All responses received on the

Page 273

An examination in public
(hearing) may be held
where the inspector will
assess whether the
document has been
prepared in accordance
with the Duty to
Cooperate and whether
the plan is sound.

available:
- at council offices and libraries.
- published on the council website.
- Send to each specific consultation body and each general
consultation body notification that the submission documents are
available and when and where they are available for inspection
- Give notice to those persons who requested to be notified of the
submission of the local plan to the Secretary of State that it has
been submitted
Optional measures
- Place ad in local paper
Legal requirements
- At least 6 weeks before the pubic hearing, publish on the councils
website, and notify those who requested to be notified, details of the
date, time and venue for the examination and the name of the person
appointed to carry out the examination
Council measures for main modifications
- Preparation of main modifications schedule
- Depending on the scope of the modifications further sustainability
appraisal work may also be required.

Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
clarity or make factual
corrections. Main
modifications will be
advertised with a
minimum 6 week period.
Stage 6 Post Examination

The plan is amended in
response to the
inspectors
recommendations and is
adopted by a full council
meeting.

at council offices and libraries.
published on the council website.

modifications are compiled and sent
direct to the Inspector which will be
used to inform the final Inspectors
Report.

Legal requirements
- Following the examination, make copies of the Inspector’s
recommendations available at council offices and libraries, and publish
on the council website
- Give notice to those persons who requested to be notified of the
publication of those recommendations, that the recommendations are
available
Optional measures
- Summarise the contents of the report on website
- Issue press release
- Article in Lambeth Talk.

Regulation
25

Opportunity for those that wished to be
notified of the inspector’s
recommendations to view the
recommendations.

Legal requirements
- Make available on the council website and in council offices and
libraries the plan, adoption statement, SA report, and details of
where the plan is available for inspection
- Send a copy of the adoption statement to those who requested it
- Send a copy of the adoption statement to the Secretary of State
Optional measures
- Place ad in local paper
- Article in Lambeth Talk

Regulation
26

A six-week period of legal challenge
exists from the date at which the plan is
adopted (s113(4) Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act).

Table 1: Consultation methods informing different stages of plan preparation

16

Page 274

Following the hearing
and publication of
modification if
applicable, the inspector
produces a report
determining whether or
not the document is
suitable for adoption.
The report will include
recommendations and
reasons to enable the
plan to be adopted.
Stage 7 Adoption of local
plan

-

Page 275
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Community involvement in preparing Supplementary Planning Documents
2.24

As Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) do not have development plan status they are not
subject to the same process of submission and independent examination. Consultations still play
an effective role in the production of SPDs. The same general methods of engagement may be
used for SPDs as DPD (see above Table 1 – stages 1 and 2). The consultation period will involve at
least one round of engagement with a minimum consultation period of four weeks. Following
consideration of responses and amendments to the SPD as appropriate, the SPD would then be
adopted by the council. In line with Local Planning Regulations, prior to adoption a consultation
statement will be prepared outlining the persons consulted during SPD preparation, a summary
of the main issues raised during the consultation and how those comments have been addressed
in the SPD. An adoption statement will also be prepared and made available to view, together
with the SPD as soon as reasonably practicable following adoption.
Reporting Back

2.25

The council is committed to evaluating the effectiveness of engagement exercises and reporting
back on responses and outcomes of such exercises. Following each stage of engagement activity
the council will:
 give full consideration to the views obtained through engagement exercises, including full
consideration of all representations received and continue further discussions where this
will assist in developing planning policy.
 produce a summary of all responses received with the councils response to points raised
in the representations. This summary document will be published on the council website.
 produce a consultation report evaluating engagement methods used, documenting
targeted groups and overview of key findings and responses.

2.26

In accordance with Regulations 12, 17 and 19 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning)
(England) Regulations 2012 a consultation statement will be published alongside the
development plan document or supplementary planning statement (as applicable). The
statement will set out:





2.27

which bodies and persons were invited to make representation;
how those bodies and persons were invited to make such representations;
summary of the main issues by those representations; and
how those main issues have been addressed in the planning document.

The council also produces annual monitoring information which includes reporting information
on the progress on the implementation of the Local Development Scheme and the extent to
which the policies set out in the Local Development Documents are being achieved. The
monitoring report will be published on the councils website.

17

Page 276
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
3.

CONSULTING OTHERS ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS

3.1

Consultation on planning applications is of great importance especially to the community and
other local stakeholders as development proposals are likely to have the most immediate impact
on people’s environment and day-to-day lives. Figure 2 provides a simplified summary of the
planning application process, with further details provided in this section of the SCI.
Pre-application stage
Community involvement by the developer

3.2

The council encourages (but cannot insist) applicants to engage with the community before
submitting a planning application. The extent of consultation should be proportionate to the
nature and scale of development proposed. For development orders, section 61W of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 (added by the Localism Act 2011) places a legal duty on
developers to consult local communities prior to submitting a planning application. For large scale
development proposals, there is no legal requirement to consult with local communities prior to
submitting a planning application. However the National Planning Policy Framework makes clear
that early engagement has significant potential to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the
planning application system for all parties, and that the more issues that can be resolved at preapplication stage, the greater the benefits. Accordingly and in the spirit of co-operative working,
the council strongly encourages developers to involve the local community from an early stage
prior to submitting an application.

3.3

Early community involvement should help shape and inform what is appropriate for a site and
should therefore be undertaken before proposals are drawn up. Following this further preapplication engagement is encouraged to seek views on the evolving development proposal.
Community involvement at this stage may take a variety of forms such as local exhibitions,
workshops, public meetings, circulation of leaflets, and/or a dedicated website that allows
comments to be made.

3.4

Where developers have engaged with the community prior to submitting an application, the
council will expect a consultation report to be submitted as part of the planning application. The
consultation report should outline the type of community engagement undertaken, the views
expressed by the community and how these views have informed the development proposal.
Where no changes have been made to the proposal the consultation report should explain why
not.

3.5

All planning applications of any scale will benefit (if only through improved processing of the
application) from early engagement and discussion with neighbours and/or others likely to be
affected by the proposed development. The council therefore suggests all applicants enter into
some form of discussion with adjoining landowners, occupiers and/or other local groups as
appropriate.

18

Page 277
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Figure 2: Planning applications process

Pre-application

Community involvement by the developer
Pre-application discussion with the council
Planning Performance Agreements (PPA)

(where appropriate)

Council
notification of
application

Consideration

Decision

Website
Neighbour notification letters to those sharing a boundary with the
development site
Site notice (where required by legislation)
Newspaper advertisement (where required by legislation)
Statutory consultee notification
Registered persons/groups who have expressed an interest
Weekly planning applications list sent to librairies
Library computers to view planning applications online free of charge

Officer site visit
Consultation responses
Member site visit (if appropriate)
Officer report

Officer report with decision or reommendation for Planning
Applications Committee (PAC)
By planning officers under delegated authority or by PAC
Opportunity for those that made comments on the application to
speak at PAC
Notification of decision sent to applicant and adjoining owners or

19

Page 278
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Pre-application discussion with the council
3.6








While the council cannot require developers to engage with the council prior to submitting a
planning application; it is strongly encouraged that applicants and their agents make use of the
pre-application service that the council offers. Pre-application discussions with the council help in
‘testing the waters’ by providing early indications of the council’s view of a scheme. Discussions
are confidential and any advice given is without prejudice to future decisions of the council.
Obtaining pre-application advice provides applicants with the following benefits:
understanding how the council’s policies will be applied to a proposal;
input from the Design and Conservation, Policy, and Transport Planning teams where considered
necessary;
assisting in the preparation of proposals for formal submission, which, if the advice of planning
officers is followed, should be handled more quickly and be more likely to result in a positive
outcome;
helping to reduce the time spent in working up the proposal;
indicating those proposals that are completely unacceptable and helping to improve the quality
of the proposed development.
More information on this service, including fees is available on our website.
Planning Performance Agreements (PPA)

3.7

A PPA is a mechanism which can be entered into in advance of a planning application being
submitted. They are run as a project management framework in which applicants can meet with
the planning service and other interested parties to agree how a scheme will be progressed
through the planning process once submitted. PPAs offer a real opportunity to deliver benefits for
developers, the council and communities in terms of a more efficient use of resources, better and
more transparent engagement and improved outcomes through early and effective dialogue.
More information on PPAs can be found on our website.
The Planning Application Stage

3.8

Notification of planning applications will be publicised to meet statutory requirements (see Table
2). All applications will be advertised on the council’s planning applications database on the
council website. This database allows users to search and view all planning applications, both
current and past. Anyone can subscribe for email alerts of planning applications for locations that
would be of interest to them. All development, but excluding minor development proposals will
be advertised in the Lambeth Weekender, a fortnightly paper. If required, applications may be
advertised in the South London Press, a bi-weekly local paper covering the boroughs of Lambeth,
Wandsworth, Southwark, Lewisham, Merton and Greenwich.

3.9

The council will send neighbour notification letters to neighbours sharing a boundary with the
development site, for all types of development listed in Table 2. Where required by legislation,
the council will erect at least one site notice in a prominent location of the proposed
development. Where legislation does not require the council to erect a site notice, the council
20

Page 279
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
may ask developers to put up a site notice(s). In these circumstances and where the applicant
agrees to erect a site notice, the council will provide a copy of the site notice. Information on site
notices will be as clear and engaging as possible (while meeting statutory requirements), this may
include larger font size to attract attention.
Table 2: Statutory consultation requirements for planning applications
Type of development
Applications for major
development as defined in Article
2 of the Development
Management Procedure Order
Applications subject to EIA which
are accompanied by an
environmental statement
Applications which do not accord
with the development plan in force
in the area
Applications which would affect a
right of way to which Part 3a of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
applies
Applications for planning
permission not covered in the
entries above eg non-major
development
Applications for listed building
consent where works to the
exterior of the building are
proposed
Applications to vary or discharge
conditions attached to a listed
building consent, or conservation
area consent, or involving exterior
works to a listed building.

Site notice

Site notice or
neighbour
notification letter
X

Newspaper
advertisements

Website

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Who the council will engage
3.10

The council will consult statutory consultees where required by legislation (see Appendix 4 for
statutory consultees and instances where they need to be consulted). The council will also reach
out to other consultees who are likely to have an interest in the proposed development. Where
appropriate this may include neighbours, local amenity groups, specific interest groups, other
non-statutory organisations, and those that have registered to be notified about applications in
their area or any other part of the borough they are interested in.
Anyone can respond to a planning consultation regardless of whether they were specifically
consulted or not.
Consultation period

3.11

The time period for making comments on planning applications will normally be 21 days but there
may be occasions where a shorter period is set. Some statutory bodies may be allowed a longer
21

Page 280
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
period of time to comment on applications, where this is prescribed by legislation. All forms of
notification and engagement will clearly state the closing date by which comments need to be
received by the council. Once the consultation period has concluded the council proceeds to
determine the planning application. To ensure comments are taken into account it is important to
make comments before the statutory deadline. If consultees require more time to comment, they
should contact the planning case officer to see if a late submission would be acceptable.
Methods of notification
3.11









Where sent, neighbour notification letters will contain additional information on the planning
application and consultation process to help keep people informed. The letter will:
advise neighbours of the application
advise how to view the application and how they can comment on the application
advise who else has been sent the neighbour notification letter
encourage electronic comments by email or via the planning applications database on the council
website
advise that only electronic comments will receive acknowledgment
encourage sign-up to the tracker function on the planning applications database for alerts on
progress, including committee meeting date and decision
advise that the decision will be published online via the planning applications database.
make clear it will be the responsibility of the neighbour/interested party to keep themselves
updated on the progress of the planning application via the planning applications database on the
Lambeth website.

3.12

Libraries will be emailed the weekly planning application list which should be printed and
displayed in the library. Applications can be viewed on the council website for free on the library
computers. Applications (or part thereof) can be printed from the website at the library at the
users own cost.

3.13

Specific and other consultees (for example local amenity groups, specific interest groups, other
non-statutory organisations and those that have registered to receive alerts on planning
applications) will be sent email notification where the council holds a valid email address.
Excluding statutory consultees, where the council does not hold a valid email address for
recipients, letters will not be posted. Non-statutory groups are encouraged to provide the council
with an email address.
Other methods listed in section 1 of this report may be used as appropriate by the council and/or
developers.
Comments received

3.13

Comments must be made in writing. Verbal comments are not accepted or considered. While
comments received electronically via the website or email are preferred; letters are also
accepted. Comments received electronically will automatically receive an acknowledgement
response and comments will be automatically uploaded to the relevant planning application onto
22

Page 281
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
the planning applications database on our website. The automatic response will also advise
consultee responders that the decision will be made available online. Consultee responders can
be alerted to updates on planning applications (eg committee meeting, decision notice) by using
the tracker function on the planning applications database.
3.14

Comments received by post will not receive an acknowledgement letter or be available for
viewing on the website. However the nature of comments (ie support, neutral, or object) will be
recorded on the website.

3.15

The council does not accept anonymous or confidential comments related to planning
applications, and any anonymous or confidential comments received will not be considered when
evaluating the application. Under the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, your
comments, including your name and address are open to inspection by the public, and in the
event of an appeal may be referred to the Secretary of State.
Amended applications

3.16

Where an application has been amended the council will decide whether further publicity and
consultation is necessary, taking into account the public interest in the initial application and the
nature and scale of the amendment relative to the initial application. Where re-consultation is
necessary, the council will set a timeframe for responses, balancing the need for consultees to be
given time to consider the issue that is being re-consulted upon and respond against the need for
efficient decision making. The consultation timeframe can vary from 10 days to three weeks
depending on the nature and scale of the amendment and application.
How a decision is made on planning applications

3.17

In evaluating planning applications the case officer and/or elected councillors take into account
all engagement activities and responses received. Decisions on applications are made by either
planning officers under delegated powers, or by the Planning Applications Committee (PAC). This
is largely based on the scale and type of application and is set out in the PAC terms of reference
which are approved by full council and can be found in the council’s constitution. Under
delegated powers, senior planning officers have authority to make decisions to grant or refuse
planning permission. These decisions mostly relate to smaller-scale proposals such as alterations
to buildings, small extensions to property, conversions or straightforward changes of use, but can
include large-scale applications.

3.18

Applications to be determined by the Planning Applications Committee:
(1)

Applications, other than applications made under S73 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990, which are recommended for approval where the application
falls within one of the following:
(i)

The provision of dwelling houses where –

a)

The number of dwelling houses to be provided is 10 or more; or
23

Page 282
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
b)

The development is to be carried out on a site having an area of 0.5 hectare or
more.

(ii) The provision of a building or buildings where the floor space to be created
including changes of use, by the development is 1,000 square metres or more;
or
(iii) Development carried out on a site having an area of 1 hectare or more.
(2)

Applications which are recommended for approval where an objection to the
current proposal has been received which is based on material planning grounds,
other than those applications where, in the opinion of the Delivery Director –
Business, Growth & Regeneration and Assistant Director of Planning and
Development:
I.

The objection can be overcome by the imposition of an appropriate
condition, and/or

II.

Where the application clearly complies with the relevant condition,
and/or

III.

Where the application clearly complies with the relevant planning
policies in which case the decision may be taken by officers.

(3)

Applications which the Delivery Director – Business, Growth & Regeneration or
Assistant Director of Planning and Development wishes to refer to the committee.

(4)

Any application where a specific written request is made by any Member of the
Council for the case to be reported to the Committee, where in the opinion of the
Chair (in consultation with the Assistant Director of Planning and Development)
there is a material planning reason for doing so.

(5)

Applications made by the Council for development of land in its ownership that the
Council intends to dispose of to a third party.

(6)

Applications which have been submitted by or on behalf of a Member of the
Council (or by their spouse or partner) or by a member of the Council’s staff (or by
their spouse or partner).

(7)

Applications for the total or substantial demolition of a listed building.

(8)

Applications recommended for approval where it is proposed to grant permission
for a change of use to Class A5 (Hot Foot Takeaways), set out in the Town and
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987.

(9)

Applications which are recommended for approval where it is proposed to grant
permission for a proposal which is a significant departure from the policies of the
Council's UDP.

24

Page 283
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
(10)

To authorise, release or modify agreements and undertakings under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, Section 16 of the GLC (General Powers)
Act 1974, Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 and Section 33 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 which in the opinion of
the Delivery Director - Business, Growth & Regeneration or the Assistant Director
of Planning and Development relate to developments which come within paragraph
1 above, but only when a written request is made by a member of the committee
or ward member, and where such request is agreed by the Chair of the committee
(in consultation with the Assistant Director of Planning and Development) that
there is a material planning reason for doing so.

3.19

The PAC is open to the public and meets every two to three weeks. This is how applications for
major or controversial developments are decided. Elected Councillors decide whether to grant or
refuse planning permission for these applications, taking into account comments received on the
application. Members of the public can speak at the meeting either in favour or in opposition to
an application, but, to do so, they must contact Lambeth Democratic Services in advance of the
meeting to register their intention to speak to the committee. More information on PAC,
including membership, can be found on our website.

3.20

Agendas, minutes and reports for the PAC are made available on the council website five working
days before an upcoming committee and the minutes are published online within five working
days of agreement at a subsequent committee.

3.21

Once a decision is made, a decision letter is sent by email (or letter if email is not possible) to the
applicant and to adjoining owners or occupiers who made representations on the application.
The decision is also posted on the website.
Prior approvals

3.22

The council will consult adjoining neighbours as required by Regulations for all prior approvals.
Up-to-date guidance on prior approvals, including neighbour notifications can be found on the
planning portal website: www.planningportal.gov.uk
Appeals

3.23

If an application is refused or not determined within statutory timeframes, the applicant may
exercise their right to appeal. When the council is notified of an appeal by the Planning
Inspectorate the council will notify interested parties of the appeal and provide a copy of
comments made on the application to the Inspectorate. Interested parties will be advised on how
they can participate in the appeal process, including venue and time of any informal hearing or
public inquiry.

25

Page 284
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Appendix 1: Consultation Bodies and Duty to Cooperate
Specific Consultation Bodies
The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 define
the following bodies as ‘specific consultation bodies’:
• Adjoining Local Planning Authorities
• The Coal Authority

• Relevant telecommunications companies
• Lambeth and Southwark NHS
• Strategic Health Authority
• Relevant electricity and gas companies
• Thames Water
• The Mayor of London (including the designated housing
function and TfL)

• The Environment Agency*
• English Heritage (Historic Buildings and Monuments
Commission for England)*
• Marine Management Organisation
• Natural England*
• Network Rail Infrastructure Limited
• The Highways Agency

*The council will also consult as a minimum these bodies on Sustainability Appraisals.
General Consultation Bodies
The Government has defined General Consultation Bodies as voluntary bodies some or all of whose
activities benefit any part of the authority’s area and other bodies who represent, in the authority’s area,
the interests of different racial, ethnic or national groups, different religious groups, disabled persons,
and business interests.
The Lambeth Planning Policy database contains over 2,500 groups, organisations and companies from the
following categories:
• Other boroughs
• Advice and information groups
• Amenity groups
 Architects, planners and other professionals
• Black and Minority Ethnic Groups
• Builders
• Community groups
• Conservation and heritage groups
• Developers
• Disability groups
• Education/children/young people’s groups
• Elderly groups
• Employment/business interests
• Environmental and ecology groups
• Faith groups
• Health organisations including NHS Trusts
• House builders

• Housing associations
• Landowners
• Police and other emergency services
• Political parties
• Regeneration groups and partnerships
• Rivers and riverside interest groups
• Shopkeepers
• Sport and leisure groups
• Statutory consultees
• Tenants and residents associations
• Town centre partnerships
• Transport groups
• Utility companies
• Women’s groups
• Youth Groups

Duty to cooperate bodies:
 Environment Agency;
 Historic Buildings and Monuments Commission for England
(known as English Heritage);
 Natural England;
 Mayor of London;
 Civil Aviation Authority;
 Homes and Communities Agency;
 each Primary Care Trust established under section 18 of the
National Health Service Act 2006 or continued in existence by
virtue of that section;
 Office of Rail Regulation;

26

 Transport for London;
 each Integrated Transport Authority;
 each highway authority within the meaning of section 1 of the
Highways Act 1980 (including the Secretary of State, where the
Secretary of State is the highways authority); and
 Marine Management Organisation.
 neighbouring local authorities plus any other LAs who are affected
by anything in our plan
 each local enterprise partnership
 each local nature partnership

Page 285
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Appendix 2
Engagement methods for different stakeholder groups
Stakeholder group
General public

Consultation and engagement methods that may be used









Lambeth local forums, community groups and
networks, including ‘equalities groups’ (black and
minority ethnic, faith, disability, young people
and older persons groups)














Tenants’ and residents’ associations














Businesses and business networks










Online information and questionnaire on LBL website and
www.lambethtalks.org
Press releases and adverts
Articles in council publications, including Enterprise
Enewsletter, Lambeth Weekender, Lambeth Talk
Summary leaflets at public buildings, including libraries and
town hall
Staffed drop in sessions
Exhibition at Phoenix House and Lambeth Town Hall
Email updates to Lambeth Regeneration mailing list
Twitter @LambethRegen and @Lambeth_council and
council’s facebook page
Virtual citizen and/or expert panel
Consultation mailout, including summary leaflets and
questionnaires
Written responses
Stakeholder workshops
‘Mole’ events – attending public meetings
Press releases and adverts
Articles in council publications, including Enterprise
Enewsletter, Lambeth Weekender, Lambeth Talk
Summary leaflets at public buildings, including libraries and
town hall
Staffed drop-in sessions
Exhibition at Phoenix House and Lambeth Town Hall
Email updates to Lambeth Regeneration mailing list
Twitter @LambethRegen and @Lambeth_council and
council’s facebook page
Virtual citizen and/or expert panel
Consultation mailout, including summary leaflets and
questionnaires
Written responses
Stakeholder workshops
‘Mole’ events – attending public meetings
Press releases and adverts
Articles in council publications, including Enterprise
Enewsletter, Lambeth Weekender, Lambeth Talk
Summary leaflets at public buildings, including libraries and
town hall
Staffed drop-in sessions
Exhibition at Phoenix House and Lambeth Town Hall
Email updates to Lambeth Regeneration mailing list
Twitter @LambethRegen and @Lambeth_council and
council’s facebook page
Virtual citizen and/or expert panel
Consultation mailout, including summary leaflets and
questionnaires
Written responses
Stakeholder workshops
‘Mole’ events – attending public meetings
Press releases and adverts
Articles in council publications, including Enterprise
Enewsletter, Lambeth Weekender, Lambeth Talk
Summary leaflets at public buildings, including libraries and

27

Page 286
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Stakeholder group

Consultation and engagement methods that may be used







town hall
Staffed drop-in sessions
Exhibition at Phoenix House and Lambeth Town Hall
Email updates to Lambeth Regeneration mailing list
Twitter @LambethRegen and @Lambeth_council and
council’s facebook page
Virtual citizen and/or expert panel
Workshop
Written responses
Individual meetings
Virtual citizen and/or expert panel

Neighbouring boroughs and other local
authorities affected by Lambeth’s planning
policies






Individual and group meetings
Association of London Borough Planning Officers meetings
Regional Technical Advisory Body (waste)
Written responses

Infrastructure and service providers



Written response (as specific consultation bodies)

Politicians:







Planning and Development Cabinet Advisory Panel
Cabinet Member Briefings
Ward member briefings
Enews+
Consultation mailout






Strategic Leadership Board meetings
Departmental Leadership Team meetings
Divisional Leadership Team meetings
Planning service team meetings




Officer level meetings
Written response






Developers, including registered providers of
social housing


Cabinet members

Ward councillors

GLA members

Members of Parliament
Lambeth Council officers:



Senior officers in Lambeth Council
Planning Regeneration and Enterprise
Division
Greater London Authority

28

Page 287
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Appendix 3 – Consulting your community
Things to consider to ensure your consultation is accessible:

















Building that is compliant to meet needs of those with disabilities i.e., with lift, ramps and disabled toilet
Time of meeting i.e., for those that have medication and hospital appointment, also for those with caring
responsibilities and children that will need to leave at certain time to collect or be at home for their arrival
Signers for those who are deaf or have hearing loss
Induction loops
Accessible location that has good transport links
Ensure that the building is located in a well lit area if consultation will be taking place at night
Parking for disabled
Consider whether you can pay for taxis for those with a real need
If providing refreshments check dietary needs.
Always provide water
Handouts and presentations in plain English and alternative formats. Ensure presentation slides do not
have complicated backgrounds for those with visual impairments and dyslexia
Use plain simple English language particularly when providing information about issues.
Provide translated documents on request
Provide documents are available in other formats such as Audiotape and CD’s on request
Communicate consultation as widely as possible and ensure that consultation is advertised in specialist
press targeted at groups concerns
Consider whether it is possible to reimburse carer/childcare cost for those with children or who are carers
for older or disabled people

Always use appropriate and varied of methods of consultation:

















Written Consultation
Open Public Meetings
Conferences
Open days
Representative Groups
Face to Face Interviews
Focus Groups
User Panels
Resident Panels
Local Business Panels
Questionnaire Surveys (paper copies should always be available in paper even its an online survey). These
could include a response pro-forma, with constructed questions to structure consultation responses and
include a section for general comments. This will assist consultees and promote the type of information
that is being sought.
IT Based Consultation
Consultation via social media
Through 3rd sector organisations
Outreach such as door knocking, meeting at a youth club etc.

29

Page 288
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Useful links
The link below provides guidance on different ways to consult. It also informs when a particular method is more
appropriate and considers the pro’s and con’s and potential cost of each method.
http://www.idea.gov.uk/idk/search/system-search.do
The link below provide guidance on practical ways to engage your community
http://www.local.gov.uk/web/guest/localism-act/-/journal_content/56/10171/3510950/ARTICLETEMPLATE#contents-5

30

Page 289
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Appendix 4 – Statutory and non-statutory consultees on applications for planning permission and
heritage applications.
Table A below lists the statutory consultation requirements for applications for planning permission and
for heritage applications as set out in the National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) website. Additional
consultation requirements may be set out elsewhere (for example where Environmental Impact
Assessment is relevant). Table B identifies the non-statutory consultees for different types of
development.
Table A: Statutory consultees for different types of development as set out in NPPG
Statutory consultee

Type of Development

The Canals and Rivers Trust

Certain types of development likely to affect canals or nearby areas. Schedule 5 (zb) of the Development
Management Procedure Order

Coal Authority

Certain types of development in areas where the Coal Authority has notified to the local planning authority
that it is an area of coal working, and for minerals exploration on land that has been identified as containing
coal. Article 24, and Schedule 5 (k) of, the Development Management Procedure Order

Crown Estates
Commissioners

Certain minerals planning applications where the Crown Estates Commissioners have given notice to that land
in their area contains silver or gold. Article 24 of Development Management Procedure Order

Department for Culture,
Media and Sport

Developments within 3 kilometres of Windsor Castle, Windsor Great Park, or Windsor Home Park, or within
800 metres of any other Royal Palace or Park. Schedule 5 (m) of the Development Management Procedure
Order

Department of Energy and
Climate Change

Mineral developments where the Department for Energy and Climate Change have given notice to the local
planning authority that the land in their area contains gas or oil. Article 24 of the Development Management
Procedure Order

Department for
Environment Food and Rural
Affairs

Certain Minerals and waste developments. In practice Natural England responds to such consultations on
behalf of the Department for Environment Food and Rural Affairs. Paragraph 4 of Schedule 5 of the Town
Planning Act 1990

Department for Transport
(Administered in practice by
theHighways Agency)

New Development likely to result in a material increase in the volume or a material change in the character of
traffic entering or leaving a trunk road. Schedule 5 (f) of the Development Management Procedure Order

Environment Agency

The Environment Agency are a statutory consultee to Local planning authorities for several types of planning
application related to its statutory duties on flood risk, protection of land and water quality, mining
operations, waste regulation and fisheries. Schedule 5 of the Development Management Procedure
Order. Guidance on what types of planning consultations to consult the Environment Agency on is
available here.

English Heritage

A full list of the instances where English Heritage is to be consulted on planning, listed building and
conservation area consents is set out in the guidance on conserving and enhancing the historic environment.

Forestry Commission

Statutory requirement under paragraph 4 of Schedule 5 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 or
mineral operators to consult the forestry commission if the proposed form of post-extraction restoration is
for forestry.

Garden History Society

A full list of the instances where Garden History Society is to be consulted on both planning and heritage
consents is set out in the guidance on conserving and enhancing the historic environment.

Health and Safety Executive

The Health and Safety Executive issues consultation zones to the local planning authority and should be
consulted on certain developments in the vicinity to major accident hazards. See also the guidance
on Hazardous Substances. The Health and Safety Executive have developed PADHI+ (Planning Advice for
Developments near Hazardous Installations – an internet based standing advice tool for Local Planning
Authorities), for consultation on such planning applications. Schedule 5 (e) and (zc) of the Development
Management Procedure Order

Highways Agency

Developments likely to affect the strategic road network, and certain other highway matters. Various
Provisions in Schedule 5 and Article 26 of the Development Management Procedure Order

31

Page 290
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Local Planning Authorities.

The adjoining local planning authority will usually need to be consulted where an application is likely to have
an impact on a neighbouring area. Source: Various Provisions in Schedule 5 of the Development Management
Procedure Order. Where there is a County Council, the district council is required to consult the county
council in certain cases and may not decide the application for 21 days or the county council has responded (if
earlier). Where the authority considering the planning application is a National Parks Authority they are
required to consult with the district council for the area. The Mayor of London Order 2008 sets out
consultation requirements with the Greater London Authority.

Local Highway Authority

The Local Highway Authority will need to be consulted where the proposed development will either involve a
new access to the highway network, or an increase or change in traffic movements. Source: Various
provisions in Schedule 5 of the Development Management Procedure Order.

County Planning Authorities

Specific requirements exist for consultation with County Planning Authorities, reflecting their responsibilities
as planning authorities for certain specific matters. Source: Paragraph 7 of Schedule 1 to the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 and the Development Management Procedure Order.

The Greater London
Authority

The Mayor of London is consulted on and involved in the determination of planning applications within
London that area considered to be of potential strategic importance. Source: The Mayor of London Order
2008 (as amended).

Natural England

Certain developments affecting Sites of Special Scientific Interest, involving the loss of best and most versatile
agricultural land, or in an area of particular natural sensitivity or interest which appears to be affected by
development that could have significant implications for major accident hazards. Natural England must also
be consulted on development (including permitted development) likely to have a significant effect on a
European (wildlife) Site in England or European Offshore Marine Site under the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2010(as amended). A full list of instances when to consult Natural England can be
found here. Natural England is authorised by Part 8 of its agreement under S78 of the Natural Environment
and Rural Communities Act 2006 to fulfil the statutory role on behalf of the Defra Secretary of State
under Schedule 5, Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) for consultations to determine whether
an agricultural after use is appropriate and on restoration proposals and aftercare conditions in relation to
Minerals and Waste development.

National Parks authorities

Specific requirements exist for consultation with National Parks authorities in relation to development likely
to affect land in a National Park Source: Schedule 5(a) of the Development Management Procedure Order

Parish Councils

Whilst Parish Councils are not statutory consultees, they do have a role as a consultee in the planning
application process.

Rail Network Operators

Development likely to result in a material increase in the amount of traffic using a level crossing over a
railway. Source: Schedule 5 (f) to the Development Management Procedure Order.

Sport England

Planning applications where the development is likely to affect the use of land as playing fields. Schedule 5
(za) to the Development Management Procedure Order.

Theatres Trust

Development involving any land on which there is a theatre. Schedule 5 (w) to the Development Management
Procedure Order.

Toll Road Concessionaries

Development involving the formation, laying out or alteration of any means of access to a highway (other
than a trunk road) or the construction of a highway or private means of access to premises affording access to
a road in relation to which a toll order is in force. Schedule 5 (i) to the Development Management Procedure
Order.

32

Page 291
Appendix 1 – Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement
January 2015
Table B – Non-statutory consultees for different types of development as identified in national planning policy or
guidance
Non statutory consultee

Type of development

Emergency Services and MultiAgency Emergency Planning

See the guidance on Flooding and Coastal on NPPG website.

Forestry Commission

See guidance on the Natural Environment on NPPG website.

Health and Safety Executive

See the deciding planning applications around hazardous installations guidance on
NPPG website.
See para 36 of the Planning practice guidance for onshore oil and gas.

Ministry of Defence

See guidance for renewable and low carbon energy on NPPG website.

Office of Nuclear Regulation

See the deciding planning applications around hazardous installations guidance on
NPPG website.

Police and Crime Commissioners

See the guidance on design on NPPG website.

Rail Network Operators

See the guidance on transport on NPPG website.

Sport England

See guidance on Local Green Space Designation on NPPG website.

33

This page is intentionally left blank

Equality Impact Assessment
Report

Please enter responses below in the right hand columns

December 2014
Date
Sign-off path for EIA (please add/delete as applicable)

Author

Vanessa Rodgers

Job title, division and department

Senior Planner

Contact email and telephone

VRodgers@lambeth.gov.uk
0207 926 1249
David Joyce with delegated authority from Mike Pocock

Strategic Director Sponsor

Page 293

Title of Project, business area, policy/strategy

Cluster management team (e.g. CLT, DLT, ELT)
Procurement Board,
Outcome Panel
Corporate EIA Panel
Cabinet
Full Council
Revised draft Statement of Community Involvement

1

London Borough of Lambeth
Full Equality Impact
Assessment Report

Please enter responses below in the right hand columns.

1.0 Introduction

Page 294

1.1 Business activity aims and
The council is required by law under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 to
intentions
have a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI). An SCI sets out how and when
In brief explain the aims of your
stakeholders will be involved in development plan preparation and consulted on planning
proposal/project/service, why is it
applications. The current SCI was prepared in 2007 and adopted by the council in April
needed? Who is it aimed at? What is the 2008. It is now out-of-date due to changes in planning legislation. It also needs to be
intended outcome? What are the links updated to reflect the outcomes based budgeting savings targets, the council’s coto the political vision, and outcomes?
operative working practices and the more widespread use of new technology and the
internet for consultations.
As part of the outcome based budgetary savings requirement P&D Services agreed
savings of £150,000 implemented in 2014/15. Following the HJI Outcomes Panel/October
budget challenge, a further £70,000 savings were agreed for 2015/16 and £50,000 for
2016/17. It has already been agreed that this in part will be realised through changes in
the way we consult on planning applications and planning policy documents. Accordingly
continuation of how we currently consult is not an option but rather smarter ways of
working and engaging with the community and developers will be necessary to meet the
council’s co-operative working principles while minimising costs to the council.
Many of the consultation measures currently employed by the council exceed statutory
requirements and measures employed by other London boroughs. These come with
associated costs and therefore continued use of such non-statutory measures may not be
appropriate in the revised SCI.

2

2.0 Analysing your equalities evidence
2.1 Evidence
Any proposed business activity, new policy or strategy, service change, or procurement must be informed by carrying out an
assessment of the likely impact that it may have. In this section please include both data and analysis which shows that you
understand how this decision is likely to affect residents that fall under the protected characteristics enshrined in law and the local
characteristics which we consider to be important in Lambeth (language, health and socio-economic factors). Please check the
council's equality and monitoring policy and your division’s self assessment. Each division in 2012 reviewed its equality data and
completed a self assessment about what equality data is relevant and available.
Protected characteristics and local
equality characteristics

Page 295

Race

Impact analysis
For each characteristic please indicate the type of impact (i.e. positive, negative,
positive and negative, none, or unknown), and:
Please explain how you justify your claims around impacts.
Please include any data and evidence that you have collected including from surveys,
performance data or complaints to support your proposed changes.
Please indicate sources of data and the date it relates to/was produced (e.g. ‘Residents
Survey, wave 10, April 12‘ or ‘Lambeth Business Survey 2012’ etc)
Positive
Lambeth is an extremely ethnically diverse borough. The proportion of white British people has
decreased from 50% to 39% in the last 10 years (Census 2011). Lambeth’s largest non-white
ethnic group is Black African (11.8%), followed by Black Caribbean (10.1%). Lambeth has the third
largest proportion of Black Caribbean people in London (10.1%) after Lewisham (13.8%) and
Croydon (10.6%). Only 3.6% of Lambeth residents are from South Asian backgrounds much less
than the inner London average (10.6%), and 3.1% of Lambeth’s population are Chinese or from
other Asian groups, compared to 4.5% of Inner London. The borough has the second highest
proportion of black Caribbean people in the country and has the highest proportion of people
identifying themselves as Other Black in the country (Census 2011).The borough also has sizeable
Portuguese, Polish and Vietnamese communities.

3

Revised SCI proposals
The planning policy database contains more than 2600 contacts who have expressed an interest
in being notified on planning policy communications. Of these 85 have been specifically identified
as black, Asian and minority ethnic (BME) groups with several other contacts representing various
refugee groups. These groups receive notifications about planning policy consultations. Where
appropriate, the policy team offers to attend existing meetings or events of the group to explain
the consultation and seek views and response. Provision of this remains in the revised SCI.
In the most recent planning policy consultation on the draft Lambeth Local Plan in 2013, white
British people were very overrepresented in the responses, while BME groups were
underrepresented. The revised SCI seeks to redress this by use of focus groups to help engage
groups that do not usually respond to planning related consultations.

Page 296

Gender

None of the methods of engagement activity proposed in the revised SCI are expected to
negatively impact on ethnic groups and their ability to participate in planning consultations. The
SCI provides a sufficient range of consultation methods to ensure people know about the
preparation of planning policy documents and can decide whether they want to participate.
Positive
In 49% of Lambeth residents are male, and 51% are female.
It has been estimated that there are 20 transgender people per 100,000 people in UK, which
suggests roughly 50-60 people in Lambeth. Locally, of 24,800 Lambeth Living tenants, 28 (0.1%)
are transgender (Lambeth equality and monitoring policy 2012).
Revised SCI proposals
The planning policy database contains more than 2600 contacts of which many represent
women’s groups, and dads and parents groups, for example the Womens National Commission,
Clapham Park Mens Health Project, Lambeth’s Womens Aid, Dad’s and Littleuns Playgroup.
None of the methods of engagement activity proposed in the revised SCI are expected to
negatively impact on either males or females and their ability to participate in planning
consultations. The SCI provides a sufficient range of consultation methods to ensure people know
about the preparation of planning policy documents and can decide whether they want to
participate.
4

Gender re-assignment

Positive
Overall not much is known about gender reassignment group in the Borough. It has been
estimated that there are 20 transgender people per 100,000 people in UK, which suggests roughly
50-60 transgendered people in Lambeth. There is not much local information – data from
Lambeth Living (the largest housing ALMO in Lambeth) indicates that of their 24,800 tenants, 28
(0.1%) are transgender. (Lambeth equality and monitoring policy 2012).
Revised SCI proposals
The planning policy database includes at least one transgender group and also many other groups
representing the health sector of which some may have contacts or outreach groups to
transgender individuals.

Disability

Page 297

None of the methods of engagement activity proposed in the revised SCI are expected to
negatively impact on transgender peoples and their ability to participate in planning
consultations. The SCI provides a sufficient range of consultation methods to ensure people know
about the preparation of planning policy documents and can decide whether they want to
participate.

Positive
There are approximately 17,000 moderately or severely disabled people of working age in
Lambeth and around 33,000 with a common mental disorder. This represents 6.4% of the working
age population, in line with the London average (7%). In November 2011, 12,870 Lambeth
residents were in receipt of Disability Living Allowance.
Revised SCI proposals
The planning policy database contains details of at least 15 groups working with or representing
disabled people. A number of other groups on the database are classified as within the health
sector that may also work with and represent those with disabilities. In addition the revised SCI
makes clear that any public meeting, focus group, exhibition etc should be at an accessible venue
compliant to needs of those with disabilities, including induction loops wherever possible.
Written documents will be available on audiotape or large print where requested.
In the most recent planning policy consultation on the draft Lambeth Local Plan in 2013,
5

responses received from those identified as having a long-term illness or disability were fairly
representative for Lambeth.
None of the methods of engagement activity proposed in the revised SCI are expected to
negatively impact on those with disabilities and their ability to participate in planning
consultations. Where difficulties could arise, measures are included to mitigate impacts, for
example, meetings held at accessible locations, availability of documents on audiotape or large
font where requested.

Age

Positive
The age breakdown for Lambeth (according to Census 2011) is as follows:
Under 20 years: 21.8%
20 – 44 years: 51.8%
45 - 59 years: 15.8%
60+ years: 10.6%

Page 298






Revised SCI proposals
The planning policy database contains details of several groups that work with young and older
persons. Fifty four groups have been identified as young persons groups; the database also
includes schools in the borough, day centres and nurseries. In terms of older persons groups,
there are a number of different groups catering for older persons and/or their interests, for
example various care providers and nursing homes.
All of these groups will be notified of planning policy consultations, and where possible the
council will ‘piggy back’ at meetings of these groups to discuss policy proposals.
None of the methods of engagement activity proposed in the revised SCI are expected to
negatively impact on people or their ability to participate in planning consultations because of
their age. The SCI provides a sufficient range of consultation methods to ensure people know
about the preparation of planning policy documents so they can decide whether they want to
participate. Use of social media will hopefully encourage more younger people to get involved
planning consultations. In the past there have been perceptions that older people do not use
electronic communication tools, however the number of older people who are familiar with
6

electronic communications and using it on a regular basis continues to increase steadily year on
year. Physical copies of planning policy documents will be available to view at the Town Hall,
Phoenix House and all libraries in the borough. Physical copies of planning applications will no
longer be provided in the libraries, however, these are viewable free of charge on the library
computers, and help can be sought from librarians in using the internet.

Sexual orientation

Positive
There is only a limited amount of information on sexual orientation available. Recent health
estimates suggest that Lambeth has one of the largest populations of men who have sex with
men (MSM) in the UK. MSM accounts for up to 15% of the male population, nearly three times
the London average of 5.3%. Around 4% of people identify as being lesbian, gay or bisexual on our
residents’ survey and there are a number of thriving LBG venues in and around Vauxhall.

Page 299

Revised SCI proposals
The planning policy database contains a number of groups covering lesbian, gay and bisexual
peoples and health.
None of the methods of engagement activity proposed in the revised SCI are expected to
negatively impact on people of different sexual orientations and their ability to participate in
planning consultations. The SCI provides a sufficient range of consultation methods to ensure
people know about the preparation of planning policy documents so they can decide whether
they want to participate.

Religion and belief

Positive
Over half of the population of Lambeth are Christian (56%) (which is close to the London
population (58%)), 5% are Muslim (compared to 13% in London) 2% Buddhist, 1% Hindu. 4% of
the population are from any other religion while 30% say they follow no religion at all which is
much higher than the 19% of the general London population.
Muslim residents are likely to be younger, more ethnically diverse and less economically active
than the population as a whole. They are more likely to have a main language that is not English.
Muslim residents are more likely to prefer accessing council services in person, which may reflect
lower confidence with written English and therefore on-line services (Customer survey 2012).
7

Christian residents are more likely to be older, more settled residents, often in social housing,
although there are also substantial smaller groups from, for example, Poland, Africa and Portugal
who are younger and less settled. Services for older people could be targeted at Christians
through churches and faith networks, including support and to encourage accessing services online (Customer survey 2012).
Revised SCI proposals
The planning policy database contains details of more than 200 faith groups in the borough and
all of these groups will be notified on planning policy consultations.

Pregnancy and maternity

Page 300

None of the methods of engagement activity proposed in the revised SCI are expected to
negatively impact on people of different faiths or on their ability to participate in planning
consultations. The SCI provides a sufficient range of consultation methods to ensure people know
about the preparation of planning policy documents so they can decide whether they want to
participate.

Positive
There is a gap in data on number of pregnant women and those on maternity in the Borough.
Revised SCI proposals
The planning policy database contains more than 2600 contacts (individuals, groups and
organisations) of which many represent health groups which would work with mothers and
mothers-to-be. The Young Parents Support Group is one such group on the policy database.
None of the methods of engagement activity proposed in the revised SCI are expected to
negatively impact on mothers or mothers-to-be or on their ability to participate in planning
consultations. The SCI provides a sufficient range of consultation methods to ensure people know
about the preparation of planning policy documents so they can decide whether they want to
participate. There will be consideration around breastfeeding and baby changing venues, and
meetings at reasonable times for mothers / fathers / carers.

Marriage and civil partnership

Positive
8

According to official returns from the Lambeth Register Office, between 600 and 800 marriages
and under 100 civil partnerships are undertaken in the borough each year (in 2011, 641 marriages
and 79 civil partnerships were conducted). This is in line with other similar boroughs like
Southwark and Lewisham.
Revised SCI proposals
The planning policy database contains more than 2600 contacts, and this will include many
people who are married or in a civil partnership.
None of the methods of engagement activity proposed in the revised SCI are expected to
negatively impact on married people or those in a civil partnership or on their ability to
participate in planning consultations. The SCI provides a sufficient range of consultation methods
to ensure people know about the preparation of planning policy documents so they can decide
whether they want to participate.

Positive

Page 301

Socio-economic factors

Lambeth is a very diverse Borough ethnically, culturally, socially and economically and this
diversity is constantly evolving. It is among the most densely populated local authorities in
England, with over 11,300 people per km2. Lambeth's population is 303,100, which makes it the
third largest population in inner London, after Newham (308,000) and Wandsworth (307,000)
(Census 2011). The socio-economic profile of the area is mixed, with areas of affluence and
deprivation in close proximity. The borough is the 14th most deprived district in England,
comparable with Southwark, Lewisham and Haringey, but less deprived than the most deprived
London boroughs of Newham, Tower Hamlets and Hackney. The most deprived areas are spread
throughout the borough but are particularly concentrated in Coldharbour ward, in Brixton, and in
the Crown Lane area of Knights Hill ward, in the south of the Borough.
One in three children attending Lambeth schools is eligible for free school meals (35.5% for
primary and 31.5% for secondary). This is comparable with inner London (34.4% and 36%
respectively) but higher than London (25% and 23.4%)
Unemployment is a major barrier to economic prosperity. 82% of Lambeth residents are
economically active, which is one of the highest borough rates in London (compared with 75%
across London).
9

Overall, Lambeth has a highly qualified workforce – nearly 55% have degree level qualifications,
compared to 42% in London overall. In London, only Wandsworth has substantially higher
qualification levels (64%). 9.4% of Lambeth residents have no qualifications, in line with London
(9.9%), substantially below the highest rates (e.g. 17% in Barking and Dagenham).
Perhaps reflecting Lambeth’s central location, 60% of Lambeth working residents are managers
and senior officials or work in professional, associate professional and technical occupations,
compared to 54% in London overall. This is the 8th highest out of the 32 London boroughs.

Language

Page 302

Revised SCI proposals
Some people in the borough may not have access to a computer or the internet, however; the
council provides free computer access at all Lambeth libraries and there is no fee to join the
libraries. In Nov 2010 79% of residents surveyed had accessed computers at home and of the
sample asked all residents had some access to computers. It is expected that more residents
today have access to a computer at home.

Positive
Approximately 150 languages are spoken in the Borough. After English the main languages spoken
are: Portuguese, Yoruba, French, Spanish and Twi (LBL 2012). Lambeth ranks 13th in the country
for having no people in a household age over 16 with English as a main language and 20th for
having no people of any age (Census 2011).
Revised SCI proposals
Reading and understanding planning documents often assumes a good understanding of written
English to get involved in planning decisions, for example receiving neighbour notification letters,
policy proposals, newspaper articles, site notices, information of the website. Without an
understanding of this potential barrier, documents and letters run the risk of being ignored and
the opportunity for involvement lost. The SCI seeks to avoid or mitigate this through offering a
translation / interpretation service for planning policy documents, and writing communications in
easy to read language avoiding planning jargon as much as possible/where appropriate.
10

A range of consultation measures are proposed to help ensure there are methods of engagement
suitable for all language abilities (written and spoken). For example drop-in sessions may be
considered ‘safer’ environments than public meetings for less confident people/speakers.

Health

Positive
Lambeth fares comparatively worse for health inequalities when compared nationally. Healthy
lifestyle issues are still an area of concern (e.g. high smoking prevalence, worsening obesity levels
related to poor diets and lack of physical activity, alcohol and drug misuse and child obesity).
Lambeth male life expectancy is 77 years compared to the England average of 78.5 years, and
Lambeth female life expectancy is 81 year compared to England average of 82.5 years (NHS
Lambeth 2012).

The 2011 census found that 6.1% of Lambeth residents say their day-to-day activities are limited a
lot by long term health problems or disabilities; and a further 6.6% say there day to day activities
are limited a little. These figures are both less than those for Inner London and London as a
whole. Lambeth is in the top 10% of districts for places where people say they are in a very good
health (53%)(Census 2011).
Revised SCI proposals
The planning policy database contains more than 2600 names and organisations, of which many
include health groups. None of the methods of engagement activity proposed in the revised SCI
are expected to negatively impact on people’s health in the borough or on their ability to
participate in planning consultations. The SCI provides a sufficient range of consultation methods
to ensure people know about the preparation of planning policy documents so they can decide
whether they want to participate.
11

Page 303

Coronary heart disease, malignant cancers and respiratory diseases remain the top three causes
of death in the Lambeth population (NHS 2012). Hypertension, diabetes, chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease and severe mental illness are also major long term conditions impacting health
of Lambeth residents. Socio-economic challenges such as unemployment and poor housing result
in high rates of child poverty, and social exclusion which subsequently results in poor physical and
mental health are indicators of health inequality (NHS Lambeth 2012).

2.2 Gaps in evidence base
What gaps in information have you
identified from your analysis? In your
response please identify areas where
more information is required and how
you intend to fill in the gaps. If you are
unable to fill in the gaps please state
this clearly with justification.

There is some gap in the evidence base for the areas of gender reassignment and sexual
orientation. Such information can prove difficult to obtain although more information is
becoming available recently, particularly with regards to sexual orientation. Regardless, it is
considered that this gap in information bears no correlation with methods proposed in the SCI.
The impact on Marriage and Civil Partnerships is equally indeterminate. Similarly the impact of
the SCI on this group is not expected to be significantly different than that of other groups such as
age and sexuality for example.

3.0 Consultation, Involvement and Coproduction
The draft SCI has been coproduced with a number of colleagues in the planning department, as
well as member input at Planning and Development Cabinet Advisory Panel. Obtaining feedback
from these individuals has helped shape how the council proposes to go about consultations,
particular for planning applications.

Page 304

3.1 Coproduction, involvement and
consultation
Who are your key stakeholders and how
have you consulted, coproduced or
involved them? What difference did this
make?

A main driver for reviewing the SCI is reducing costs to the council in relation to planning
consultations. This has been previously agreed as an area for savings under the outcome based
budgetary savings requirements on P&D Services. Following discussions with colleagues,
continued use of neighbour notification letters is seen as important. Accordingly the council will
continue to exceed statutory requirements by sending neighbour notification letters to those that
share a boundary with the development site for all types of planning applications. Where the
council is not required to erect a site notice, the council will request the developer to put up a
notice. No significant changes to the current consultation approach under the existing SCI are
proposed for consultations of planning policy documents.

The draft revised SCI will be made available for public consultation for six weeks over
February/March 2015. Notification of the consultation on the revised SCI will be sent to all
contacts on the planning databases (which includes groups representing all equalities
characteristics). The SCI and supporting questionnaire will be available on the council website, at
all borough libraries and at the Town Hall and Phoenix House receptions.
3.2 Gaps in coproduction, consultation As part of the outcome based budgetary savings requirement the Planning and Development
(P&D) Services agreed savings of £150,000 to be implemented in 2014/15. Following the Housing
and involvement
Jobs and Investment Outcomes Panel/October budget challenge, a further £70,000 savings were
What gaps in consultation and
12

involvement and coproduction have you
identified (set out any gaps as they
relate to specific equality groups)?
Please describe where more
consultation, involvement and/or
coproduction is required and set out
how you intend to undertake it. If you
do not intend to undertake it, please set
out your justification.

agreed for 2015/16 and £50,000 for 2016/17. Following careful consideration and discussion on
how these savings could best be met by the department, and while ensuring resources are used in
the most effective way; it was considered that changes in the way we consult on planning
applications could help achieve these savings targets without adversely impacting on current high
levels of performance in respect of timeliness of decision making. The SCI supports smarter ways
of working and engaging with the community and developers that endorses the cooperative
council ethos while delivering services in this difficult climate of reduced funding.
Examples of this include encouraging developers to undertake pre-planning application
consultations with the community to obtain views prior to proposals being drawn up and planning
applications being submitted to the council, and asking developers to erect the site notice where
this is not required by legislation.

Page 305

The strong emphasis of electronic communication in the SCI may be considered by some as a less
inclusive method of engaging with people, particularly older persons. The SCI seeks to alleviate
this by ensuring alternatives are available, for example free computer access for use at local
libraries. Physical copies of planning policy documents as well as response forms will be available
to view in the libraries. Furthermore, anyone may request physical copies of planning policy
documents to be sent to them (printing and postage charges may apply).

4.0 Conclusions, justification and action
Overall it is considered that the methods of engagement activity proposed in the revised SCI are
4.1 Conclusions and justification
What are the main conclusions of this not expected to negatively or disproportionately impact on any equalities group or on their ability
to participate in planning consultations. Where some difficulties may be possible (for example
EIA? What, if any, disproportionate
increased
use of electronic communications on older people, or where reading English may be
negative or positive equality impacts did
you identify at 2.1? On what grounds more challenging); the SCI seeks to mitigate such effects (for example by offering free computer
access at libraries and providing a range of consultation documents, avoiding planning jargon and
do you justify them and how will they be
offering a translation/interpretation service). It is considered that the SCI provides a sufficient
mitigated?
range of consultation methods to ensure people know about the preparation of planning policy
documents so they can decide whether they want to participate.

4.2 Equality Action plan
Please list the equality issue/s identified through the evidence and the mitigating action to be taken. Please also detail the date
when the action will be taken and the name and job title of the responsible officer.
13

Equality Issue
Example:
That the equality analysis may not have
accurately covered all the equality
impacts; and the mitigations may not
act to reduce disproportionate impact
Review responses to consultation in
terms of potential unconsidered
equalities impacts and amend SCI
accordingly if appropriate.

Mitigating actions
Example:
Review the EIA and assess whether the mitigating actions were sufficient.
12/09/12. Joe Bloggs. Head of ABC

Review the SCI in lights of any potential comments on equalities impacts.
April 2015. Alan Vinall. Delivery Lead Planning Strategy and Policy.

5.0 Publishing your results

EIA publishing date
EIA review date
Assessment sign off (name/job title):

Page 306

The results of your EIA must be published. Once the business activity has been implemented the EIA must be periodically reviewed
to ensure your decision/change had the anticipated impact and the actions set out at 4.2 are still appropriate.
February 2015
April 2015
David Joyce, Assistant Director Planning and Development – Delivery.

All completed and signed-off EIAs must be submitted to equalities@lambeth.gov.uk for publication on Lambeth’s website. Where possible,
please anonymise your EIAs prior to submission (i.e. please remove any references to an officers’ name, email and phone number).

14

